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SKY Perfect Communications Inc. - 12¢3-2(b) Exemption (FILE NO. 82-5113)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In connection with the exemption of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (the
"Company") as a foreign private issuer pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, we, on behalf of the Company, hereby furnish the Securities and
Exchange Commission with the following information required by Rule 12g3-2(b):

1. Concessions for Victims of Typhoon 0613 in Miyazaki Prefecture in Relation to
October Billing Amounts

2. Launch of High Definition Broadcasting on SKY PerfecTV! (124/128 Services)
3. Notice of the Details for the Issuance of Stock Options (Stock Acquisition Rights)

4. Launch of SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI, a Multichannel Broadcasting Service
Employing Optical Fiber Networks, in Koriyama-shi, Fukushima

5.  Announcement of an Executive Change .
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Launch of Terrestrial Digital Broadcasting in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, from
October 1 through "HIKARI PerfecTV!" --Timed to coincide with the launch in
Hiroshima-shi via optical fiber networks--

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers as of the end of September 2006

WOWOW to Commence Broadcasting on SKY PerfecTV! (124/128 Services)
Platform

Revision to Results Forecast
Regarding Press Coverage in Today's Nihon Keizai Shimbun Evening Edition

Partial Business Succession accompanying Split of CS Broadcasting Business of
Nippon BS Broadcasting Corporation

Consolidated Semi-Annual Report Release for the year ending March 2007
Summary of Business Results for TH/FY2006 (Supplemental Information)

Notice of Basic Agreement of the Business Combination Through Establishment of
a Joint Holding Company

The Business Combination of SKY Perfect Communications and JSAT
Financial Summary of 1H/FY2006 and Our Business Strategy
Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers as of the end of October 2006

Concessions for Victims of a Tornado in Saroma-cho, Hokkaido, in Relation to
December Billing Amounts

Notification of establishment of Multimedia Broadcasting Planning LLC, a joint
venture

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers as of the end of November 2006

Change in Name of 110-Degree CS Digital Broadcasting Service "SKY PerfecTV!
110" --The new name "e2 by SKY PerfecTV!" in place from February 1, 2007--

Commencement of WOWOW Broadcasting over SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI,
Optical-Fiber-Based Broadcasting Service
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Completion of Registration as a Broadcaster on Telecommunications Services for
the 124-Degrees/128-Degrees Longitude East Services

Notice of Establishment of the ISDB-T Multimedia Forum
eTEN, Inc. to Become a Subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers as of the end of December 2006

Notice regarding the Preparation of a Share Transfer Plan and the Conclusion of a
Share Transfer Agreement

Announcement of Partial Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation
Acquisition of On Demand TV, Inc. and I-Cast, Inc Shares

Notice of Consolidation of €TEN, Inc. through Share Exchange

Revision to Results Forecast

Consolidated Business Results of Third QL;arter for the year ending March 2007
Summary of Business Results for 3Q/FY2006 (Supplemental Information)
Financial Summary of 3Q/FY2006 and Our Business Strategy

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers as of the end of January 2007

Notice Regarding Allocation and Issuance of Stock Acquisition Rights
Accompanying the Share Transfer

Notice of Share Exchange Ratio of €Ten, Inc.
Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers as of the end of February 2007
SKY Perfect ISAT's Corporate Logo and Location of the Head Office

SKY Perfect JSAT Group The New Mid-Term Management Plan
(FY2007-FY2011)

. Results Forecasts of SKY Perfect JISAT Corporation for the Year Ending March 31,
2008
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42. SKY Perfect JSAT Group's Mid-Term Management Plan
43. Bnef Description of Semi-Annual Report
44. Semiannual Report 2006
If you have any questions or requests for additional information, please do not hesitate
to contact Atsushi lzumi of Anderson Mori & Tomotsune, Japanese counsel to the Company,
with offices at Izumi Garden Tower, 6-1, Roppongi 1-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 106-6036,
Japan (telephone +813-6888-1000, facsimile +813-6888-6840). For your information, the
division of the Company in charge of this matter is Finance & Accounting Dept. (telephone
+813-5468-9425, facsimile +813-3468-3612).
Very truly yours,
Atsushi [zumi :

Enclosure




R

Concessions for Victims of
Typhoon 0613 in Miyazaki Prefecture
in Relation to October Billing Amounts

- The impact of this matter on the Company’s cénsolidated financial results is ncgligible.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. T s 13
News Release
S A RS ~
CLL D September 22, 2006
R IR Masao Nito
LR -8 A & 2y President and Representative Director
TGS SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
T A L (TSE 1st Section Code No. 4795)

For any inquines, please call:

Tomonari Niimoto
General Manager

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept,
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

SKY Perfect Communications Inc., together with the 108 CS satellite broadcast business-related
companies forming the Japan Satellite Broadcasting Association (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Chairman:

Banjiro Uemura), today submitted the attached press release with respect to the above matter.

*For any inquines on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400  FAX: 03-5468-939%
P




September 22, 2006
Japan Satellite Broadcasting Association
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Concessions for Victims of Typhoon 0613 in Miyazaki Prefecture

in Relation to October Billing Amounts

The 108 CS satellite broadcast business-related companies forming the Japan Satellite Broadcasting
Association (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Chairman: Banjiro Uemura) and SKY Perfect Communications
Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and Representative Director: Masao Nito) have decided to
offer concessions to subscribers living in Nobeoka-shi, Miyazaki Prefecture, where the Disaster Relief Act
has been applied in the wake of damage caused by Typhoon 0613. According to the details outlined below, it
was decided that subscribers to “SKY PerfecTV/” and “SKY PerfecTV/ 110" in the area would be exempt
from paying their October bill (monthly basic fee, the monthly subscription fee for “SKY PerfecTV/ and
“SK'Y PerfecTV/ 110” including the fee for PPV programs, and the monthly fee for the program guide), if
they apply for the exemption and it is deemed that their viewing has been hampered by the damage caused by
the typhoon.

Details

1. Applicable areas (As of September 18, 2006)
{1} Nobeoka-shi in Miyagi Prefecture
(2)  Where it is deemed that damage has been incurred similar to that in the above areas as aresult

of the heavy rainfall.

.2. Breakdown of the applicable fees )
Monthly basic fee, the monthly subscription fee for “SKY PerfecTV/” and “SKY PerfecTV/ 1107
including the fee for PPV programs, and the monthly fee for the program guide.
* Amounts will vary according to the subscription details of each subscriber.

3. Customer inquirics

TEL: 0120-085-550 (10:00 to 20:00, 365 days a year)
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A VTl PP For any inquiries, please call;
ARV N O N N Tomonart Niimoto
General Manager

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Launch of High Definition Broadcasting
on SKY PerfecTV! (124/128 Services)

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) is pleased to announce that it has made a decision to start specific studies for
commencing high definition (HD) broadcasting in summer 2008 on SKY PerfecTV/ (124/128 services),

currently offered from two communications satellites,

Started in December 2003 in three major arcas, namely the Kanto, Kinki and Chukyo regions, terrestrial
digital broadcasting will expand nationwide by the end of 2006. Given that terrestrial analog broadcasting will
be ceased in 2011, digital TV sets ready for HD broadcasting are penetrating the market at an accelerating pace.
Under the brand name PerfecTV/, SKY Perfect launched Japan’s first digital multi-channel broadcast service
in October 1996. In line with the change in media circumstances and progress in digital technologies, HD
broadcasting is becoming increasingly common and a growing number of households will own digital TV sets,
enjoying a broad array of programs on some 290 channels on the SKY PerfecTV! platform.

SKY Perfect will continue to regard SKY PerfecTV/, which covers approximately 290 channels, as its

mainstay service. To ensure that it remains distinctive from other media, SKY Perfect will be adding several
HD channels to this platform in the summer of 2008 to bolster subscriber numbers and enhance its

broadcasting service.

New HD content introduced on SKY PerfecTV! will be compliant with the new DVB-S.2* standard for
transmission and the H.264/MPEG-4 AVC* standard for encoding. Both standards are expected to be adopted
worldwide, They increase &msmission efficiency and open the way for broadcasting HD content within a
much narrower transmission bandwidth than that achievable with the conventional method.

SKY Perfect envisions launching around ten HD broadcasting channels on the JCSAT-4A communication
satellite located at 124 degrees E Longitude owned by JSAT Corporation (Head Office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo;
President and CEO: Kiyoshi Isozaki) in the summer of 2008. It will also aim to launch about 20 additional HD
channels in the fall of 2009, to offer an approximate total of 30 HD channels.

SKY Perfect will also start detailed studies aimed at developing new STBs compliant with HD broadcasting
and at establishing a system for supplying such STBs. Given simultaneous rebroadcast of terrestrial digital

broadcasting in cooperation with JSAT Corporation, the new STB will also support terrestnal digital

L .




broadcasting.

No details have been set for specific HD channels, the new HD basic pack and their respective fees. They

will be announced as soon as they are finalized.

* DVB-5.2
For television broadcasting and data transmission, worldwide satellite operators currently use the DVB-S standard
set out by the European standardization body called Digital Video Broadcasting (DVB). In March 2005, the
DVB-S.2 standard was approved as the next-generation satellite transfer standard. Reflecting the progress in channel
coding and modulation technologies, it boasts satellite circuit efficiency about 30% beyond that of the DVB-S.

* H264 /MPEG4 AVC
H.264 / MPEG-4 AVC is the next-generation video compression standard based on MPEG-4. Its standard
specifications were formulated in December 2003 by a joint organization of the ITU Telecommunication
Standardization Sector (TTU-T) and ISO/IEC Moving Picture Experts Group (MPEG), which is known as the Joint
Video Team (JVT). It offers higher compression efficiencies and requires a smaller bandwidth for distributing HD
video content than the MPEG-2 standard, which is currently used for BS, CS and terrestrial broadcasting. Outside
Japan, H-264-based services were successively launched at the end of 2005 and in 2006 on DIRECTV and
ECHOSTAR in the United States and on BSkyB in the United Kingdom.

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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September 29, 2006

Masao Nito

President and Representative Director

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(TSE 1st Section Code No. 4795)

For any inquiries, please call:

Tomonari Niimoto

General Manager

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Notice of the Details for the Issuance of Stock Options
(Stock Acquisition Rights)

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo: President and Representative
Director: Masao Nito, “SKY Perfect”) is pleased to announce that, today, those details that were yet to be
finalized in relation to the issuance of new stock acquisition rights to be issued as stock options to
Company directors and executive officers pursuant to Article 238 (1) and (2) and Article 240 (1) of the
Corporate Law decided on at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on August 30, 2006 are finalized.

The details are provided below.
Details

1. Price of assets being invested in upon the exercise of new stock acquisition rights
70,256 yen per share
70,256 yen per unit

2. Total issue price for shares issued upon the exercise of new stock acquisttion rights
82,902 080 yen

Note: Guidelines on the issuance of new stock acquisition rights for matters besides those outlined above
were announced on May 12, 2006 and August 30, 2006. Please note that the allotment of new stock
acquisition rights constitutes no condition particularly beneficial to the persons to which such rights are

1ssued.

(Reference)

(1) New stock acquisition right allotment date: October 1, 2006

(2) New stock acquisition right exercise period: From October 1, 2008 to September 30, 2012

(3) Intended recipients of new stock acquisition right allotment: 6 directors (685 units), 6 executive officers
(495 units). Total of 12 persons (1,180 units),

#For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-3468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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September 29, 2006
Masao Nito
President and Representative Director
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
(TSE lst Section Code No. 4795)
For any inquiries, please call:
Tomonari Niimoto
General Manager
Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Launch of SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI, a Multichannel Broadcasting Service
Employing Optical Fiber Networks, in Koriyama-shi, Fukushima

OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Ketichiro Demizu;
“QptiCast™), a 100% subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tekyo,
President and Representative Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfeet”), is pleased to announce the
commencement of sales of SKY PerfecTV/! HIKARI, the multichannel broadcasting service employing
optical fiber networks, in Koriyama-shi, Fukushima. Details are provided in the attached ncws release. ’

* For any inquiries on thrs matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc. ‘

TEL: 03-5468-9400  FAX: 03-5468-9399




OptiCast Inc.

News Release

September 29, 2006

Launch of SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI, a Multichannel Broadcasting Service
Employing Optical Fiber Networks, in Koriyama-shi, Fukushima

OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Represeﬁtative Director: Keiichiro Demizu;
“OptiCast™), a 100% owned subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Masao Nito: “SKY Perfect”), is pleased to announce the
commencement of sales of SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI, the multichannel broadcasting service employing
optical fiber networks, in Koriyama-shi, Fukushima from October 1, 2006. This follows the completion of the
change in service area registration for the broadcasting business using wired service pursuant to the Law
Concerning Broadcast on Telecommunications Services. This service will be marketed by OptiCast
Marketing Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo: President and Representative Director: Tatsuro Saitoh;
“OptiCast Marketing™).

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI is a multichannel broadcasting service that operates over radio frequency (RF)
using the B FLET’S service (Fiber-To-The-Home Internet service) provided by Nippon Telegraph and
Telephone East Corporation (Head Office: Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Toyohiko Takabe, “NTT East™) and the FLET’S service provided by Nippon Telegraph and Telephone West
Corporation (Head Office: Osaka-shi, Osaka; President and Representative Director: Shunzo Morishita;
“NTT West”). Now, OptiCast will launch a simultaneous re-transmission broadcasting service in the central
areas of Koniyama-shi where terrestrial digital broadcasting and BS digital broadcasting will be provided in
addition to the 280 channels SKY Perfect broadcasts through the multichannel broadcasting service. There
are also plans for the service area to be progressively expanded in the future. OptiCast currently provides the
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI service over a service area encompassing some 5.7 million households in Tokyo,

Kanagawa Prefecture, Chiba Prefecture, Aichi Prefecture, Osaka, and Hyogo Prefecture.

In December 2004, holding 66.7% of the number of issued shares, OptiCast became the largest shareholder
in Information Network Korivama Inc. (Head Office: Koriyama, Fukushima; President and Representative
Director: Tatsuro Saitoh; “INK™), a cable television business planning company in Koriyama. INK is a cable
television planning company that was established in December 1984 primarily backed by local capital with
investments also made by the City of Koriyama and the Koriyama Chamber of Commerce and Industry, and
has for many years, been working towards the commercialization of multichannel broadcasting services in the
form of urban CATV. Since investing in INK, OptiCast has continued to investigate the possibility of
providing multichannel broadcasting and Internet communications services in Koriyama. However, as a cable

television broadcaster, INK’s operations involve laying cabling to prowvide services, which incurs cable

installation and line equipment costs, and so on. For this reason, OptiCast, as a broadcaster on




telecommunications services, having changed their service area registration for the broadcasting business using
wired service, has now decided to offer SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI over optical fiber networks owned by NTT
East.

This move will now make possible the provision of Triple-Play Service, which combines the multichannel
broadcasting service SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI with NTT East’s Internet services and optical IP telephony
services and will finally make urban cable television available in Konyama, which has been without cable TV
services for some time. In the future, OptiCast Marketing plans to establish a strategic sales system in which
INK will have a central role to promote the spread of SKYY PerfecTV/ HIKARI in Konyama.

The SKY Perfect Group plans to expand its multichannel broadcasting services via optical fiber together
with NTT East and NTT West’s optical access services.

* For customer inquiries, please call:
SKY PerfecTV/! HIKARI Customer Center (General inquiries)

TEL: 0570-013-999 (045-339-0011 from mobile phones and PHS)
Business hours: 10:00 - 20:00 (365 days of the year)
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For any inquiries, please call:

Tomonari Niimoto

General Manager

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Announcement of an Executive Change.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect™) is pleased to announce that it has decided on the following changes
to executive positions. Also, SKY Perfect Mobile Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director: Shuuhei Yamaurz), a subsidiary of SKY Perfect engaged in mobile-related
business, appointed directors at an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders, and appointed a
Representative Director at a meeting of the Board of Directors held after the close of the extraordinary

general Meeting of shareholders.

Details

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Retired executive officer (as of September 30, 2006)

Retired Executive Officer Uju Yamazaki
SKY Perfect Mobile Inc.
Directors (as of September 28, 2006)
Retired President and Representative Director Uju Yamazaki
Newly appointed President and Representative Director * Shuuhei Yamaura *

* Shudhel Yamaura is an Executive Officer and General Manager of the Technology & Development Group at SKY Perfect
Communications Inc.

*'For any inquries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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For any inquiries, please call:
Tomonari Niimoto
General Manager

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Launch of Terrestrial Digital Broadcasting in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, from
October 1 through “HIKARI PerfecTV/!”
--Timed to coincide with the launch in Hiroshima-shi
via optical fiber networks--

OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Keiichiro Demizu,
“QOptiCast™), a 100% subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo;
President and Representative Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) is pleased to announce the commencement
of terrestrial digital broadcasting in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, through HIKARI PerfecTV/. Details are

provided in the attached news release.

*"For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400  FAX: 03-5468-9399




September 29, 2006

Launch of Terrestrial Digital Broadcasting in Fukuyama-shi,
Hiroshima from October 1 through “HIKARI PerfecTV!”
--Timed to coincide with the launch in Hiroshima-shi
via optical fiber networks--

OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and Representative Director: Keiichiro Demizu;
“OptiCast”), a 100% subsidiary of SKYY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo:;
President and Representative Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) is pleased to announce that following
completion of the change in service area registration for the broadcasting business using wired service with the
Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications pursuant to the Law Concerning Broadcast on
Telecommunications Services, OptiCast will commence broadcasting of NHK GTV, NHK ETV, Chugoku
Broadcasting (RCC), Hiroshima TV (HTV), Hiroshima Home TV, and TV Shin Hiroshima (TSS), to coincide
with the launch of terrestrial digital broadcasting in Hiroshima-shi due to commence on October 1, 2006.

Along with this, terrestrial digital broadcasting will start to be offered in the HIKARI PerfecTV/* service
area in Fukuyama-shi, coinciding with the launch of terrestrial digital broadcasting in Hiroshima-shi as well.

Terrestrial digital broadcasting is scheduled to commence in Fukuyama-shi in April 2007 (broadcasting will
commence from the Fukuyama Station (Hikoyama), with broadcasts due to commence across all parts of the
city by the end of 2010). However, now, through the multichannel broadcasting service HIK AR] PerfecTV/
that has been available since November 2005 over the optical fiber networks of Energia Communications, Inc.
(Head Office: Hiroshima-shi, Hiroshima; President and Representative Director: Minoru Sato; “Energia Com™),

a 100% subsidiary of The Chugoku Electric Power Co., Inc., it will now be possible for viewers to access

terrestrial digital broadcasts six months ahead of areas that will be able to get terrestrial digital broadcast
reception.

Due to its topographical features, Fukuyama-shi has poor terrestrial analog broadcasting reception, and there
have been calls for this situation to be addressed. Now, with a head end (receiving station) located in
Hiroshima-shi, OptiCast is able to provide clear, interference-free HD video images, as signals are transmitted

long distances over optical fiber.

* OptiCast provides the multichannel broadcasting service employing optical fiber networks under the service name
“SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI", but the multichannel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, that is
Jointly operated with Energia Communications, Inc., will remain under the name of “HIK ARI PerfecTV/™.

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI Customer Center (General inquiries)
TEL: 0570-013-999

(084-973-2157 from some mobile phones, PHS, and IP phones. (OptiCast Chugoku Sales Office)
Business hours: 10:00 - 20:00 (365 days of the year)

__—__——
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General Manager
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Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of September 2006

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director; Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) announced the number of total
registrations and individual subscribers as of the end of September 2006. As a result of the

detailed check for the number of institutional subscribers, 4,283 churn was found omitted from
the previous counting. Such number is included in the cumulative total number_of SKY

PerfecTV/! subscribers as of the end of September 2006 as a deduction.

New Subscribers 32,125

Chumn 37,607 29,054
Churn Rate*’ 10.8% 9.7%
Net Increase 6,598 3,031
Cumulative Total 4,178,055 3,594,748
* The total column shows the summed-up figure of cumulative totals of DTH Services and Wired Broadcasting

Services

[ndivid

New Subscribers

Churn
Churn Rate*’
Net Increase
Cumulative Total 3,244,786
KY PerfectVe : Tdividual Subscribers*?:
New Subscribers 21,077 11,471
Churn 9,751 2,453
Churn Rate*’ 30.6% 10.4%
Net Increase 11,326 9.018
Cumulative Total 393,256 293,076

537861




hrough SKY. Perrccrvr'mmm:;

New Subscribers 1,782 1,560

Churn 107 106
Churn Rate*’ 8.1% 8.3%
Net Increase 1,675 1,454

Cumulative Total 17,540 16,755

366

New Subscnibers
Chum 350
Chum Rate*’ 10.5%
Net Increase 216
Cumulative Total 40,131

Broadcasting Services:

*1

*2

*3

*4

*5

Total Subscribers; The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay- subscription agreement
{provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV! only), institutional subscribers including retailers exhibition and
registrations for technical development in addition to individual subscribers.

Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agrecment and have been actually paying
subscription fee.

Monthly Churn Rate: The chum rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number of churns into
yearly basis.

Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month /Total subscribers at the end of the previous month x 12
months

The multichannel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, jointly operated with Energia
Communications, Inc. and the channel lease service in Achi-mura, Nagano, that uses available fiber-optic
network bandwidth will remain under the name of “HIKARI PerfecTV/™

Other Wired Broadcasting Services: Other Wired Broadeasting Services refer to the number of multichannel
broadcasting contract using SKY Perfect’s digital broadcasting system, including cable television, excluding
SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARL

The breakdown of properties that have approved SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI and properties
receiving the service as of the end of September 2006.

: Propcmcs current]
receiving service*

| Properties that have: apprcwcd
‘service provisionth

Number of properties 555 859

Number of households*® 66,937 68,964

*6

7

*8

Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each month, have
concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) provision agreement.
This figure also includes some properties far which service provision will commence in the following month or
later, depending on when construction will be completed.

Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month, broadcasting
services (retransmission or multichanne] broadcasting service) are being provided and which are being charged
for such.

The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Comumunications Inc,

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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October 19, 2006

Masao Nito

President and Representative Director

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(TSE 1st Section, Code No. 4795)

For any inquiries, please call:

Tomonan Niimoto

General Manager

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Toshio Hirose

President

WOWOW INC.

(TSE Mothers, Code No. 4839)

For any inquiries, please call:

Nazaoki Takamizawa

General Manager

Investor Relations and Public Relations Dept.
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WOWOW to Commence Broadcasting
on SKY PerfecTV! (124/128 Services) Platform

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; Representative Director and
President: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) and WOWOW INC. (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo;
Representative Director and President: Toshio Hirose; “WOWOW™) are pleased to announce that they have
reached an agreement regarding the commencement of WOWOW broadcasts over the SKY PerfecTV/
(124/128 services; “SKY PerfecTV/ service”) platform from Friday December 1, 2006.

WOWOW commenced commercial broadcasting in 1991 as Japan’s first private satellite broadcasting
station, and this year, is celebrating its 15th anniversary. WOWOW brings together a comprehensive lineup
of choice content from around the world, including movies, sports, music programs, dramas, anime and
other original programs, and delivers this content to its subscribers. As of September 30, 2006, WOWOW’s
total number of subscribers had hit 2.38 million.

Meanwhile, SKY Perfect provides Japan’s largest multichannel pay TV platform through the SKY
PerfecTV! service that employs two communications satellites (CS) positioned at longitudes 124 degrees

east and 128 degrees east, and celebrates the 10th anniversary of the commencement of broadcasting in
1996 this year. Through the SKY PerfecTV/ service, SKY Perfect provides 190 TV channels and 101
digital radio channels covering a wide vanety of genres, including sports, movies, dramas, news and more.
As of September 30, 2006, the total number of SKY Perfect subscribers stood at approximately 4.17
million (total registrations). (Of this total SKY PerfecTV/ service registrations account for approximately
3.72 miilion.)




Under the agreement, SKY Perfect and WOWOW will build on the fundamental strength of each other’s
operations, i.c. WOWOW’s broadcasting station and SKY Perfect’s platform, to commence the provision of
WOWOW channels over the SKY PerfecTV/ service platform. This arrangement will enable SKY
PerfecTV/ service subscribers to enjoy an even greater range and variety of digital multichannel broadcast

content.

The details of the broadcasting arrangement are provided below.

Channel name: WOWOW

Channel number; 330ch

WOWOW registration fee: 3,150 yen (incl. tax)

Monthly charge: 2,100 yen/month (incl. tax)

Broadcasting to commence: Friday December 1, 2006
Subscription applications to open; Wednesday November 15, 2006

We believe that the addition of WOWOW channel to the SKY PerfecTV! service channel lineup will not
only provide viewers with an even more extensive range of movie, drama and music programs, but for sports,
for example, will also provide extensive soccer coverage of the major European leagues like the Spanish
soccer league as well as J.League (J1/J2), and that this will in turn dramatically enhance the viewing
convenience of viewers who enjoy pay TV broadcasting, and will serve to further expand the digital

multichannel pay TV market in Japan.

Both SKY Perfect and WOWOW will assume a leading role in the Japanese pay TV broadcasting market in
the future, as they intend to use this mew arrangement as a launching pad to seck out further service

convenience enhancements for viewers.

*For any inquiries on this matter please call

Pubtlic Relations and Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399

Investor Relations and Public I Relations Dept.

WOWOW INC.
TEL: 03-5414-8090 FAX: 03-5414-8107




1. Corporate Profile of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (As of Sept. 30, 2006)

(1) Company name:

(2) Main busiress activities:
(3) Date established.

(4) Head office:

(5) Representative;

{(6) Capital:

(7) No. of employees:

(8) Major shareholders:

(1) Company name:

(2) Main business activities:

(3) Date established:
(4) Head office:

(5) Representative:

(6) Capatal: -

(7) No. of employees:
(8) Major shareholders:

SKY Perfect Communications Ing,

Multichannel pay TV platform service
November 10, 1996

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo

Representative Director & President, Masao Nito

50,083 million yen

468 (consolidated basis)

Sony Broadcast Media Co., Ltd. 12,5%
Fuj1 Television Network, Inc. 12.5%
Itochu Corporation 12.5%
JSAT Corporation 6.9%

. Corporate Profile of WOWOW INC. (As of Sept. 30, 2006)

WOWOW INC.

General broadcasting business using broadcast satellites

(including pay TV broadcasting)
December 25, 1984,
Minato-ku, Tokyo

Representative Director & President: Toshio Hirose

5,000 million yen

260

Fuji Television Network, Inc. 9.9%
Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc. 8.9%
Nippon Television Network Corporation 8.3%
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Lid.  7.6%

(Reference)
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General Manager
Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
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Revision to Results Forecast

Based on recent business developments, SKY Perfect Communications Inc. announces a revision to the
forecast interim and full-year results for fiscal 2006 (from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007), published at the
announcement of the annual results for fiscal 2005 on May 12, 2006, The changes are as follows:

Details

1. Revision of Resulis Forecast
(1) Revision of non-consolidated results forecast
Revision of forecast interim results for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007 (April 1, 2006 to September 30,

2006) (Million yen)
: Ordinary incothe | - - Netincome:

Previous forecast (A) 1,700 1,700
Revised forecast (B) , 3,300 3,200
Difference (B-A) - 1,600 1,500
% change - 94.1% 88.2%
(Reference)

Interim results for the fiscal year ended 37,133 1,026 916
March 31, 2006

Revision of forecast results for the fiscal vear ending March 31, 2007 (April 1, 2006 to September 30,

2006)—No Ch (Million yen)
+Ordmaryincome % ;. Net mcomig: *:

Previous forecast (A) 77,000 6,000 6,000
Revised forecast (B) 77,600 6,000 6,000
Difference (B-A) — - —_
% change — — —_
(Reference)
Business results for the fiscal vear 74377 3,261 3,430
ended March 31, 2006




{2) Revision of consolidated results forecast
Revision of forecast interim results for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007 (Apnil I, 2006 to September

30, 2006) {Million yen)
Ty Grdinary Weome | NeUingome
s loss o 4 L [loss.
Previous forecast (A) 43,000 -1,100 -§00
Revised forecast (B) 42 500 1,400 1,300
Difference (B-A) -500 2,500 2,100
% change -1.2% — -
(Reference)
Interim results for the fiscal year ended 41,023 -108 -323
March 31, 2006

Revision of forecast results for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007 (April 1, 2006 to September 30, 2006)

-};"‘r.e\.rious. .fbrécaé-t (A)

Revised forecast (B) 87.500

Difference {B-A) -2,500 - —
% change -2.8% - —
(Reference)

Results for the fiscal year ended March 82,329 106 357
31, 2006

2. Reasons for Revision
(1) Non-consolidated results forecast

While ARPU has been above the SKY Perfect’s expectation throughout this interim period, the total number
of subscribers came in somewhat under what was expected due to subscriber churn after the 2006 FIFA World
Cup Germany™ and other factors. As a result, revenues are now predicted to meet the previously forecast
figure of 38.0 billion yen.

Thanks to fewer sales incentives, reductions in outsourcing and other costs, and an improvement in content
costs, ordinary income for this interim period is predicted to come in at 3.3 billion yen, 1.6 billion yen above
previous forecasts. Also factoring in the loss on the retirement of fixed assets, forecasts for interim net income
have also been upwardly revised, with interim net income expected to exceed previous forecasts by 1.5 billion
yen to come in at 3.2 billion yen.

On a full-year basis, the Company will once again run the free antenna installation campaign for SKY
PerfecTV! (124/128) services with the cooperation of broadcasters from November in an attempt to achieve its
target of gaining 530 thousand new subscribers. In addition to this, in light of the fact that some of the
expenses that were previously factored into the interim period in the previous forecast will now not be incurred
until the second half of the year, forecasts for both ordinary income and net income will remain unchanged

from the previously forecast 6 billion yen.

(2) Consolidated results forecast
Consolidated revenues for this interim period are predicted 1o come in at 42.5 billion yen, 0.5 billion yen
under the previous forecast, as a result of those factors affecting non-consolidated revenues coupled with the

delayed progress in subscription uptake for the SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI (detached home type) service,




In terms of profit and loss, both consolidated ordinary income and consolidated interim net income forecasts
have been upwardly revised from previous forecasts by 2.5 billion and 2.1 billion to 1.4 billion yen and 1.3
billion yen, respectively. In addition to factors affecting non-consolidated profit and loss figures, this is also
the result of the fact that the costs incurred by OptiCast Inc., who operate the SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI service
came in under what was forecast in the interim pertod, and that the company’s other consolidated subsidiaries
are also predicting results that will exceed what was previously forecast.

On a full-year basis, the slow uptake of SKY PerfecTV/! HIKARI subscriptions by the end of the interim
period has had an effect, with revenues now expected to come in at 87.5 billion yen, 2.5 billion yen under the
previous forecast. On the profit and loss front, as a result of non-consolidated factors in addition to the rising
costs that consolidated subsidiaries are expected to incur through the promotion of subscriptions to SKY
PerfecTV! HIKARI (detached home type) service, the previous forecasts for both consolidated ordinary
income and full-vear consolidated net income remain unchanged at 1.0 billion yen and 1.5 billion yen,

respectively.

*  The above results forecasts are based on the information available at the time of preparation, and encompass a
number of uncertain factors. Actual results, etc. may differ from the forecast figures due to changes in business
conditions.

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept,
SKY Perfect Communications Inc,

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-5399%
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Regarding Press Coverage in Today’s Nihon Keizai Shimbun Evening Edition

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect™) has released the following statement in relation to the press coverage
in the Nihon Keizai Shimbun's Evening Edition for today, October 23, under the headline “SKY Perfect and
JSAT to Merge Operations.”

§tatement

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Masao Nito, “SKY Perfect”) is currently looking into strengthening its relationship with and possible merger
with JSAT Corporation (Head Office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President and CEO: Kiyoshi Isozaki}, but nothing
definite, including the stock transfer ratio, has been decided on at this stage. SKY Perfect will immediately
disclose if anything on this matter is decided.

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400  FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Partial Business Succession
accompanying Split of CS Broadcasting Business
of Nippon BS Broadcasting Corporation

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masao Nito; "SKY Perfect") announced today that, in order to succeed the CS broadcasting business
which is to be split from Nippon BS Broadcasting Corporation {(Head Office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director: Makoto Yamashina; "Nippon BS Broadcasting”), 2 broadcaster of 110-degree CS and
BS digital broadcasting service and a subsidiary of BIC CAMERA INC. (Head Office: Toshima-ku, Tokyo;
President: Hiroyuki Miyajima; "BIC CAMERA") through Multi Channel Entertainment Inc. (Head Office:
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Yoshinori Tanahashi; "MCE"), a subsidiary of SKY
Perfect and a licensed broadcaster of 110-degree CS digital broadcasting service, the Board of Directors of
SKY Perfect resolved the execution of an agreement regarding an absorption-type corporate split between
Nippon BS Broadcasting and MCE. The corporate split shall be subject to a permission regarding an
inheritance of the position of the licensed broadcaster from the Minister for Internal Affairs and Communications
under the Broadcast Law.

Nippon BS Broadcasting, incorporated in August 1999, commenced the BS digital broadcasting of
"Chikyu Channel (Channel 999)" in December 2000. It also commenced 110-degree CS digital broadcasting
of "Life Style TV (Channel 990)" and "SHOP & TVS5 (Channel 991)", but plans to cease the broadcasting of
such programs via 110-degree CS digital broadcasting on November 30, 2006. Since Nippon BS
Broadcasting will commence high-definition television broadcast service as a specialized broadcaster of BS
digital broadcasting service in December 2007, SKY Perfect, setting MCE as a successor, shall succeed rights
and obligations relating to the CS broadcasting business of Nippon BS Broadcasting.

SKY Perfect have declared in its Mid-Term Vision (FY2005-2010) that in order to strengthen its
DTH business, one of its management policies shall be aggressive development in investment in and
cooperation with broadcasters. Along with the partial business succession, SKY Perfect is going to consider
concrete measures to enhance its services such as further addition of high-definition content via 110-degree CS
digital broadcasting, and is going to make them more attractive.

The partial suceession will have only an immaterial effect on the Company's consclidated business
results for the year ending March 2007,

*For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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, 2006

1. Consolidated Business Results for Six Months Ended September 2006 3 ,;
(April 1, 2006 through September 30, 2006) - . T4
SR
(1) Consolidated Results of Operations : d ‘.:.‘
D
Operating Revenues Operating Income Ordinary Income
{millions of yen) (%) {millions of yen) {%) (millions of yen) (5%
Six months ended
Scptember 30, 2006 42,533 3.7 1,255 - 1,352 -
Six months ended
September 30, 2005 41,023 10.4 -424 - -108 -
Year ended .
March 31, 2006 82,329 11.2 -261 - 106 -97.1
Net Income per
Net Income Net Income per Share Share (fully diluted)
{millions of yen) (%) (yem) (yen)
Six months ended
September 30, 2006 | 1288 - 598.36 :
Six months ended
September 30,2005 | 323 - -149.97 -
Year ended
March 31, 2006 357 -90.4 162.56 162.54
(Notes)
1 Investment profit and loss in equity method:
Six months ended September 30, 2006:  -370 million yen
Six months ended September 30, 2005: -4 million yen
Year ended March 31, 2006:

-265 million yen




2 Average number of outstanding shares during each period (Consolidated basis):
Six months ended September 30, 2006: 2,152,924 shares
Six months ended September 30, 2005: 2,154,841 shares
Year ended March 31, 2006: 2,153,886 shares
3 Changes in accounting treatment: Not applicable
4. Percentages appearing under operating revenues, ordinary income and net income
represent the ratio of increase/decrease compared to the same period of the prior year.

(2) Consolidated Financial Condition

Ratio of Total Equity per
Total Assets | Total Equity Shareholders' quity p
. Share
Equity to Assets
(milfions of yen) {millions of yen) (%) (yen)

Six months ended
September 30, 2006 | 120333 88,656 69.8 39,042.87

Six months ended

September 30, 2005 126,999 89,387 70.4 41,518.89
Year ended
March 31, 2006 133171 93,999 70.6 43,661.41
(Notes)

Number of outstanding shares as of the end of each period (Consolidated basis):
Six months ended September 30, 2006: 2,152,924 shares
Six months ended September 30, 2005: 2,152,925 shares
Year ended March 31, 2006: 2,152,924 shares

(3) Consolidated Cash Flow

Cash Flow by Cash Flow by Cash Flow by Balan((:je é)f lclfash
Operating Investing Financing and Cas
Activities Activities Activities Equivalents at

End of Period
(millions of yen) {millions of yen) (millions of yen) (millions of yen)

Six months ended
September 30, 2006 3,699 -4,556 -1,895 37,556

Six months ended
September 30, 2005
Year ended
March 31, 2006

2,706 -5,256 -2,283 27,405

3,582 4,981 -492 40,310

4) Object of Consolidation and Application of Equity Method
Number of consolidated subsidiaries: 13

Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries to which equity method is applicable: 0

Number of affiliated companies to which equity method is applicable: 3




(5) Changes in Object of Consolidation and Application of Equity Method

Consolidated (new): 1 Equity method (new):

(excluded): 0

(excluded):

1
0

2. Forecast of Consolidated Business Results for Year Ending March 2007
(April 1, 2006 through March 31, 2007)

Operating Revenues | Ordinary Income Net Income
{millions of yen) {millions of yen) (millions of yen)
Year ending 87,500 1,000 1,500

March 31, 2006

(Reference)

Estimated net income per share (full year):

696.73 yen
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Summary of Business Results for 1H/FY2006

1. Number of Subscribers

(Supplemental Information)

(Thousands)

Net Addition (Total Subs.)

SKY PerfecTV!

SKY PerfecTV!110

SKY PerfecTY! HIKARI *

Other Wired Services

Total Subs. at Period-End

SKY PerfecTV!

SKY PerfecTV/110

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI *

Other Wired Services

New Individual Subs.

SKY PerfecTV!

SKY PerfecTV!/110

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI *

Other Wired Services

Number of Churn {(Individual Sul

SKY PerfecTV!

SKY PerfecTV! 110

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI *

Other Wired Services

Net Addition (Individual Subs.)

SKY PerfecTV!

SKY PerfecTV/110

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI *

Other Wired Services

Individual Subs. at Period-End

SKY PerfecTV!

SKY PerfecTV!110

SKY PerfecTY! HIKARI *

Other Wired Services

Churn Rate (lndividual Subs.)

SKY PerfecTV!

SKY PerfecTV! 110

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI *

Other Wired Services




* April 1, 2006In March 2006, SKY Perfect Communications Inc. changed the name of its broadcasting service via FTTH from
HIKARI PerfecTV! to SKY PerfecTV/! HIKARI (The multichannel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima,
jointly operated with Energia Communications, Inc. and the channel lease service in Achi-mura, Nagano remain under the
name of HIKARI PerfecTV/)

© The number of new individual subscribers this period was 228,000, which represents a decline from the
same period last year. This was primarily attributable to a delay in subscriptions of single-family homes to
HIKARI SKY PerfectTV/, although subscriptions to the core SKY PerfectTV/ and SKY PerfectTV/ 110
showed favorable growth.

@ The chum rate for the period under review rose 1.2 points from the same period in the previous year to 9.5%
primarily as a reaction following the broadcast of FIFA World Cup™ Germany.

@ As a result, the number of individual subscribers at the end of the first half of FY2006 was 3,595,000, rising
178,000 compared to the same period last year.




2. Business Results

Financial Summary (From April 1 to September 30, 2006)

(Millions of Yen)

41,023

Period-End

Revenues
Operating Income
(Loss) 424
Ordinary Income 108
(Loss)
Net Income (Loss) -323
Total Assets 126,999 126,999 |
Net Asset* 89,387 -730 0.8% §9,387
Net Cash from :
Operating 2,706 992 36.7% 302 |
Activities
Net Cash from o g
Investing Activities -5,256 699 -3.3% 1,016 |
Net Cash from
Financing -2,283 387 -7.0% 63 |
Activities
Cash and Cash
Equivalents at 27,405 10,151 37.0% 27,405

Revenues

37,133

2.3%

Operating Income

623

370.3%

Ordinary Income

1,026

215.6%

Net Income 916 248.1% 7
Total Asset 120,096 |: 5.4% 120,096 L
Net Asset* 92,612 1.7% 92,612 |




Revenues increased 3.7% on a consolidated basis and 2.3% on a non-consolidated basis from the same
period last year, thanks to positive factors such as an increase in subscribers, favorable growth in ARPU
and the expansion of the businesses of consolidated subsidiaries compared with the same period a year

ago.

In terms of profit and loss, both ordinary income and net income returned to profit on a consolidated
basis, primarily reflecting a decline in marketing costs including sales incentives, despite the recognition
of promotional expenses for free broadcasting of the World Cup. Ordinary income increased 1,460
million yen year on year to 1,352 million yen, while net income soared 1,611 million yen to 1,288 million

yen.

In terms of consolidated cash flow, cash provided by operating activities was 3,669 million yen, mainly
because of an increase in net income, while cash used in investing activities was 4,556 million yen,
reflecting the absence of the expenditure on the acquisition of securities observed in the same period of
the previous year. Cash used in financing activities was 1,895 million yen, largely attributable to the
payment of dividends, although there was no acquisition of the company stock as there was last year. As a
result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of the first half of FY2006 were up 10,151 million yen from a
year ago, reaching 37,556 million yen.




3. Forecast for the Fiscal Year 2006 (from April 1. 2006 to March 31, 2007) <Referential>

(Millions of Yen)

New Individual Subs. 520 [ 1.9%

(Thousands) S

Net Addition in Individual Subs. 226 | AT A16.4%

(Thousands) ; :

Individual Subs. at Period-End 3,536 [ 189 5.3%

(Thousands) o

Totat Subs. at Period-End 4,106 189 4.6%

(Thousands)

Churn for Individual Subs 8.6% 0.8% —
Consolidated Results

Revenues 82,329 5,171 6.3%

Ordinary Income 106 | 894 843.4%

Net Income 3571 1,143 320.2%

Non-Consolidated Results

Revenues : 74,377 i 2,623 3.5%

Ordipary Income 3,261 2,739 84.0%

Net Income 3,480 2,520 12.4%

Dividend per Share for the FY 750yen — —

On Qctober 19, 2006, we slightly revised our forecast of full-year business results from our initial projection
announced on May 12, 2006. _

On a nor-consolidated basis, revenues remain unchanged from the initial projection at 77 billion yen. In
terms of profit and loss, although actual results for the first half exceeded our initial projection, we have left
ordinary income and net income unchanged at 6 billion ven, the same as the previous forccast, taking into
account the following factors: cxpenses for the antenna free installation campaign in SKY PerfectTV/
(124/128) services to be implemented in November 2006 in cooperation with broadcasters and a delay in
recording certain expenses until the second half, which we had projected for the first half.

On a consolidated basis, we anticipate that revenues will be 87.5 billion yen, 2.5 billion yen below the
previous forecast, mainly as a result of the effect of a delay in subscriptions to HIKARI SKY PerfectTV/ at the
end of the first half. In terms of profit and loss, we have left ordinary income and net income unchanged from
the previous forecast at 1 billion yen and 1.5 billion yen respectively, although actual results for the first half
exceeded initial projections. This primarily reflects our expectations of higher costs, including promotional
expenses for the subscriptions of singly-family homes to HIKARI SKY PerfectTV/, in addition to

non-consolidated factors.




{Note) Forward looking statements including plan, strategy or belief contained in this malterial are not past facts but are
forecasts based on the assumption or belief of our management judging from information available currently. Final decisions
related to investment are on the judgment of users themselves. Such forward-looking statements are not guaranteed of future
performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ from those in the looking-forward statements as &
result of various factors, including, (1) the economic environment surrounding our areas of business, in particular consumer
trends, (2) changes in legislation such as broadcasting laws and communications laws, particularly in the case of restriction of our
business or proposals to this effect or incase of, for example, new business entry by rival companies, and (3) our ability to
develop and continue to provide programs and services acceptable to customers in a fiercely competitive market characterized by
features such as remarkably rapid technical innovation in the digital technology field in particular and remarkably subjective and
changeable customer preferences in broadcasting business, However, factors that could influence our business results are not

limited to the above.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400  FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Notice of Basic Agreement of the Business Combination
Through Establishment of a Joint Holding Company

JSAT Corporation (President & CEOQ: Kivoshi Isozaki; Headquarter: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; “JSAT™) and SKY
Perfect Communications Inc. (President and Representative Director: Masao Nito; Headquarter: Shibuya-kn,
Tokyo; “SKY Perfect™; together with JSAT, the “Companies™) are pleased to announce that respective
meetings of the board of directors held on October 26, 2006 have resolved to conduct a business combination
(the “Business Combination™) by establishing a joint holding company, SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (“the
Holding Company™ through a joint share transfer (kyodo kabushiki iten; the “Share Transfer), subject to
preparation of the joint share transfer plan (the “Plan™), execution of the joint share transfer agreement (the
“Definitive Agreement’™), approval at their respective extraordinary shareholders” meetings, confirmation
from relevant regulatory authorities and the completion of other necessary procedures. The Companies, in
connection therewith, have entered into a basic agrecment of the Business Combination on October 26, 2006.

1. Purpose of the Business Combination

Based on equal partnership with mutual respect, the Companies will combine their management resources
to realize synergies to further develop the market of the multichannel pay TV in Japan, and to maximize their
corporate values through integrated business expansion and more efficient management to correspond with
the convergence of telecommunications and broadcasting industries.

2. Overview of the Business Combination
(1) Structure of the Business Combination

The Companies plan to conduct the Business Combination by jointly establishing the Holding Company
around April 2, 2007 through the Share Tramsfer, where the Companies will become wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Holding Company, subject to approval of their respective extraordinary shareholders’
meetings to be held in February 2007 and cenfirmation from relevant regulatory authorities.

The Companies may change through their discussion the structure for the Business Combination by the
Share Transfer should any significant difficulties arise during the course of the process.




{2) Schedule of the Business Combination

November 11, 2006 (tentative): Record date for extraordinary shareholders’ meetings for the approval
of the Share Transfer (the Companies)

Early January 2007 (tentative): Preparation of the Plan and the execution of the Definitive Agreement
{(the Companies) '

Early February 2007 (tentative): Extraordinary sharcholders’ meetings for the approval of the Share
Transfer (the Companics)

March 27, 2007 (tentative): Effective date of delisting of the shares of the Companies

April 2, 2007 (tentative): Effective date of registration and incorporation of the Holding

' Company and listing of the Holding Company shares
Mid-April 2007 (tentative): Date of delivery of share certificates (the Holding Company}

The Companies may change through their discussion the above schedule should any significant difficulties
arise during the course of the process.

(3) Share Exchange Ratio
The ratio of the number of shares of the Holding Company’s common stock to be allocated to the shares of
the Companies upon the Share Transfer (the “Exchange Ratio™) will be as follows:

Company name SKY Perfect JSAT
Exchange Ratio 1 4

Based on the Exchange Ratio, holders of SKY Perfect’s common stock will receive one share of the
Holding Company’s commen stock for each one share of the SKY Perfect’s common stock, and holders of
JSAT’s common stock will receive four shares of the Holding Company’s common stock for each one share
of the JSAT’s common stock.

With respect to the Exchange Ratio, SKY Perfect and JSAT have respectively retained Morgan Stanley
Japan Securities Co., Ltd. and Mermill Lynch Japan Securities Co., Ltd. as their financial advisors and asked
them to evaluate the Exchange Ratio as third party institutions. These financial advisors calculated the
Companies’ respective enterprise and equity values by utilizing the comparative stock price performance
method, DCF (Discounted Cash Flow) method and other relevant methods. Based on such valuation, SKY
Perfect and JSAT determined the Exchange Ratio after their negotiation and discussion.

However, should any significant change occur to affect the conditions upon which the calculation is based,
the Companies may discuss and change the Exchange Ratio.

(4) Application for the listing of the Holding Company shares

The Holding Company will apply to list its shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE). Although the date
of the listing will be determined based on the regulations including rules of the TSE, the listing of the shares
of the Holding Company is scheduled on April 2, 2007, the registration date of its incorporation. Along with
the Share Transfer process, the shares of SKY Perfect and JSAT are scheduled to be delisted from TSE as of
March 27, 2007.

(5) Convertible bonds issued by JSAT (with the maturity in March 2007)
Convertible bonds that are not converted to JSAT common stocks will be redeemed by JSAT in March
2007 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds.

(6) Stock acquisition rights (stock options) issued by the Companies
The treatment of stock acquisition rights will be announced upon preparation of the Plan and execution of
. the Definitive Agreement.




(7) Accounting treatment associated with the Business Combination

The accounting treatment associated with the Business Combination will be announced as soon as it is
determined. Whether goodwill will be recognized, the estimated amount of goodwall (if it is recognized) and
amortization period thereof will also be announced when it is determined.

(8) Treasury stocks of the Companies and shares of SKY Perfect owned by JSAT

The Holding Company’s stock will be allocated to treasury stock owned by the Companies and the shares
of SKY Perfect owned by JSAT in accordance with the Exchange Ratio (SKY Perfect: 1 and JSAT: 4). SKY
Perfect and JSAT will consider and determine the treatment of the Holding Company’s stock to be held by
the Companies as a result of the Share Transfer from a perspective of the combined group’s equity policy,
taking into account of options to use them as considerations in acquisitions for future M& A strategy and the
retirement of treasury stock to improve the group’s capital efficiency.

(9) Sharcholder register administrator
The sharcholder register administrator will be announced upon preparation of the Plan and execution of the
Definitive Agreement.

3. Synergies expected in the Business Combination
(1) Optimization of the satellite broadcasting operation and expansion of the multichannel satellite
broadcasting market

A vertical integration will enable the Companies to optimize the satellite broadcasting operation as a whole
by integrating satellite operation and platform business, whereas sub-optimal and separate operation has
caused certain operational and economic inefficiencies. The integration will also contribute to the further
growth of multichannel satellite pay TV market in Japan by combining financial and human resources of the
Companies to strengthen marketing activities, developing attractive contents, employing high definition
broadcasting, and introducing high-performance receivers to increase customer satisfaction

(2) Enhancement of horizontal development through scale expansion

With increase of financial and human resources, the combined group will be able to enhance their
horizontal expansion strategy to strengthen operation across multiple platforms, including cable services
using optical fibers, and content distribution services using the Internet and mobile phones. As a leader in
multichannel pay TV, the combined group will also be able to accelerate development of new businesses
including the development utilizing M& A_ In addition, the combined group will be able to further develop the
satellite communications business including combination of cable and wireless services and pursuing
overseas expansions based on broadcasting and communication businesses as our two mainstay operattons.

(3) Efficient operation of the combined group under a holding company structure

The Holding Company will be responsible for planning, operation, and controlling function of the
combined group, enabling them to perform an efficient group management with optimal financial and
investment decisions in more flexible and strategic manner.

4, Overview of the Business Combination Parties (conselidated) (as of the end of March 2006)

{1) Company name SKY Perfect Communications Inc. JSAT Corporation

(2) Description of business Multichannel pay TV platform Network- and image-related
services services using communication

satellites

(3) Date of incorporation November 1994 February 1985

(4) Headquarter Shibuyva-ku, Tokvo Chivoda-ku, Tokyo

(5) Representative Masao Nito, President and Kiyoshi Isozaki, President & CEO,
Representative Director Representative Director

4




(6) Paid-in capital 50,083 million yen 53,769 million yen
{7) Number of shares issued 2,270,365 shares 356,418 shares
{8) Sharcholders’ equity 53,999 million ven 82,888 million yen
(9) Total assets 133,171 million yen 169,733 mtllion yen
{10) Fiscal vear end March 31 March 31
{11) Number of emplovees 468 257
(12) Major customer Pay Per View lapan, Inc. NTT Communications Corporation
(13) Principal sMeholdm Sony Broadcast Media NTT Communications
and ownership ratio Co., Lid. 12.47% | Corporation 17.64%
Fuji Television Mizuho Trust &
Network, Inc. 12.47% | Banking Co., Ltd
ITOCCHU COI]JOl'ﬂtiOD (ITOCHU COI'pOTEthﬂ
(including Mizuho pension trust account) 13.99%
Trust & Banking Co., Japan Trustee Services
Lid. ATOCHU Bank, Ltd.
Corporation pension (Sumitomo Corporation
trust account)) 12.47% | retirement benefit
JSAT Corporation 6.91% | st account) 10.75%
Tokyo Broadcasting Japan Trustee Services
System, Inc. 5.68% Bank, Ltd.
’ (Mitsui & Co., Ltd.
retirement benefit trust
account) 9.40%
Nippon Television
Network Corporation 6.31%
(14) Major relationship banks | Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. Mizuhe Corporate Bank, Lid.
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Shinsei Bank, Ltd.
Ltd. and others Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ,
Lid
Japan Bank for International
Cooperation and others
5) Relationship between parties
Capital relationship JSAT owns 6.91% of the shares 1ssued by SKY

Perfect.

ISAT owns 49%, 20% and 10% of the shares
issued respectively by SKYPerfect Marketing
Co., Ltd., Pay Per View Japan, Inc. and Multi
Channel Entertainment Inc., which are
consolidated subsidiaries of SKY Perfect.

Human relationship

JSAT has seconded two employees to SKY
Perfect.

Business relationship

JSAT has consigned the uplink business to
SKY Perfect. JSAT also provides SKY Perfect
with satellite circuits, such as promotion
channels.




(16) Consolidated Results for the most recent three years

(Militon yen)

SKY Perfect JSAT
Fiscal year FY04/3 FY05/3 FY06/3 | FYO7/3E* FY04/3 FY05/3 FY06/3 FYO07/3E*
Sales 72,475 74,016 82,239 87,500 45,144 44,388 43,952 38,500
Operating 4,152 2,826 713)) - 10,965 8,063 2,636 10,200
income
Ordinary 4,853 3,681 106 1,000 9,962 7,512 2,309 10,200
income
Net income 4,384 3,709 357 1,500 6,460 4,077 (7,928) 6,000
Net income per 1,957.23 1,630.78 162.56 69673 | 1692650 | 11,233.68 | (22320.52) | 16,906.53
share (vyen)
Dividend per 500 750 750 750 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
share (ven)
Sharcholders’ 42,445.21 | 4133286 | 43,661.4] | 27693176 | 25887461 | 233,559.08 -
equity per
share (ven)

5. Overview of the Holding Company (Tentative)

(1) Company name: SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

{2) Description of business:
— The Holding Company will be responsible for the overall management of group businesses through
planning, operation and administration function to optimize group operations and manage the group
companies with delegated authoritics and responsibilities.

— The Holding Company will effectively use the management resources of the group and will plan and
execute group strategies designed to bolster profit growth and promptly realize synergies from the
Business Combination.

* Estimate for reference purpose only

(3) Location of Headquarter: Location of headquarter will be announced as soon as 1t is determined.

(4) Candidates for directors and corporate auditors:

Title Name Current Position
Chairman and Masanori Akiyama | JSAT Corporation, Director and Senior Managing
Representative Executive Officer
Director
President and Masao Nito SKY Perfect Communications Inc., President and
Representative Representative Director
Director
Director Hiroo Sumitomo JSAT Corporation, Senior Executive Officer
Director Ryoji Hirabayashi SKY Perfect Communications Inc., Managing Director

* The details of other directors and corporate auditors will be announced as soon as they are determined.

(5) Paid-in capital: Paid in capital will be announced as soon as it is determined.

(6) Number of shares to be issued:
The number of shares of the Holding Company to be issued at the time of establishment: 3,696,037
shares of common stock (Based on total number of outstanding shares of the Companies as of
September 30, 2006)

* The unit stock system will not be adopted.

{7) Fiscal year-end: March 31




(8) Independent auditor: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

(9) Forecast:
Forecast for the fiscal year ending in March 2008 will be announced as soon as it is determined. New

medium-term plan for the group will be prepared by the end of fiscal year ending in March 2007, which will
be announced as soon as the preparation is completed.

6. Ensuring the faimess, neutrality and transparency of the contract broadcasting, the telecommunications and
the platform businesses _

The group will be proactive in introducing new initiatives to ensure the fairness, neutrality and
transparency of our businesses, as the group will further operate satellite, platform, CS broadcasting, and
cable broadcasting businesses as a result of the Business Combination.

The group, as a contract broadcasting and telecommunications businesses operator, will continue to
comply with applicable laws and regulations such as the Broadcast Law and the Telecommunications
Business Law and provide contract broadcasting services based on terms and conditions reported to the
Minister of Internal Affairs and Communications and telecommunications services based on the contractual
conditions.

The group, as a platform business operator, will participate in the “Council Regarding the Role of
Platform” to be established by the Japan Satellite Broadcasting Association and review the current
“Guidelines Regarding Platform Business in Satellite Broadcasting.”

* For inquiries:

JSAT Corporation
Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division
TEL: 03-5219-7778 FAX: 03-5219-7876

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Public Relations and Investor Relations Department
TEL; 03-5468-2400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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L. Business Combination: Background and Purpose

SKY Perfect and JSAT: Current Situation "/SAT
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Japanese, US and UK Satellite Broadcasting
Structural Differences

Business Combination:
Background and Purpose

Drastic measures are needed for both companies to survive intensified competition among
wmedia and to realize the growth potential of multichannel pay TV
—




II. Business Combination: An Overview

Schedule leading up to the business combination @.]SAT ’

XY FprfptT

B October 2006: Basic agreement concluded

B Early January 2007 (tentative): Preparation of the Plan and the execution of
the Definitive Agreement

B Early February 2007 (tentative): Extraordinary sharcholders' meetings for the

approval of the Share Transfer
B Around end of March 2007 (tentative): SKY Perfect Communications/JSAT delisted
B April 2007 (tentative): Launch of holding company

Listing of holding company
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Business combination through establishment of a holding company by joint stock
transfer :

Business name of the holding company:

SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

Business Combination Format

-

100% 100%

S5AT o,

Share Transfer Ratios

RO lsng sharcholders in SKY Perfect Communications and JSAT will
. become sharcholders in the holding company through joint stock transfer

The following ratios shall apply to the transfers:

B One SKY Perfect Communications share entitles the holder to ONE share
in the new holding company

B One JSAT share entitles the holder to FOUR shares in the new holding
company




Composition of Principal Corporate Executives

Holdmg Company (cand:dates)

M Chairman & Representative Director: Masanorl Akl) ama (JSAT)
_ B President & Representative Director: Maqan N:to (SKY Perfect)
&, B Director: Hiroo Sumitomo (JSAT) - I

. u D:rcctor Ryoji leahayashl (SKY Perl'ect)

'fEIBusmess Subs:dlary SKY Perfect Commumcatlons . I
. @ Chairman & Representative Director: Hiroyuki Shinoki . :
ol Premdent & Representatlvc Dnrector Masao Nlto L

Busmess Subs:dlary JSAT S
oy l Presulent & CEO Representanve Dlrector- Klyoshl lsozalu:

1o

IIL Business Combination: Significance and Synergies
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on 4 5AT |58,
Synergies Anticipated from the Business Combination ¥ I

,
Synergy 1 JSAT Ef’;é

< Pre-combination >

< Post-combination>>




Optimization of DTH Business Operations
and Further Expansion of the DTH Market (1)

45AT

Pre-combiration
ipartia) optimization)

Service fees |

Post-combination
(full sptimization}

Service fre1

transponder use

Current situation Problems Solutions Benefits
. + lategration of = Maximization of
Sm!(m\ ::: ﬂ::::q atd platforms and satellite services for
P operation, and shared broadcasters
maximization within increased
thedr respective profit peals {
busk seenal «  Beficr scrvices for sabscriptions)
T subscribers » Enhanced customer

14

Optimization of DTH Business Operations
and Further Expansion of the DTH Market (2}

I ® HIHL Enobles gher comomusicn mirs bamg % mmage Codeng mathad whe b mors atvirsed thas WEEG-d 4 b Ang 10mabty vorpion of the cwmnt WPEG- rosd<an oy mathod

+8 DVB-B7 Commared wrih the DVE-S wienderd ks glsbel savelo
E3tal e CHCuIT bl T dus B AdvRces A Chann] Eadng and modulllan

T wnd ders e e - wizrdard festuring un aperoetate X e ke W

l
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Optimization of DTH Business Operations VVSAT ;
and Further Expansion of the DTH Market (3) 4 "'

14

Synergy 2
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Enhancement of Horizontal Development
through Expansion of Scale (1)

FY05 Revenuoes

FYO5SEBITDA |

¥¢ hillion

- Business |

Dq..-m:rlp@ipflguf :

» SKY PerfecTV!
HIKARI

® [P broadcasting -

yoD
® Mobile

# These Financial results and data are based on Japanese GAAP.

1

Enhancement of horizontal Development
through Expansion of Scale (2)

45AT

(7

Viewers & Consumers, -

[

Rental STB

-

DVRs

Cable scrvice
backbone
—* Stahility):

{ (Fhcal 2005 prrforimnce
i
H Hmply added]

New business

Strengthening of contents aggregation

ﬂm;}‘m with broademtery(— Farther exbemce) /O obirid dovestmest (- Eabuber Anattchd power 7/ Cuavert (0 1 visien (—+Acceberase)
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Synergy 3

20

Further expansion of the group with enhancements /SAT 'q
. . J
to holding company functions

 <PhaeOne> . i

e HE l i [
< '

Image of Future Development

- ‘<Phase Two (Image) > - ,;. '




Development and Expansion of the v
Communications Business (1) J/SAT

l Stable supply of domestic/overseas satelhte m{'rastructure
T 3f - As social infrastructure '
g As salclhte broadcastmg mfrasuucture

Busmess expansnon into satelhte-dommant sectors :

' Bndge the dlgltal dmde
- Disaster prevention

] Honzontalfvert:cal expansnon into satelllte
conuguous/development apphcatlon sectors

Development and Expansion of the
Communications Business (2}

‘Enhanced earmng,s in exlslmg satetlite mmmumcanon busmess and
‘expansion into satellite dominant sectors

>

Remote
Sensing

Poslitioning

101235 uonvapdde
¥ Junudofeaag

" Existing Satellile
Communications Secturs;

rSatellil.: Contiguous Sector >
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Toward an assurance of fairness, neutrality,
and transparency /SAT

As the '-gruup, through management integration, will be jointly operating a
satellite business, platform business, CS broadcasting business, and cable
‘broadcasting business, we will be taking more pruacme steps to ensure fairness,
neutraht) and transparency than ever before.

' B - As a consigned hrnadcasterltelecummumcatmns pruvnder

Asi in the past, we will comply with related regulations such as Broadcast ;
"l_,awfl' elecommunications Business Law, and will undertake the provision of
. consigned broadcasting service under the tei'ms and conditions of provision
- reported to the Minister of Public Management, Home Affairs, Posts and

: Telecummumcahuns and the pronsmn of telccommumcanuns services as

. specified.
l Asa platform prowder
‘We w1l| attend the “Conference on Plntform Sy‘:tems estahllshed by Japan
Satellite Broadcasting Association, and are considering a reexamination of the
“current “Guidelines for platform business relating to satellite broadcasting™

4

IV. Mid-Term Goals of the New Company
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: (billior yen)

Elrn!ngl forecast for the fiscal year - . SKY Perfect [ sAT Simply added
ending in March 2007 - N (Consolidated) . i(Consolidsted) -

- 815 385 1260
oo 102 12

et e 110 1sfﬁ‘f*:fz}.*':;t’is.’o’:;L;Q*f-:' 75

T a1 T 331 1697 3028

? _;.-=;.;.;_.;;;v...,;.". R j' o ‘1'41.4' R 100.#” . 242.15 .‘

© Operating revenues -, - "?': - DR

Calmla!ed from the rlumhet ofsharu usucd {su:!udmg reacq\med stock) as of the md of Man':h 2006
uﬂmeshmepnmuofomberlo IODS - . e

- -
+ These Financial results and data are based on Japanese GAAP.

Med-Term Target Image of the New Company J/SAT

: Therelease of the mtegrated group ’s busmess plan

. lSl to be prepared by the end of March 2007
) Both SKY Perfect and JSAT are to revnse thelr o
:‘enstmg mld term busmess plans.‘ A
‘ Irnage of the mtegrated groups mld-term goal for -
2011 | R D
"N‘umber of subscrlbers " 7 to8 'rh:iil-io'o":-;"' o
N (mcludmg subscnbers for moblle and IP hased sen1cea.)
Revenues o . 200 to 300 b:lhon yen -

. * T‘hcse Fmancml resulu und daxa are bns:d on Japanese (_.MP
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Disclaimer

The plans, forecasts, and strategies pertaining to future business profitability
-stated in this document are based on judgments by the management of this group
that have been obtained from currently available data. Accordingly, we ask that
you miake no investment decisions that rely solely on these business forecasts.
_Please understand that, due to a number of important factors, actual performance
‘may produce results that differ significantly from these business forecasts.

<Forinq uiries regarding this doclﬁﬁéﬁi and=lR;i-e]nted.matt.,er5 of the comps.tﬂes)

JSAT Coi’pumtimg a o - Ii‘nrporal-e Communications & Iovestor Relations Divisien
Sl LT AR © L .. TEL:0)S118TTTR
SKY Perfect Communications Inc. Fubdic Retations and Retati :
ikt _ L TEL:0354E-5400

[T}
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Summary of

Consolidated Statement of Income

[Millions of Yen)

........ H/ 1H . 20 2 -

------ ‘ 5 E Difference EY2005 FY200 Diffevence
Number of Now Individual Suhscrl_bcrs 247 120 a4 26
{thousands) 3

Number ef Individual Subscribars at 3

Period-End (thousands} - - - -, . 3417 34T 3,585 +178
Revenues: o . 41,023 20,669 21,547 +878
. Subscriber-Related Ravenues :' .~ 25,212 12,676 13,110 +433
- Transmission-Related Revenues’ 4,589 2,306 2314 +7
* Other Fees and Revenues | 11,221 5,686 6123 +437
Operating Income . ~... : = < 41,447 20,672 20,345 327
‘Ordinary Income® - 424 a 1202 | +1.208
Met income . q08 | 9% 1262 +1,163
Retained Earnings © an 218 1302 | +1521
Total Deallng A“!‘“.'f‘? of Subscription 69,786 F 5,135 35,607 472
Fees and Others - - -

EBITDA : i - 1832 1,058 2724 | +1,664

© 2006 SKY Parfect Convrumcations Inc | AF Rights Reserved

Results of Consolidated

Subsidiaries for the 1H/2006

April 110 Seplember 30, 2006 {Millions of Yen)

L. Dnta SKY . Pay Cabe ... SXY

- Network | Perfact | Semarn b - P ’ - Tolavis Porfect Co

Company ::'lnr Markst & Y . v::. Opﬁ:nf! nM::: Ve Others®
Name Compar: | " ing Ine. Japan, . tne. Corpor- | Think o

'''' ador i Co.ltd Inc. wicn Ca., Led. s

e : - : i | Efimin-

-Major Area Cummmer | STRRE b L o] Gt | SO atinns

q’ Eusiness Man pgement %mu Seraes -T‘Imm I-'::'m

% of equity

“held by SKY 51.0%; 51,0%: 80.3%; 65.0% 100.0%; 77.3%: 100.0%

*. Perlect

Revenus B213: 1371, 625 7.909. 616 1,554}  265| -15.004/

‘Recurring

* Income 537! -367 -13!  300{ -1.894; 199) -157 -489};
(Loss)

Net Income 534] -3s8f 130 172 -1581) 120 -158)  608f

© {Loss} :

*1 Others include SKY Perfect Mabile, Information Network Koriyama, CS Now , Japan MediArk and other companies that
has minor impact on consolidated financial results.
*2 Equity method companies include System Create Inc., | SPORTS Broadcasting Corporation and Nikkatsu Cerporation.

4
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Number of New Subscribers and Churn Rate§

(Thousands)
120 —— —— - ‘ 12.0%
100 | 1 100%
B0 1 BO%
Free antenna instakalion 2006 FIFA Work] Cup Germany
60 campaign (Apr. to Det. 2005} {Jun, 1o . 2006) GO

Lol
20
s
Apr May Jun, Jud Aug Sep.
CEE Mo of rew individusl subscriber (FYOS)  BEED Mo of 1w individualsutacribet (FYOB)
--wee- Indnadual churm e (FYO5) v ircihual chum rate (FY05)
5 © 2006 SKY Parfect Gomvmunications Ino | AF Rights Rrserved

ARPU (CS124/128 + CS110)

Subscription Fee por Subscribar SubscnharRelatm:.l Revenuos per
Subscribor
and Dent
4000
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SAC (CS124/128 + CS110)

Total SAC

MHeas o Yen)

SAC per Subecriber

Cend

duAN3

1326 .
3788 . G ‘ :
. . - H ©,DD4a
e 1L 3o
1M/ FY2006 ) H/FYZ006 TH/FY2086 H/FY2006
it revies T ey it SO
H O5akex

T Espenses Pelstng
cev Free Drosgicaciiog

EN Ayt 15INE £ RPN EeS O Advariimng sxpences

* Expenses paid by SKY Perfect Cornmunications and SKYPerfect Marketng.
" Public relations costs are excluded from advertising exg
* Exp lating free broadcasting is excluded from SAC per subscriber.

7 © 2006 SKY Parfact Communications Irc., AF Rights Reserved

Summary of Consolidated Balance Sheets

Batance Sheets: Consolidated (Millions of Yen)
March September "
2006 2006 Difference
Current Assets 58 817 62,556 +3.638
Fixed Assets 74,253 57.799 -16,454
Total Assets 133,171 120,355 -12.815
Current Liabilites 25,848 28,347 +2,499
Fixed Liabilties 8,505 3,352 -5,153
Total Liabilities 34,353 31,699 -2,654
Coryron Stock 50,083 50,083 +0
Capital Surpluses 43,995 43,895 +0
Earned Surpluses 4628 4,291 -336
Treasury Stock -10,282 -10,282 +J
Total Shareholders' Equity 88,425 88,088 -336
Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Securities 5574 -4 032 8,606
Minority Interests 4818 4 599 -218
]Nd Assets 98 817 88,656 -10,161
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 133,171 120,355 -12,815

* March figures are ratroactively adjusted to the newly revised accounting standards.

g © 2005 SKY Purfect Communisations Irc. Al Rights Reserved




Summary of Consolidated Cash Flows

Balance Sheets; Consclidated (Milliors of Yen)
W LI Dif )

Fyoos | FY2008 erence

Net Cash from Operating Activities +2,708 +3,699 +993

Net Cash from Investlng Activities -5,256 | -4 556 +700

Nat Cash from Fmancung Activities. 228310 -1,895 +388

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes +0 [ - - -

Netincrease in Cash and Cash. S

Equivalents -~ -4.833 ~ 2754 +2,079

Cash and Cash Equwalenls at Penod- . oo

End {A) - : 27,405 . 37556 10,151

Cash and Nagohabie Securities at . .

Period-End (B) - ‘ 41006 | 36,161 -5,745

Total Anmount of Fund ((B)+Securmes .

fot Financial Instruments) 67,382 56,899 -10.483

© 2006 SKY Parfect Communicaiors. Irc. AF Rtz Rescrved
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Revision of
Business Results Forecast for FY2006

Number of Subscribers Annualized Chumn Rate
(Individual Subscribers
Ongnat Onginat
Forecast Forscast
New Individial Subs. 530
Ne_l Inctease 206 5.9%
Individual Subs. at 3742
Flacal YearEnd )
Total Subs. at
Fiscal Year-End 4312

Buginess Results Forecast

Consolldaled Honconsolidated
S Cnginal ! . Ongial a :
' Full Figea) Year | Forecox Differonce | ¢oocast |iBarecast:|Dnerence
Revenues 90,000 87,500 2,500 77.000 72,000 -
Ordlnary Income 1.000 1,000 - 5.000 5,000 -
Net Incoma 1.500 1,500 - 6.000 8,000 -

"1 Farecast of the number of new individuat subscribers is 530 thousand (unchanged). However, some changes in the
breakdown have been rmade.
[SKY PerfecTV/ : 300 thousands, SKY PedecTV/ 110; 180 thousands, Wired services: 50 thousands)

*2 Forecast for annual dividends is unchanged at ¥750.

11 © 2006 5XY Perfect Communicationn Irc . AF Reghts Ampriid

Business Fields of
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Basic Policy on Content Aggregation and
Acquisition of Broadcasting Rights for J.League

B Pursue of content aggregallon strategy with assorted channels own ||
contems and mvestment in contents

l Seiectwe investment m own contents aiming to improve its
prof tablllty .

I Acqmsmon of broadcastmg rlghts for J League

v

~—Acqmred an exclusive -
broadcasting rights for the :
ears 2006 to 2010, and-
.. become its official
. broadcaster throughout the
period ;.-
: .—-IF' and mobile broad castlng
ight also acquired
anmng to conduct regional
marketlng in tie-up with 31
J League teams

13 © 72006 5KY Periect Communications Inc, AR Rights Reserved

Featured Programs and Contents

B 2006 Volleyball World Champlonshlps Japan

About the half of the all games, 54 games each
fer women and men

Games of Japan and other championship leaders

. inthe first round. All the games thereafter,

. October 3t to December 3, 2006 .

B Movies / Christmas
100 Movies To Cry In (November)
Christmas programs {December)
- (animation, movies, music programs,
. Qrama_s_, etc.} )

I Senes Programs
E Featured programs in December o fgﬁmmmr&
Motor sports, music (100 shows and 2006

. top chart), animation (Gundam movies},
.+ dramas (Lost, season 2), movies, elc.




Content Investment by g_
SKY Perfect Well Thmk

o }Released on October 28

. “Heavenly Forest” v -
- Staring Aoi Mlyazaki and Hiroshi Tamakr
" Awaited pictoriatization of a hit nove! wrrtten

o by Takup ichrkawa IR

Released on October 28
. “Rambow Song”
: Starmg Hayato Ichihara, Jyuri Ueno and Yuhoi

: Shunjl bwai's first producing film. A rnasterprece
o of mowes on belng young : ‘

f’;' . Shchedufed release on December 23 |
4L assie” . Ce
[: Staring Peter Oloole and Smantha Morton
';5 A dignified Enghsh movie faithful to the original Lassie stonj
15 © 2006 SKY Ferfut Communcations Inc . A Rights Reserved

WOWOW on SKY PerfecTV!

FZ:;,WOWOW to start broadcasting -~ -
. on SKYPerfecTV'
Name . . WOWOW

- Chi, number Co 330 : o
. Subscnptlon fee: - 2,100 yen /month {Incl. tax).

(WOWOwW Registration fee: . S 3,150 yen) '
T{____\Broadcastlng to commence :_f Dec 1 2006
":.;;"::.Subscrlptlon applications 1o open N Nov 15 2006

A
16 © 2006 SKY Parfect Commumcations i . AF Rights Rescrved




High Definition Broadcasting
on SKY PerfecTV!

O Aim to commence HD broadcasting on SKY PerfecTV!
from summer 2008 using H.264 technology
Summer 2008 10 HD channels to commence broadcasting
Fall 2009 20 more HD channels to cormmence broadcasting
Total 30 HD channels

sD About180channelsbemg broadcasted -

HD

17 © 2006 SKY Periact Communicelions Inc, Al Rights Reserved

Multi-Room Viewing

1% © 2006 5KY Partect Cormurcationn Tnc . AF Rights Reserved




Free Antenna Installation Campaign g

Promote subscriber acquisition
in cooperation with the broadcasters

Strong appeal to consumers with promotions
at stores and on TV commercials

19 © 2006 SKY Parfact Communcatons Irc. AF Rights Acserved
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SKY PerfecTV! 110

21 © 7006 $KY Perfect Communicetions Ire . AF Rghis Rescrred

Number of Subscribers of
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI

Condominiums o, Detached Homes
140 . !Mﬂ 2.762
130 0
1z
1500
1p ;!
100 1900
0 .
%0
80
\ 7.?‘ : !
™ Ape. May Jan. Jul. Auwp. Sep.
] B Gurwitative number of
subscribers
%0 A Niwenhar nf new sphepribers
Q Number of househelds
<« within properties that
have approved service
o provision
20 B Number of householdes
within properties
18 currently receiving
: service
] = Lol B Of multichannet
broadcasting service
S N
& ubo'\sm\o\\\td LN ) o bocrbare
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Sales Activities for SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI

23 € 2006 SKY Purfuc| Communicatinns I, AP Rights Raserved

Visual Identities of the Sales Promotion

News papers, transport advertising,

magazines, etc,

Tie-up advertisina with NTT East's B FLET'S
40 :

TV commercials

In-store advertising at home
i appliance stores

} Stand alane adverlising of

B SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI

24 © 2006 SKY Purfect Commumations Ire:. AF Ryghts Rrsenned
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SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI and
Other Wired Services

Ll CUrrentIy provide SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI services in Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya
...~ . Metropolitan Area by using NTT's optical fiber networks. -
‘= Also providing Other Wired Services in local areas.

[As of August 2005]

[ &J I Al rights resmrved

General Notes to This Material

Financiat information in this material Is prepared under Japanese GAAP unless mentioned otherwise.

“Sales Incentives™ maan sales incentives paid lo the manufacturers and retailers of our sek.lop boxes uu:urdmg fo the number of
new subscribers and are Commissions 1o ales Agems inthe | Ma]ur Iterns and Amount oul of the Saks and Ganeral Expansas in
the note of he financial statements. -

Number of Subscribers .
Number of indvidual Subscriders ’

Subscribers who agreed with Puy-Subsmpﬁoﬂ Agreement und have bem acnnlry paymg mmpﬁm lee

--Number of Total Registrabons:

The total numbers of prowvisional subscribers before executing Pay—Subsu'rptm Agreernent, Instutional subscribers Inciuding
.. retaders exhitvton end registrations for technical development in eddibon to DTH subscnbers.

« ., “Total Deadng Amount of Subscripion Feas” is used fo represent the scale of the subscription fees of our company for convenence
. and previously called as ~Totai Biling Amound of Subscripton Fees”, meaning Subscripton Fees (Flat, PPV and Own conteri) +
Reqstraton Fee + Basic Fee + Corporate Subscription Fee, in this presernhan matenai.

EBITDA was caicuiated as Opemting profifloss) +Depreciation expenses to Net profifioss) + bss of minority interests +
Corporate tax, Residen! tax and Business tax + (merest payment + Depreciatjon expenses.

Forward looling stalements including plan, strategy or bele! cortained in this rmatenal are nof past facts bl are forecasts based
on the assumpbon or beke! of oUr managemen dging from information available cuTently. Final decisions refated to irvesiment
are on the judgmend of users themsedves. Such forward-looking statements are nol guaranteed of fulre performance and nvoive
{isks and uncertainties, and actual resufts may differ from those in the looking-forward sialements as a result of varous faciors.
includng. (1) e economic ervironment surounding our areas of business, in particuiar consumer trends, (2) changes in
fegisiation such as broadcasting kaws and communicatons laws. particudarly in the case of restricion of our business or proposals
1 K Bis effect or incase of, for example, new business entty by rival companies, and (3) our ability to develop and continue to
. provide programs and services scceptable o customers in a fiercely competibve markel charecierized by featres such ss
. Temarkably rapid technical innovation in the digitat technoiogy field in particumr and remarkabty subjectve and changeable
cusiomer preferences in broadcastng pusiness, However, factors that could inflience our business results are not limited to the

. <Far any Inquiries about this material or investor relations of ouf company)
SKY Perfect Communications Inc. PR & IR Department

(E-mall : ir@skypetfectv.co)p TEL : +81.3.5468.7800} .

6 © 2006 SKY Parfact Communcations tre , AF Rghts Reserved
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SKY Perfect Communications Inc. 82—5113
News Release . ~p
S ﬁ' ' November 2, 2006
S PLLOE A S Masao Nito
v President and Representative Director

Yo SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
(TSE I1st Section, Code No. 4795)

For any inquiries, please call:

Tomonari Niimoto

General Manager

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-5400)

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of October 2006

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative  Director; Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) announced the number of total
registrations and individual subscribers as of the end of October 2006

New Subscnbers

45,069 33 452
Churn 40,963 32,788
Churn Rate*’ 11.8% 10.9%
Net Increase 4,106 664
Cumulative Total 4,182,161 3,595,412
* The total column shows the summed-up figure of cumulative totals of DTH Services and Wired Broadcasting

Services

dmduai Subscrbe

New Subscribers 19,557
Chum 27,535

Churn Rate*’ 10.2%
Net Increase -7.978
Cumulative Total 3,717,472 3,236,808

SKY PerfecTV/ 11 : ndividiial Subscriber:

New Subscribers 22,445 11,962
Chumn 10,461 4,718
Churn Rate*’ 31.9% 19.3%

Net Increase 11,584 7,244
i 405,240 300,320
22,712 537:128

New Subscribers 1.155 .l .3 373

Churn 133 132
Churn Rate** 9.1% 9.5%
Net Increase 1.022 1.201

Cumulative Total 18,562 17,956




New Subscribers 557 600

Churn 403 403
Churn Rate*’ 11.9% 12.1%
Net Increase 154 197

Cumulative Total 40,887 40,328

g s 449 284

*1

*2

*3

*4

*5

Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay- subscription agreement
(provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV/ only), institutional subscribers including retailers exhibition and
registrations for technical development in addition to individual subscribers.

Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have been actually paying
subscription fee.

Monthly Churn Rate: The chum rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number of churns into
yearly basis.

Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month /Total subscribers at the end of the previous month x 12
months

The muiticharmel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, jointly operated with Energia
Communications, Inc. and the channel lease service in Achi-mura, Nagano, that uses available fiber-optic
network bandwidth will remain under the name of “HIKARI PerfecTV/F”

Other Wired Broadcasting Services: Other Wired Broadcasting Services refer to the number of multichannel
broadcasting contract using SKY Perfect’s digital broadcasting system, including cable television, excluding
SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI.

The breakdown of properties that have approved SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI and properties
receiving the service as of the end of October 2006.

Number of propertics : 606 900

Number of houscholds** 70,984 72,704

*6

7

*8

Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each month, have
concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) provision agrecment.
This figure also includes some properties for which service provision will commence in the following month or
later, depending on when construction will be completed,

Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month, broadcasting
services (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) are being provided and which are being charged
for such.

The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc,

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399



SKY Perfect Communications Inc. e 6113
News Release B

November 13, 2006
Masao Nito
President and Representative Director
SKY Perfect Communications Inc,
(TSE 1st Section, Code No. 4795)
For any inquiries, please call:
Temonari Niimoto
General Manager
Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Concessions for Victims of a Tornado
in Saroma-cho, Hokkaido, in Relation to December Billing Amounts

SKY Perfect Communications Inc., together with the 108 CS satellite broadcast business-related
companies forming the Japan Satellite Broadcasting Assoctation (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Chairman:

Banjiro Uemura), today submitted the attached press release with respect to the above matter.

The impact of this matter on the Company’s consolidated financial results is negligible.

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399




November 13, 2006
Japan Satellite Broadcasting Association
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Concessions for Victims of a Tornado in Saroma-cho, Hokkaido,

in Relation to December Billing Amounts

The 108 CS satellite broadcast business-related companies forming the Japan Satcllite Broadcasting
Association (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Chairman: Banjiro Uemura) and SKY Perfect Communications
Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Masao Nito) have decided to
offer concessions to subscribers living in Saroma-cho, Hokkaido, where the Disaster Relief Act has been
applied in the wake of damage caused by a tornado. According to the details outlined below, it was decided
that subscribers to “SKY PerfecTV/” and “SKY PerfecTV/ 110” in the area would be exempt from paying
their December bill (monthly basic fee, the monthly subscription fee for “SKY PerfecTV/” and “SKY
PerfecTV! 110” including the fee for PPV programs, and the monthly fee for the program guide), if they
apply for the exemption and it is deemed that their viewing has been hampered by the damage caused by the

tornado.
Details

1. Applicable areas (As of November 7, 2006)
Saroma-cho, Tokoro-gun, Hokkaido

2. Breakdown of the applicable fees
Monthly basic fee, the monthly subscription fee for “SKY PerfecTV/” and “SKY PerfecTV!/ 1107
including the fee for PPV programs, and the monthly fee for the program guide.
* Amounts will vary according to the subscription details of each subscriber.

3. Customer inquiries

TEL: 0120-085-550 (10:00 to 20:00, 365 days a year)




SKY Perfect Communications Inc. HILE 35;5113

News Release

November 29, 2006
Masao Nito
President and Representative Director
SKY Perfect Communications Ine.
(TSE 1st Section, Code No. 4795)
For any inquinies, please call:
Tomonan Niimoto
General Manager
Public Relations and Imvestor Relations Dept,
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Notification of establishment of
Multimedia Broadcasting Planning LL.C, a joint venture

SKY Perfect Communications, Inc. (head office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President & Representative Director:
Masao Nito) together with four companies; Fuji Television Network, Inc. (head office: Minato-ku, Tokyo;
President & COO: Koichi Murakami), ITOCHU Corporation (head office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; President &
CEQ: Eizo Kobayashi), NTT DoCoMo, Inc. (head office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President & CEO: Masao
Nakamura), and Nippon Broadcasting System, Inc. (head office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President: Hiroshi
Isohara), today submitted the attached news release with respect to the establishment of a joint limited
liability company (LLC) named Multimedia Broadcasting Planning 1.LC (MMBPF).

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400  FAX: 03-5468-9399




November 29, 2006

Fuji Television Network, Inc.
ITOCHU Corporatton

NTT DoCoMo, Inc.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Nippon Broadcasting System, Inc.

7 Notification of establishment of
Multimedia Broadcasting Planning LL.C, a joint venture

The five companies Fuji Television Network, Inc. (head office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Koichi Murakami,
President & COO), ITOCHU Corporation (head office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Eizo Kobayashi, President &
CEQ), NTT DoCoMo, Inc. (head office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; Masao Nakamura, President & CEOQO), SKY
Perfect Communications, Inc. (head office: Shibuya-ku, Tokye; Masao Nito, President & Representative
Director), and Nippon Broadcasting System, Inc. (head office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; Hiroshi Isohara,
President) have agreed to establish a joint limited liability company (LLC) named Multimedia Broadcasting
Planning LLC (MMBP). It is the mission of the new company to research new multimedia services applying
the Integrated Services Digital Broadcasting—Terrestrial (ISDB-T) system {developed in Japan) with a view
to furthering the spread of digital broadcasting in Japan, and to make an appeal for its effectiveness so that
mobile multimedia broadcasting applying this system will be allotted the band now occupied by terrestrial

analogue TV broadcasting upon the conclusion of the latter.

The five companies possess outstanding record and know-how in the respective related fields. By pooling
their talents through MMBP, they hope to make full use of this band to diversify their supply of contents,
toward the goal of creating new multimedia services that will help to heighten the information environment
for Japanese people. The ISDB-T system has won worldwide recognition for its excellence. It is already in
use for regular terrestrial digital broadcasting in Japan, and has also been adopted by Brazil. We at MMBP

are committed to the further advancement of this system while conceiving and promoting new services with

it.




@ Qutline of MMBP:

Name Multimedia Broadcasting Planning LLC
Representative company Fuji Television Network, Inc.
Representative business executor Ryosuke Yokoi

(Executive Vice President,

Fuji Television Network, Inc.)

Head office address 2-4-8 Daiba, Minato-ku, Tokyo

Date of establishment ' December 6, 2006 (tentative)

Capital ¥30,000,000

Interest of business execution companies equal interest of 20% each
<Major business>

1. Demonstration and promotion of mobile multimedia broadcasting systems applying the ISDB-T system
2. Technical studies concerning the same system
3. Examination of specific service models related to the system

4. Other activities

<Business execution companies>

Fuji Television Network, Inc.

(head office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Koeichi Murakami, President & COO)

ITOCHU Corporation

(head office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Eizo Kobayashi, President & CEQ)

NTT DoCoMo, Inc.

(hsad office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Masao Nakamura, President & CEQ)

SKY Perfect Communications, Inc.

(head office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; Masao Nito, President & Representative Director)

Nippon Broadcasting System, Inc.

(head office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; Hiroshi Isohara, President)
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EA R Masao Nito
R P A President and Representative Director
CUTILRA L SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(TSE 1st Section, Code Na. 4795)
For any inquiries, please call:
Tomonari Niimoto

General Manager

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of November 2006

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director; Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) announced the number of total
ations and individual subscribers as of the end of November 2006

New Subscribers T 45476 29,123

Churn 40,026 30,882

Chumn Rate*’ 11.5% 10.3%

Net Increase 5,450 -1,739

Cumulative Total 4,187,611 3,593,653
* The total column shows the summed-up figure of cumulative totals of DTH Services and Wired Broadcasting

Services.

v Total Subscnbers? dividual: Subscribers*?

New Subscribers 19,503 16,872

Chumn 28,358 26,842

Churn Rate*’ 9.2% 10.0%

Net Increase -8,855 -9.970

Cumulative Total 3,708,617 3,226,838

SKY PerfecTV. 11 Total Subscribers* ndividual: Subscrib

New Subscribers 23 882 10,313

Chumn 11,042 3,421

Churn Rate** 32.7% 13.7%

Net Increase 12,840 6,892

Cumulative Total 418,

New Subscribers 1,423 1.381

Churn 139 132
Churn Rate*’ 9.0% 8.8%
Net Increase 1,284 1,249

Cumulative Total 19,846 19,205




New Subscribers

Churn

Churn Rate**

Net Increase

rpadcasting Servic

*1

*2

*3

*4

*5

Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay- subscription agreement
(provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV! only), institutional subscribers including retailers exhibition and
registrations for technical development in addition to individual subscribers.

Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have been actually paying
subscription fee.

Monthly Churn Rate: The churn rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number of churns into
yearly basis.

Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month /Total subscribers at the end of the previous month x 12
months

The multichannel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, jointly operated with Energia
Communications, Inc. and the channel lease service in Achi-mura, Nagano, that uses available fiber-optic
network bandwidth will remain under the name of “HIKARI PerfecTV/?

Other Wired Broadcasting Services: Other Wired Broadcasting Services refer to the number of multichannel
broadcasting contract using SKY Perfect’s digital broadcasting system, including cable television, excluding
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARL

The breakdown of propertics that have approved SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI and properties
receiving the service as of the end of November 2006.

- TECEIVIRE SCIVICE:

Number of properties 649 9335

Number of households*® 75,463 75,968

*6

*7

*3

Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each month, have
concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) provision agreement.
This figure aso includes some properties for which service provision will commence in the following month er
later, depending on when construction will be completed.

Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month, broadcasting
services (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) are being provided and which are being charged
for such.

The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Change in Name of
110-Degree CS Digital Broadcasting Service “SKY PerfecTV! 110”
—-The new name “e2 by SKY PerfecTV/” in place from February 1, 2007--

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) announces that it has decided fo change the name of its 110-degrec CS digital
broadcasting service from “SKY PerfecTV! 110” to “e2 by SKY PerfecTV/”, The new name is set to be
mtroduced on Febx;uary 1, 2007. The details are as follows.

New service name (English name): e2 by SKY PerfecTV/

New logos:

2 by SKY PerfecTV! is a representation of two aspects that characterize the service. One is easy entry,
which means that users of digital TV sets can easily enter into subscriptions. The other is easy entertainment,
which means that subscribers to the service can readily enjoy 72 finely selected channels. The 110-degree CS
digital broadcasting service was launched in July 2002 with the use of communication satellites (CS)
positioned at longitude 110 degrees east, which share the same orbital slot as the broadcasting satellites {BS}.
At present, it provides a total of 72 television channels, including two for high-definition TV services and data
broadcasting channels and serves more than 400,000 subscribers (as of the end of November 2006).

The existing name of SK'Y PerfecTV/ 110, which derives from the orbital slot of the satellites, created some
confusion in the minds of consumers about the distinction—in name and in service—from the SKY PerfecTV/
(124/128 services) platform. With the change in service name from SKY PefecTV/ 110 to €2 by SKY
PerfecTV/, SKY Perfect will be stressing the appeal of a service that allows subscribers to easily enjoy the

multi-channel service.




As digital tuners for the 110-degrees CS broadcasting service built in to television sets for digital terrestrial
broadcasting, which attained nationwide coverage on December 1, 2006, come into widespread use, the
infrastructure for receiving the 110-degrees CS broadcasting service is being developed. Defining the e2 by
SKY PerfecTV/ platform as a service that features the reliability and reassurance of SKY PerfecTV! as well as
ease of entcrtainment on digital TV sets, SKY Perfect will be providing three major services under the brand
SKY PerfecTV/—the SKY PerfecTV! multi-channel broadcasting service using communication satellites at
124 and 128 degrees East, the SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI broadcasting service employing optical fiber networks
and the 100-degree CS digital broadcasting service rebranded as 2 by SKY PerfecTV/,

This year, SKY Perfect celebrated the tenth anniversary of the launch of its broadcasting services. The
multi-channe! service brand of SKY PerfecTV/ embodies our new stance of respecting the desire of our
subsciribers to enjoy broadcasting services. The viewing environment with three-wavelength tuners, which are
built into digital TV sets as standard, is expanding. SKY Perfect will be leveraging this great advantage to
enrich the content, in particular by increasing the high definition TV channels, with a view to establishing €2
by SKY PerfecTV! as an easy-to-enjoy multi-channel medium,

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Tomonari Niimoto

General Manager
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Commencement of WOWOW Broadcasting over SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI,
Optical-Fiber-Based Broadcasting Service

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Representative Director and
President: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect™) is pleased to announce that OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo; Representative Director and President: Keiichiro Demizu), a 100% subsidiary of SKY Perfect,
today released attached news release regarding commencement of WOWOW broadcasting by WOWOW
INC. (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo: Representative Director and President: Toshio Hiresc) over the SKY
PerfecTV/! HIKARI multichannel broadcasting service operated aver optical fiber networks.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9359




OptiCast Inc.
News Release

- December 15, 2006

Commencement of WOWOW Broadcasting over
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI Optical-Fiber-Based Broadcasting Service

OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Representative Director and President: Kelichiro
Demizu; “OptiCast™), a 100% subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc, (Head Office: Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo; Representative Director and President: Masao Nito) is pleased to announce that an agreement has
been reached for the commencement of WOWOW broadcasting by WOWOW INC. (Head Office:
Minato-ku, Tokyo: Representative Director and President: Toshio Hirose; “WOWOW™) over the SKY
PerfecTV! HIKARI* multichannel broadcasting service operated over optical fiber networks, and that it
has been decided that broadcasting will commence from Monday January 1, 2007

SKY PerfecTV/! HIKARI is a multichannel broadcasting service that operates over radio frequency (RF)
using the B FLET’S service (Fiber-To-The-Home Internet Service) provided by Nippon Telegraph and
Telephone East Corporation and the FLET’S service provided by Nippon Telegraph and Telephone West
Corporation. Moreover, the HIKARI PerfecTV! service is operated over the optical fiber networks of
Energia Communications, Inc. (Head Office: Hiroshima-shi, Hiroshima; Representative Director and
President: Minoru Sato) in Hiroshima Prefecture and other areas.

WOWOW commenced commercial broadcasting in 1991 as Japan’s first private satellite broadcasting
station, and is an entertainment channel this year celebrating its 15th anniversary,. WOWOW brings
together a comprehensive lineup of choice content from around the world, including movies, sports, music
programs, and other programs including the original drama “Drama W™ and anime, and delivers this
content to its subscribers. In a popular move, WOWOW also commenced broadcasting over the SKY
PerfecTV/ (124/128 Services) Piatform on Friday December 1, 2006.

With this recent decision for WOWOW to provide programs to OptiCast (same programming as analog
BS-5 channel), WOWOW channels will now be available in the lineup available through the multichannel
broadcasting service provided by SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI. By making WOWOW’s quality content
available to SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI subscribers, we hope to enable subscribers to derive even greater
enjoyment {rom their expanded digital multichannel broadcasting service in the future.




The details of the WOWOW broadcasting arrangement are provided below.

Channel name: WOWOwW

Channel number: 330ch

Monthly charge: 2,100 yen/month {incl. tax)
Broadcasting to commence:; Monday January 1, 2007

Subscription applications to open: Friday December 15, 2006

* The SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI service is provided across Tokyo, Kanagawa Prefecture, Chiba Prefecture,
Aichi Prefecture, Osaka, Hyogo Prefecture, and in Kooriyama-shi, Fukushima Prefecture. In addition to
being a multichannel broadcasting service, SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI also simultancously re-transmits
terrestrial digital broadcasts and BS digital broadcasts. As of the end of November 2006, the number of
SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI subscribers stood at approximately 20,000,
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Completion of Registration as a Broadcaster on Telecommunications
Services for the 124-Degrees/128-Degrees Longitude East Services

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Representative Director and

. President: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) has previously applied to register as a broadcaster on satellite
services under the Law Concerning Broadcast on Telecommunications Services* for channels SKY Perfect
currently provides as a licensed broadcaster, and is now pleased to announce that this registration process

with the Minister of Internal Affairs and Communications is complete.

As a licensed broadcaster, SKY Perfect currently provides two promotional channels that broadcast
information on programs and set-top box installation free-of-charge called CLUB SKY PerfecTV/ (Ch.200)
and SKY PerfecTV/ Information Channel (ch.202), as well as electronic program guides (EPG), on-screen
data broadcasting services, via the JCSAT-3 and JCSAT-4A satellites located at 124 and 128 degrees
longitude east.

Having now completed registration as a broadcaster on satellite services, SKY Perfect now plans to
submit notification to the Minister of Internal Affairs and Communications of the Company’s intention to
cease business activities as a licensed broadcaster on December 31, and plans to commence activities anew

as a broadcaster on telecommunications services as of January 1, 2007.

It is now possible under the Law Concerning Broadcast on Telecommunications Services to provide
broadcasting services using the telecommunications services provided by telecommunications carriers.
Changing from being a licensed broadcaster to a broadcaster on telecommunications services will enable
SKY Perfect to make changes to the broadcast channel program content, number of channels, and bands in
use by issuing notification of such, and therefore, SKY Perfect will, in the future, look mto flexibly
enhancing and expanding its broadcast program lineup and making changes to broadcast content according

to the media environment.

Also, with this evenet, as of January 1, 2007, SKY Perfect will no longer be subject to the regulations

concerning the total number of voting rights possessed by foreign persons, etc. under Article 52-8 of the




Broadcast Law, which previously applied to SKY Perfect as a licensed broadcaster.

* Law Concerning Broadcast on Telecommunications Services: The Law was introduced in 2001 with the zim of institutionalizing broadcasting
that makes use of telecommunications services, with a view to the deregulation of CS broadcasting and cable television broadcasting facility
use in response 1o the progressive integration of telecommunications and broadeast transmission lines, and came into effect from January 2002.
Under this Law, in the area of CS digital broadcasting, communications satellite repeaters, which previously had to be used separately for
communications and broadcasting, can now be used flexibly as required for either communications er broadcasting, with the Law also allowing
any potential market entrants to register as broadcasters provided they meet a set of given eriteria. In this way, this Law characteristically does

not involve comparative reviewing applications or foreign-ownership restrictions.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc,
TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Notice of Establishment of the ISDB-T Multimedia Forum

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Masao Nito) together with six companies—Multimedia Broadeasting Planning LLC (Head Office: Minato-ku,
Tokyo;, Representative Business Executor: Ryosuke Yokoi), Fuji Television Network, Inc. (Head Office:
Minato-ku, Tokyo; President & COOQ: Koichi Murakami), Nippon Television Network Corporation (Head
Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; Representative Director: Seiichiro Ujiie), Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc. (Head
Office; Minato-ku, Tokyo; President: Hiroshi Inoue), ITOCHU Corporation (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo;
President & CEQ: Eizo Kobayashi) and Sumitomo Corporation (Head Office: Chuo-ku, Tokyo; President &
CEO: Motoyuki Oka)—has today submitted the attached news release with respect to the joint establishment
of the ISDB-T Multimedia Forum (ISDB-T MMF).

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Multimedia Broadcasting Planning LLC
Fuji Television Netwark, Inc.

Nippon Television Network Corporation
Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc.
ITOCHU Corporation

Sumitomo Coprration

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Notice of Establishment of the ISDB-T Multimedia Forum

The ISDB-T Multimedia Forum (ISDB-T MMF) has been established by co-founders of
Multimedia Broadcasting Planning LLC", Fuji Television Network, Inc., Nippon Television
Network Corporation, Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc, ITOCHU Corporation, Sumitomo
Corporation and SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

The objectives of the Forum are to unite Japan's leading media companies in studying new
services using the ISDB-T family,” a system developed in Japan, to advance digital broadcasting,
bolster international competitiveness and increase awareness of the advantages of ISDB-T-based
mobile multimedia broadcasting in the VHF and UHF frequency bands following the end of
terrestrial analog broadcasting.

The ISDB-T MMF will be considering new broadcasting services, business models,
infrastructure, reception terminals and other related issues for effective use of the VHF and UHF
frequency bands.

The Forum has to date received applications for participation from more than 40 companies in a
broad array of ssctors, including the above co-founders, broadcasters, content providers, electromcs
manufacturers and advertising agencies. It has been decided that Multimedia Broadcasting Planning
LLC™ will act as the Forum secretariat. After more members join, the Forum will hold a general
meeting and a symposium in late January 2007. Research findings will be published at symposia, on

the wehsite and in related conventions.

For inquires, please contact:

Oda or Ueno, Public Relations, Fuji Television Network, Inc. at Phone 03-5500-8281, or
Okamura, Digital Technology Promotion Office, Fuji Television Network, Inc. at Phone
03-5500-8281 '




*]: Multimedia Broadcasting Planning LLC is a planning company jointly owned by Fuji Television
Network, Inc., ITOCHU Corporation, NTT DoCoMo, Inc., SKY Perfect Communications Inc
and Nippon Broadcasting System, Inc.

*2: The ISDB-T family is a service layer based on the ISDB-T system, a technology adopted in
Japan's terrestrial digital TV broadcasting. It calls itself a family in the sense that new

technological components and services can be added to it.




ISDB-T Multimedia Forum
As of December 21, a total of 46 companies participate in the Forum.

Managing Companies:

Multimedia Broadcasting Planning LLC
Fuji Television Network, Inc,
Nippon Television Network Corporation
Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc.

IT OCHU Corporation
Sumitomo Corporation
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Dentsu Inc.
TV Asahi Corporation

Other Members (in alphabetical order):

Asatsu-DK Inc.

Asmic Ace Entertainment, Inc.

Daiwa Securities Media Networks Co., Ltd.
Dinos Inc.

Excite Japan Co., Ltd.

Forecast Communications Inc.
FUJIMIC INC.

FUSOSHA Publishing Inc.

Hakuhode DY Media Partners Inc.
ITOCHU Techno-Solutions Corporation
Jupiter Shop Channel Co., Ltd.

Jupiter TV Co., Ltd.

Kyodo Television, Ltd.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.
Mitsubishi Electric Corporation

K.K. NANO PIA

MOBILE MEDIANET, Inc.

NEC Corporation

Nippon Broadcasting System, Inc.




Nippon Cultural Broadcasting Inc.
NHK (Japan Broadcasting Corporation)
Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

PILA Digital Communications Corporation
PONY CANYON INC.

Radio Nippon Co., Ltd.

RECRUIT CO., LTD.

SANKEI LIVING SHIMBUN Inc.
SANYO Electric Co., Ltd.

Sharp Corporation

SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC.
Sony Broadcasting Media Co., Ltd.

Sumitomo Computer Systems Corporation
TBS RADIO & COMMUNICATIONS Inc.
Tomo-Digi Corporation

TOSHIBA Corporation

TV TOKYO Corporation

VAP, Inc.
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¢TEN, Inc. to Become a Subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) together with SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC. (Head Office:
Minato-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Takeshi Nakai; “Space Shower™) are pleased to
present the attached news release with respect to a basic agreement reached today between the two
companies to make eTEN, Inc. (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Masahito Atsumi), a subsidiary of Space Shower, a subsidiary of SKY Perfect by means of a share

exchange.

The effect of this matter on the Company’s consolidated performance is nepligible.

* For any inquiries on this matter plcase call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfcct Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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SKY Perfect Communications Inc,
SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC.

eTEN, Inc. to Become
a Subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect’”) and SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC. (Head Office: Minato-ku,
Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Takeshi Nakai; “Space Shower”) reached a basic agreement
to make eTEN, Inc. (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokye; President and Representative Director: Masahito
Atsumi; “eTEN™), currently a subsidiary of Space Shower, a subsidiary of SKY Perfect by means of a share
exchange at meetings of their respective boards of directors held today. Prior to the share exchange, Space
Shower will be handing over its e-tenki business to eTEN in early March 2007, As soon as this handover is

complete, eTEN will be made a subsidiary of SKY Perfect.

Space Shower launched Japan’s first TV channel specializing in weather information, called ¢-tenki.net,
on the PerfecTV! {currently SKY PerfecTV/) platform in October 1996. The service was subsequently
expanded to cable television, the Internet and a mobile website. In March 2005, eTEN was set up to
produce weather information programs with a view o further boosting the e-tenki.net service. At present,

eTEN also engages in content production and consulting services centering on weather information.

After €TEN is made a subsidiary, SKY Perfect will examine ways to reinforce its platform functions.
Specifically, it will not only be operating the weather channel but also offering weather information on its
promotion channels and, providing newsflashes at times of natural disasters such as earthquakes, tsunamis
(tidal waves) and heavy rain, typhoons within program slots on the e-tenkinet weather information

channel,

The share exchange ratio, the grounds for calculation and other details about the share exchange have yet

to be determined and will be announced as soon as they are finalized.




(Reference)
1. Timetable
On December 21, 2006, SKY Perfect and Space Shower hold meetings of their respective boards of
directors to approve the basic agreement on the share exchange for making eTEN a subsidiary of SKY
Perfect.
Later in January 2007, SKY Perfect and eTEN hold meetings of their respective boards of directors to
endorse the share exchange agreement.
Early in March 2007, Space Shower hands over the e-tenki business to ¢TEN.
* The share exchange will take place as soon as the handover of the e-tenki business is complete.
* In accordance with the provision in Paragraph 3, Anticle 796 of the Corporation Law, SKY Perfect
will be undertaking the procedures for a simplified share exchange, which does not require the

approval of a general meeting of shareholders.

2. Scheme for making eTEN a subsidiary of SKY Perfect
[At present]

100% ownership

Space Shower » eTEN
Qutsourcing of prograrmn
production

[After the operational handover]

Share exchange 100% ownership

Space Shower eTEN

e-tenki business

Handover

3. Corporate data
Corporate data of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (as of the end of September 2006)

(1) Company Name: SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(2) Major Business; Multichannel pay TV platform service

(3) Date of Foundation: November 10, 1994

(4) Head Office Location: Shibuya-ku, Tekyo

(5) Representative: Masao Nito, President and Representative Director
(6) Capital: 50,083 million yen

{7) Number of Employees: 476 {consolidated)

{8) Major Sharcholders: Sony Broadcast Media Co., Ltd. (12.47%)




Fuji Television Network, Inc. (12.47%)
Itochu Corporation (12.47%)
JSAT Corporation (6.91%)

Corporate data of SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC. (as of the end of September 2006)

(1) Company Name:
(2) Business:

(3) Date of Foundation:
(4) Head Office Location:
(5) Representative:

(6) Capital:

(7) Number of Employees:
(8) Major Shareholders:

SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC.

Provision of entertainment information mainly in the form of
visual and music content

December 24, 1996

Minato-ku, Tokyo
Takeshi Nakai, President and Representative Director
1,786 million yen

161 (consolidated)

Itochu Corporation (50.50%)

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (9.98%)
Hakuhodo DY Media Partners Inc. (1.45%)

Victor Entertainment, Inc. (1.10%)

Corporate data of eTEN, Inc. (as of the end of September 2006)

M
2)
€)
@)
&)
(6}
)
(8)

Company Name:
Business:

Date of Foundation
Head Office Location
Representative
Capital

Number of Employees
Major Shareholder

eTEN, Inc.

Production of weather information programs mainly for e-tenki.net
March 9, 2005

Minato-ku, Tokyo

Masahito Atsumi, President and Representative Director

80 million yen
7
SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC. (100%)
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Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of December 2006

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director; Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) announced the number of total
registrations and individual subscribers as of the end of December 2006

New Subscribers 60,187 43,111
Churn 39,641 30,755
Churn Rate*’ 11.4% 10.3%
Net Increase 20,546 12,336
Cumulative Total 4,208,157 3,606,009

* The total column shows the summed-up figure of curnulative totals of DTH Services and Wired Broadcasting

New Subscribers 31,008

Churn 29,028
Churn Rate** 9.4% 10.2%
Net Increase ' 2.070 -2,056
10,687 3,224,782

Cumulative Total

KY PérfecTV/ 1 dividuat Subscéribers®?

New Subscribers 26,055 14,915
Churn 10,038 7 888
Churn Rate*? 28.8% 11.3%
Net Increase 16,017 12,027
Cumulative Total 434,097 319,239

021

HIKA

New Subscribers 2,357 2,289
Churn 135 132
Churn Rate*’ 8.2% 8.2%
Net Increase 2,222 2.157

Cumulative Total 22,068 21,362




I Subscribers*’

663

MNew Subscrnibers
Churn 44()
Chumn Rate*’
Net Increase

Cumulative Total

roadcasting Se

*1

*2

*3

*4

*5

Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay- subscription agreement
(provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV! only), institutional subscribers including retailers exhibition and
registrationts for technical development in addition to individual subscribers.

Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have been actually paying
subscription fee.

Monthly Churn Rate: The chum rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number of churns into
yearly basis.

Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month /Total subscribers at the end of the previous month x 12
months

The multichannel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, jomntly operated with Energia
Communications, Inc. and the channel lease service in Achi-murs, Nagano, that uses available fiber-optic
network bandwidth will remain under the name of “HIKARI PerfecTVS

Other Wired Broadcasting Services: Other Wired Broadcasting Services refer to the number of multichannel
broadeasting contract using SKY Perfect’s digital broadcasting system, including cable television, excluding
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI '

The breakdown of properties that have approved SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI and properties
receiving the service as of the end of December 2006.

Number of properties 664 991

Number of houscholds*® 76,769 80,959

*6

*7

*8

Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each meonth, have
concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) provision agreement.
This figure alsc includes some properties for which service provision will commence in the following month or
later, depending on when construction will be completed

Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month, broadcasting
services (retransmission or multichanne] broadcasting service) are being provided and which are being charged
for such.

The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-939%
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' ' TEL: 03-5468-9400

Notice regarding the Preparation of a Share Transfer Plan and
the Conclusion of a Share Transfer Agreement

JSAT Corporation (President & CEO: Kiyoshi Isozaki; Headquarters: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; “JSAT™) and
SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (President and Representative Director: Masao Nito; Headquarters:
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; “SKY Perfect”; together with JSAT, the “Companies™) are pleased to announce that
respective meetings of their boards of directors have resolved the share transfer (kabushiki iten; the “Share
Transfer”) plan (the “Plan”) and have concluded a share transfer agreement (the “Definitive Agreement’)
based on the Basic Agreement executed on October 26, 2006. Details are as follows.

The Companies have decided to change the Japanesc name of the holding company (the “Holding
Company”) announced on October 26, 2006, to be established by the Companies on April 2, 2007. However,
the English name for the Holding Company, SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation, also announced on the date,
remains the same. Other details such as the Exchange Ratio (defined below) and the schedule for the Share
Transfer will remain unchanged from those announced on October 26, 2006.

The Companies intend to continue to lay the foundations for the Business Combination to establish the
Holding Company, and regard the incorporation of the Holding Company as a new starting point to further
develop the market for multichanne! pay TV in Japan and maximize their corporate values through integrated
business expansion and more efficient management to correspond with the convergence of the
telecommunications and broadcasting industries.

1. Terms and conditions of the Share Transfer, etc.

(1) Share Exchange Ratio
The ratio of the number of shares of the Holding Company’s common stock to be allocated to the shares of
the Companies upon the Share Transfer (the “Exchange Ratio™) will be as follows.

Company name SKY Perfect JSAT
Exchange Ratio 1 4

Bascd on the Exchange Ratio, holders of SKY Perfect’s common stock will receive one share of the
Holding Company’s common stock for each share of SKY Perfect’s common stock. Holders of JSAT’s
common stock will receive four shares of the Holding Company’s common stock for each share of JSAT’s
common stock.

With respect to the Exchange Ratio, SKY Perfect and JSAT have retained Morgan Stanley Japan Sccurities
Co., Ltd. and Merrill Lynch Japan Securities Co., Ltd. as their respective financial advisors and asked them to




evaluate the Exchange Ratio as third party institutions. These financial advisors calculated the Companies’
respective enterprise and equity values by utilizing the comparative stock price performance method, the
DCF (Discounted Cash Flow) method and other relevant methods. Based on their valuations, SKY Perfect
and JSAT determined the Exchange Ratio through negotiation and discussion.

However, should any significant change occur affecting the conditions upon which the calculations are
based, the Companies may discuss and change the Exchange Ratio.




(2) Schedule of the Share Transfer

November 11, 2006: Record date for extraordinary shareholders’ meeting for the approval
of the Share Transfer (the Companies)

January 11, 2007: Preparation of the Plan and conclusion of the Definitive Agreement
(the Companies)

February 9, 2007 (tentative): Extraordinary shareholders’ meeting for the approval of the Share
Transfer (the Companies)

March 27, 2007 (tentative): Effective date of delisting of the shares of the Companies

April 2, 2007 (tentative): Effective date of registration and incorporation of the Holding
Company and listing of the Holding Company shares

Mid-May 2007 (tentative): Date of delivery of share certificates (the Holding Company)

The Companies may change, through discussion, the above schedule should any significant difficulties
arise during the course of this process,

(3) Application for the listing of Holding Company shares

The Holding Company will apply to list its shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE). Although the date
of the listing will be determined subject to regulations, including the rules of the TSE, the listing of the shares
of the Holding Company is scheduled for April 2, 2007, which is the registration date for its incorporation. In
line with the Share Transfer process, shares of SKY Perfect and JSAT are scheduled to be delisted from the
TSE as of March 27, 2007.

(4) Convertible bonds issued by JSAT (reaching maturity in March 2007)
Convertible bonds that are not converted to JSAT common stock will be redeemed by JSAT in March 2007
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds.

(5) Stock acquisition rights (stock options) issued by the Companies

With respect to the stock acquisition rights issued by the Companies as stock option, the Holding Company
plans to issue its stock acquisition rights in lieu of the existing stock acquisition rights to each holder of the
existing stock acquisition rights as follows, taking into account of the details of cach existing stock
acquisition right and the Exchange Ratio. Details of the stock acquisition rights to be issued by the Holding
Company will be announced as soon as they are determined:

)] to the holder of the first stock acquisition rights of SKY Perfect (total number of rights: 1,644),
one of the first stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of rights: 1,644)
will be issued for each of the first stock acquisition rights of SKY Perfect;

(ii) to the holder of the second stock acquisition rights of SK'Y Perfect (total number of rights: 2,909),
one of the second stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of rights:
2,909) will be issued for each of the second stock acquisition rights of SKY Perfect;

(iii) to the holder of the third stock acquisition rights of SKY Perfect (total number of nghts: 1,158),
one of the third stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of rights: 1,158)
will be issued for each of the third stock acquisition rights of SKY Perfect;

(iv) to the holder of the fourth stock acquisition rights of SKY Perfect (total number of rights: 2,599),
one of the fourth stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of rights: 2,522)
will be issued for each of the fourth stock acquisition rights of SK'Y Perfect;

) to the holder of the fifth stock acquisition rights of SK'Y Perfect (total number of rights: 1,180,
one of the fifth stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of nghts: 1,180)
will be issued for each of the fifth stock acquisition rights of SKY Perfect;

(vi) to the holder of the first stock acquisition rights of JSAT (total number of rights: 1,000), one of
the sixth stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of rights: 1,000) will be
issued for each of the first stock acquisition nights of JSAT;

3




{(vii) to the holder of the second stock acquisition rights of JSAT (tota! number of rights: 1,000), one
of the seventh stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of rights: 1,000)
will be issued for each of the second stock acquisition rights of JSAT;

{viii) to the holder of the fourth stock acquisition rights of JSAT (total number of nights: 300), one of
the eighth stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of rights: 300) will be
issued for each of the fourth stock acquisition rights of JSAT; and

(ix) to the holder of the fifth stock acquisition rights of JSAT (total number of rights: 1,200), one of
the ninth stock acquisition rights of the Holding Company (total number of rights: 1,200) will be
issued for each of the fifth stock acquisition rights of JSAT.

* With respect to type and number of shares regarding the stock acquisition rights to be issued by the
Holding Company, taking into account of the Exchange Ratio, one common share of the Holding
Company will be acquired for each stock acquisition rights in case of the first through fifth stock
acquisition rights, and four common shares of the Holding Company will be acquired for each stock
acquisition rights in case of the sixth through ninth stock acquisition rights.

* The number of each stock acquisition rights issued by the Companies is as of January 2007 and is
subject to change by exercise of the rights thereafter. By such exercise, the number of the stock
acquisition rights to be issued by the Holding Company in lieu of the existing stock acquisition rights
will be subject to change accordingly.

(6) Accounting procedure for the Share Transfer

The Share Transfer is classed as an “acquisition” under the accounting practices for business combinations
that came into effect in April 2006, The Holding Company will therefore record the assets and liabilities of
the company being combined (JSAT) via the Purchase Method™.

In the case of the Share Transfer, the difference between the “acquisition price” of JSAT and the “market
~value of its net assets” will be capitalized as “goodwill” on the Holding Company’s consolidated balance

sheets. The Holding Company will be obliged to amortize the goodwill within 20 years.

According to current estimates based on JSAT’s net assets as of September 30, 2006, goodwill at the ime
of the incorporation of the Holding Company is expected to total approximately ¥10 billion. However, this
estimated goodwill is subject to change depending on the market value of JSAT’s net assets as of the end of
March 2007.

The number of amortization years of goodwill will be announced as soon as it is determined.

(*) The Purchase Method refers to the accounting procedure whereby the assets and habilities of the
company being combined are carried over at their market value and the price of the shares issued in
consideration used as the acquisition price for the relevant company.

(7) Treasury stocks of the Companies and shares of SKY Perfect owned by JSAT

The Holding Company’s stock will be allocated to treasury stock owned by the Companies and shares of
SKY Perfect owned by JSAT in accordance with the Exchange Ratio (SKY Perfect: 1 and JSAT: 4). SKY
Perfect and JSAT will consider and determine the treatment of the Holding Company’s stock to be held by
the Companies as a result of the Share Transfer from the perspective of the combined group’s equity policy,
taking into account the option of using them as considerations in acquisitions for future M&A strategies and
the retirement of treasury stock to improve the group’s capital efficiency.

2. Overview of the Holding Company

(1) Company name: SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation
* Reflecting the desire to further promote the Business Combination, the Companies have decided to
change the Japanese name of the Holding Company announced on October 26, 2006 to be established by
the Companies on April 2, 2007. However, the English name for the Holding Company, SKY Perfect
JSAT Corporation, also announced on the date, remains the same.
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2)

()

(4)
©)

Description of business:

- The Holding Company will be responsible for the overall management of group business through
planning, operation and administration activitics designed to optimize group operations and managing
group companies based on clearly delegated authorities and responsibilities.

- The Holding Company will effectively use the management resources of the group and will plan and
execute group strategies designed to bolster profit growth and quickly generate synergy from the

Business Combination.

Location of Headquarters:
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo. Details will be announced as soon as it is determined.

Date of incorporation: April 2, 2007 (Monday)
Candidates for directors and corporate auditors

Title Name Major Current Position(s)
Chairman and Masanori Akiyama | JSAT Corporation, Director, Senior Managing Executive
Representative Officer
Director
President and Masao Nito SKY Perfect Communications Inc., President and
Representative Representative Director
Director

Executive Director

Ryoji Hirabayashi

SKY Perfect Communications Inc., Managing Director

Executive Director

Hiroo Sumitomo

JSAT Corporation, Senior Executive Officer

Non-Executive Twao Nakatani JSAT Corporation, Non-Executive Director;
Director Mitsubishi UF] Research and Consulting Co., Ltd,,
Chairman of the Board Counselor
Tama University, President
Non-Executive Masakatsu Mori SKY Perfect Communications Inc., Non-Executive
Director Director;
Accenture Japan Lid., Chairman
Non-Executive Jun Murai Keio University, Vice President, Professor of the Faculty
Director of Environmental
Non-Executive Hiromasa Otsuka | Sony Corporation, SVP, Corporate Executive Officer
Director
Non-Executive Kazunobu lijima | Fuji Television Network, Inc., Executive Managing
Direclor Director
Non-Executive Shigeru Ikeda NTT Resonant Inc., Advisor
Director
Non-Executive Kohei Manabe JSAT Corporation, Non-Executive Director;
Director Nippon Television Network Corporation, Representative
Director, Corporate Advisor
Corporate Auditor Shoichi Kameyama | JSAT Corporation, Corporate Auditor
(Standing)
Corporate Auditor Ryosuke Tsuruma | SKY Perfect Communications Inc., Corporate Auditor
(Standing)
Corporate Auditor Toshiaki JSAT Corporation, Corporate Auditor
Katsushima
Corporate Auditor Kenichiro Tanaka | Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc., Vice President,

Department of Corporate Planning

(6) Paid-in capital: ¥10 billion
(7) Number of shares to be 1ssued:
Number of shares of the Holding Company to be issued upon incorporation: 3,696,037
(Based on the total number of outstanding shares of the Companies as of November 11, 2006)
* The unit stock system will not be adopted.
(8) Fiscal year-end: March 31
(9) Stock listing: Tokyo Stock Exchange (First Section)
{10) Independent auditor: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(11) Sharcholder register administrator: Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.




(12) Forecast:

The forecast for the fiscal year ending March 2008 is scheduled to be announced in early March 2007.

The new medium-term plan for the group will be prepared by the end of March 2007 and will be
announced as soon as preparation work has been completed.

The Companies plan to payout the dividend amounts announced in the preliminary interim results for the
fiscal year ending March 2007. Every effort will be made to ensure stable dividends thereafter, taking into
account the Companies respective dividend payouts in the past and the group’s medium-term plan.

3. Overview of the Business Combination Parties (consolidated) (as of the end of September 2006)

(1) Company name

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

JSAT Corporation

(2) Description of business

Multichannel pay TV platform
services

Network- and image-related services
via communication satellites

Representative Director

(3) Date of incorporation November 1994 February 1985
(4) Headquarters Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Chiyoda-ku, Tokyvo
(5) Representative Masao Nito, President and Kiyoshi Isozaki, President & CEO,

Representative Director

(6) Paid-in capital

¥50.083 billion

¥53.769 billion

(7} Number of shares issued

2,270,365 shares

356.418 shares

(8) Net assets

¥88.656 hllion

¥83.875 billion

and others

(9} Total assets ¥120.355 billion ¥176.310 billion
{10) Fiscal year-end March 31 March 31
(11) Number of employees 476 258
(12) Major customers Pay Per View Japan, Inc. NTT Communications Corporation
(13) Principal sharcholders Sony Broadcast Media NTT Cotnmunications
and ownership ratio Co., Ltd 12.47% | Corporation 17.64%
Fuji Television Network Mizuho Trust & Banking Co.,
Inc. 12.47% Lid. (ITOCHU Corporation
ITOCHU Corporation pension trust account) 13.99%
{including Mizuho Trust & Japan Trustee Services Bank,
Banking Co., Lid. Lid.
(ITOCHU Corporation (Sumitome Corporation
pension trust account)) 12.47% | retirement benefit trust
JSAT Corporation 6.91% | account) 10.75%
Tokyo Broadcasting Japan Trustee Services Bank,
9 Lid,
System, Inc. 5,68% (Mitsui & Co., Ltd.
retirement benefit trust
account) 9.40%
Nippon Television Network
Corporation 6.31%
(14) Major relationship banks | Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. Shinsei Bank, Ltd.

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
Japan Bank for International Cooperation
and others

(15) Relationship between the parties

Capital JSAT owns 6.91% of the shares issued by SKY Perfect.

relationship JSAT owns 49%, 20% and 10% of the shares issued respectively by SKY Perfect
Marketing Co., Ltd., Pay Per View Japan, Inc., and Multi Channel Entertainment Inc.,
which are consolidated subsidiaries of SKY Perfect.

Human JSAT has assigned five employees ta SKY Perfect.

relationship

Business JSAT has consigned its uplink operations to SKY Perfect. JSAT also provides SKY

relationship Perfect with satellite circuits, such as promotion channels.




(16) Consolidated Results for the last three years

(Million yen)
SKY Perfect JSAT

Fiscal year Fyoss | Fyoss | Fyoes | FX9P | pyoas | Fyoss | Fyoez | FXO7R

{estimate) (estimate)
Revenues 72475 | 74,016 | 82,329 87,500 45,144 44338 43,952 38,500
f;';’:e“‘g 4,152 2,826 -261 - 10,965 8,063 2,636 10,200
Ordinary income 4,853 3,681 106 1,000 9962 7,512 2,309 10,200
Net income 4,384 3,709 357 - 1,500 6,460 4,077 7,928 6,000
fhi‘:‘;’)"“ per 1,957.23 | 1,630.78 162.56 696.73 | 16,926.50 11,233.68 | -22320.52 | 16,906.53
Dividend per 500 750 750 750 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
share (¥)
Shareholders’
equity per share 4244921 | 4133286 | 43,661.41 - 276931.76 | 25887461 |  233,559.08 ~

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400  FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Announcement of Partial Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation

SKY Perfect Communications, Inc, (Head QOffice: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masao Nito) announced today that partial amendment to its Articles of Incorporation was resolved at
the Meeting of the Board of Directors held on January 11, 2007, and such amendment will be discussed as an
agenda at the extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on February 9, 2007. The details of
such amendment are as follows:

1. Reason for Amendment

With an approval of the share transfer proposed as Agendum No. | at the extraordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on February 9, 2007, the provision regarding record
date shall no longer be required since the shareholder of the Company will only be the holding
company established through the share transfer as of the establishment date of such holding
company. The Company, therefore, shall abolish record date of General Meeting of Shareholders
and eliminate Article 13 "Record Date of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders” of current
Articles of Incorporation.

Due to this amendment, Articles which are subsequent to the above Article 13 of current
Articles of Incorporation shall be renumbered.

This proposed amendment, however, shall be subject to an approval of Agendum No. 1.




2. Schedule for Amendment

Date of General Meeting of Shareholders where amendment of

Articles of Incorporation will be resolved: February 9, 2007
Effective date of the above amendment: February 9, 2007
3. Amendments

*Underlined to show changes

Current Amended
ARTICLE 13. RECORD DATE OF THE | (Deleted.)
ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

Record date of the voting rights at the Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company
shall be March 31 of each vear.

ARTICLE 14. ARTICLE 13.

Each of subsequent Articles shall be renumbered.

*For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Acquisition of On Demand TV, Inc, and I-Cast, Inc Shares

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) has resolved at a meeting of the Board of Directors held today
1o acquire an additional 5,775 shares in On Demand TV, Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo;
President and Representative Director: Hiroshi Kajiwara; “On Demand TV™) and 10 newly acquire 20
shares in I-Cast, Inc. (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director; Akira
Ito; “I-Cast”). These shares are currently held by ITOCHU Corporation (Head Office: Minato-ku,

_Tokyo; President and CEO: Eizo Kobayashi). SKY Perfect currently holds 200 shares in On Demand
TV (0.17% of the total number of shares issued), and this additional investment will bring the total
nurnber of shares held by SKY Perfect to a total of 5,995 shares (5.0% of the total number of shares
issued). Share Transfer Agreements concerning this acquisition of shares arc due to be concluded
upon receiving approval at meetings of the On Demand TV and I-Cast Boards of Directors to be held
on February 7, 2007.

On Demand TV operates the On Demand TV video distribution service that utilizes IP multicast
technology for the FLET's services provided by NTT East and West, and launched a video-on-
demand (VOD) service in March 2005. In addition to this, On Demand TV also lounched On Demand
TV Hi-Vision, the world’s first high-definition VOD service, in July 2006. This service utilizes the
next-generation video codec H.264. Currently, around 400 of the some 6,000 video titles on offer are
available in high definition.

I-Cast began providing a multichannel broadcasting service to On Demand TV in June 2005 as a

Broadcaster on Telecommunications Services (Cable) under the Law Concemning Broadcast on

Telecommunications Services and currently provides 36 channels over this service. By connecting up
the dedicated On Demand TV recciver to their home FLET’s connection and TV, customers can enjoy
video ttles any time they like over the VOD service, as well as specialized channel broadcasting. In




addition to this, [-Cast is also currently also cooperating in trials being run in Tokyo by the NTT
Group for the compression of terrestrial digital broadcasts into H.264 format for resending at high-
definition picture quality over Next Generation Network (NGN) tnal infrastructure.

SKY Perfect has been looking into services that use IP multicast technology through our previous
investment in On Demand TV. The SKY Perfect Group has made looking into measures for
addressing the expansion of IP and VOD services, and catering to mobile media and NGNs an
important theme for 2007, and is aiming to use this year to build the foundations for business
expansion in these areas in particular. Through this acquisition of shares, SKY Perfect will start to
take a closer and more detailed look into getting involved in IP broadcasting for video distribution
services utilizing the NTT Group’s IP multicast technology.

SKY Perfect provides the SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI multichannel broadcasting service that operates
over radio frequency (RF) through OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director: Keiichiro Demizu), a 100% subsidiary of SKY Perfect. By providing not
only multichannel broadcasting over RF but also IP broadcasting that employs IP multicast technology,
the SKY Perfect Group is planning to further accelerate horizontal business deployment under its
Multi-Platform Strategy in the future. SKY Perfect is curmrently considering concrete ways o get
involved in this area and will make a further announcement once it has finalized the specific details of

such.

The impact of this matter on the Company s consolidated financial results is negligible.




1. Schedule
February 7, 2007
February 15, 2007

2, Terms and conditions of the share transfer

Conclusion of Share Transfer Agreements
Share transfer

(Reference)

No. of shares held

No. of shares to be

No. of shares held after

before the transfer acquired the ransfer
On Demand TV, Inc. 200 shares 5,775 shares Total of 5,975 shares
(Shareholding: 0.17%) (Sharcholding: 5.00%)
I-Cast, Inc. 0 shares (Shareholding; 20 shares Total of 20 shares
0.00%) (Shareholding:
10.00%)

3. Methed of share acquisition

Shares are to be acquired through a share transfer from ITOCHU Corporation,

4. Corporate profiles

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (As of Sept. 30, 2006)
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Multichannel pav TV platform services

M
(2)
(3]
4)
(5)
(6)
N
(8)

Company name:
Principal business:
Established:

Head office:
Representative:
Paid-in capital:
No. of employees:

Major shareholders:

November 10, 1994

2-13-1 Shibuya-ku, Tokyo
Masao MNito, President and Representative Dirsotor

50.083 billion yen

476 (on a consolidated basis)
Sony Broadcast Media Co., L.

Fuji Television Network Inc.
ITOCHU Corporation

JSAT Corporation

On Demand TV, Inc, (As of Sept. 30, 2006)
On Demand TV, Inc.

(1) Company name:
(2) Principal business:

(3) Established:

(4) Head office;

(3) Representative:

(6) Paid-in capital:

{7) No. of employees;
(8) Major shareholders:

Intemet- and

communications-nefwork-basad

12.47%
12.47%
12.47%

6.91%

vidco content

distribution services and payment collection services.

October 4, 2002

1-11-8 Shibuya-ku, Tokyo
Hiroshi Kajiwara, President and Represcntative Director

3.027 billon yen
20

Nippon Telegraph and Telephone West Corporation

ITOCHU Corporation
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Nippon Telegraph and Telephone East Corporation

I-Cast, Inc. (As of Sept. 30, 2006)

(1) Company name:

I-Cast, Inc.

 50.85%
48.84%
0.17%
0.15%

Broadcast services over telecommunications equipment and the
planning, production, and sale of associated broadcast programs.

{2) Principal business:




(3)
4)
(5)
(6)
)
(8)

Established:

Head office:
Representative:
Paid-in capital;
No. of employees:

Major shareholder:

January 18, 2005

2-5-1 Kita-Aoyama, Minato-ku, Tokyo

Alkira Ito, President and Representative Director
10 million yen

7

ITOCHU Corporation

100%

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Notice of Consolidation of eTEN, Inc. through Share Exchange

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office; Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) is pleased to announce that a meeting of the Board of Directors held on January
31, 2007 has resolved to make eTEN, Inc. (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masahito Atsumi; “eTEN™) a subsidiary of SKY Perfect through a share exchange as of March 1,
2007. The details are as follows.

1. Purpose of Share Exchange

“e-tenki.net,” Japan’s first TV channel specializing in weather information, operated by SPACE SHOWER
NETWORKS INC. (Head Office: Minato-kn, Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Takeshi Nakai,
“Space Shower”) began broadcasting on Perfect TV/ (now SKY Perfect TV/) in October 1996. The service
was subsequently expanded to CATVs, the Internet and a mobile website. In March 2005, Space Shower set
up eTEN to produce weather information programs with a view to further boosting the “e-tenki.net” service
and at present provides content production and consulting services centering on weather information.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on December 21, 2006, Space Shower decided to spin off its
e-tenki business to eTEN through a simplified corporate divestiture to concentrate its business resources on the
music field. At respective meetings of their Boards of Directors held on December 21, 2006, SKY Perfect and
Space Shower resolved to conclude a basic agreement under which Space Shower would spin off the e-tenki
business to ¢TEN, so that eTEN could operate the business in an integrated manner, and SKY Perfect would
make ¢TEN its subsidiary through a share exchange.

After eTEN is made a subsidiary, SKY Perfect will examine ways to bolster its platform function.
Specifically, it will not only be operating the weather channel but also oproviding weather information and

newsflashes at times of natural disasters, such as earthquakes, tsunamis, heavy rain, and typhoons on its

promotion channels or within program slots on the the channel.




1. Conditions of share exchange, etc.

(1) Schedule of share exchange

Resolution of share exchange at the January 31, 2007 (Wed.)
meeting of the Board of Directors

Conclusion of a share exchange January 31, 2007 (Wed.)
agrecment

Spin-off of the e-tenki business by March 1, 2007 (Thu.)
Space Shower

Planned date of share exchange March 1, 2007 (Thu.)
(effective date)

* SKY Perfect will take procedures for a simplified share exchange that does not need an approval at a
general meeting of shareholders under the provision of Article 796, Paragraph 3 of the Company Law.

{2) Share exchange ratio
The share exchange ratio has yet to be decided at this point. It will be decided based on the following
calculation formula, and we will make an announcement as soon as it is decided.
{3) Concept of the calculation of the share exchange ratio
(i) Allotment ratio of shares

In the share exchange, SKY Perfect will allot common shares of SKY Perfect in a ratio that is
calculated based on the following formula (fractions will be omitted) to one common share of
eTEN owned by the shareholders of eTEN who are listed or recorded in the final register of
shareholders on a day before the effective date.

A number obtained by dividing 400 million yen by the value of a common share

The total number of e TEN’s shares 1ssued

(However, the total number of ¢TEN shares issued shall be the total number of shares outstanding
after the divestiture that will be conducted on the same day as the effective date of the share
exchange takes effect. The value of a common share of SK'Y Perfect shall be a closing price of
SKY Prefect’s common shares in regular transactions at the Tokyo Stock Exchange on the day
before the effective date (if the closing price is not available on that day, the closing price on the

day immediately prior to the effective date).)

(ii) Concept of the calculation of the share exchange ratio

To calculate the share exchange ratio, we have requested KPMG FAS, a third party
organization, to calculate the enterprise value of e TEN (“the new eTEN") after adding the e-tenki
business of Space Shower that is to be spun off to eTEN. KPMG FAS calculated the enterprise
value of the new eTEN using the discounted cash flow (DCF) method based on the business plan
of the new eTEN after the e-tenki business has been spun off to eTEN, taking into account the
information and data obtained through interviews. We calculated the enterprise value of the new
¢TEN at 400 million yen by using the enterprise value computed by KPMG as a reference and
adding the costs, etc. associated with the share exchange, etc., and SKY Perfect and Space
Shower agreed to set a transfer price of 400 million yen through negotiations. We will determine

the share exchange ratio based on the formula above and using this transfer price and the market

2




value of shares of SKY Perfect. The formula for the calculation of the share exchange ratio and
the market value of shares of SKY Perfect to be used for the calculation were determined through
consultation of both parties at the request of Space Shower.

In the business plan that formed the basis for the calculation of the enterprise value, the
financial results of the new €TEN for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 are regarded as the
sum of the e-tenki business (sales of 736 million ven, operating income of 107 million yen and
ordinary income of 65 million yen) and eTEN (sales of 241 million yen, operating income of 28
million yen and ordinary income of 28 million ven}. In the busimness plan of the new eTEN, part
of the e-tenki business that is conducted by Space Shower (broadcasting and operation of the
mobile business) and businesses such as program production that eTEN engages in are assumed
to be operated by the new eTEN after it becomes a subsidiary of SKY Perfect (throngh corporate
divestiture), but we do not expect a significant change in sales and profits in its profit plan at this
point.

(iii) Number of shares SKY Perfect will allot in the share exchange
In the share exchange, SKY Perfect will allot the number of its own shares that will be
calculated based on the calculation formula above.
(4) Treatment of stock subscription nghts and bonds with stock subscription rights of a wholly owned
subsidiary through the share exchange

¢TEN does not issue a stock subscniption nghts or bonds with stock subscription rights.

2. Profile of Companies Involved in Share Exchange (as of September 30, 2006)

(1) Company name

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

eTEN, Inc. (wholly owned

{whollv owning parent company) subsidiany)
(2) Description of Multichannel pay TV platform Production of weather information
business services programs
{3) Date of incorporation | November 10, 1594 March 9, 20035
{4) Headquarters 2-13-1 Shibuya, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo | 3-16-35 Roppongi, Minato-ku,

Tokvo

(5) Representative

Masao Nito, President and
Representative Director

Masahito Atsumi, President and
Representative Director

(6) Paid-in capital

50,083 mllion ven

80 million ven

(7) Number of shares 2,270,363 shares 1,600 shares
issued
{(8) Net assets 88,656 million yen (consolidated) 54 million yen{non-consolidated)

(9) Total assets

120,355 mullion yen (consclidated)

147 milhon yen{non-consolidated)

(10) Fiscal year-end

March 31

March 31

(11) Principal
shareholders and
ownership ratio
{September 30, 2006)

1. Sony Broadcast Media Co., Lid.
(12.47%)

2, Fuji Television Network Inc.
(12.47%)

3. ITOCHU Corporation (12.47%)
4. JSAT Corporation (6.91%)

1. Space Shower Networks Inc.
(100.0%)




3. Results for Last Three Fiscal Years

(Million yen)
SKY Perfect Communications Inc. eTEN, Inc. (wholly owned
(wholly owning parent company) subsidiary)
(consolidated) {non-consolidated)
Fiscal year 04/3 05/3 06/3 04/3 05/3 06/3
Revenues 72,475 74,016 82,329 - 0 241
Operating income 4,152 2,826 -261 - 0 28
Ordinary income 4,853 3,681 106 - 0 28
Net income 4,384 3,709 357 — 0 16
Net income per share
(yen) 1,957.23 1,630.78 162.56 — ¢ 10,339.78
Dividend per share
(yen) 500 750 750 — 0 0
ngzi};gidg:n)eq"“y 4244921 | 4133286 | 4366141 —| 49860 60,339.78

* As eTEN, Inc. was established in March 2005, no information is listed for the fiscal year ended March 2006.
Results for the fiscal year ended March 2005 were minimal.

4. Status of SKY Perfect after Share Exchange
(1) There will be no change in the company name, business, headquarters, representative, paid-in capital and

fiscal vear-end after the share exchange.
(2) Impact of the share exchange on consolidated and non-consolidated results of SKY Perfect will be

minimal.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400

FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Revision to Results Forecast

Based on recent business developments, SKY Perfect Communications Inc. announces a revision to the
forecast interim and full-year results for fiscal 2006 (from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007), published on
October 19, 2006. The changes are as follows:

Details
1. Revision of Results Forecast

(1) Revision of non-consolidated results forecast

Revision of forecast results for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007 (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)
{Millicn yen)

Previpus forecast (A)
Revised forecast (B)
Difference (B-A)

% change
{Reference)

Business results for the fiscal year 74,377 3,261 3,480
ended March 31, 2006

(2) Revision of consolidated results forecast
Revision of forecast results for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007 (April 1, 2006 to March 31,, 2007)

(Mithion v
Previous forecast {A) 87,500 1,000
Revised forecast (B) 86,000 2,500
Difference (B-A) -1,500 1.500
% change -1.7% 150.0%
(Reference)
Results for the fiscal year ended March 82,329 106 357
31,2006




2. Reasons for Revision

In light of the actual results and forecasts for the number of individual subscribers, revenues on
a non-consolidated basis will be revised downward by 0.5 billion yen from the previous forecast of
77.0 billion yen, to 76.5 billion yen. On a consolidated basis, revenues will be revised downward
by 1.5 billion yen from the previous forecast of 87.5 billion yen, to 86.0 billion yen, taking into
account both non-consolidated factors and the slow subscriber uptake of SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI
(detached home type) provided by consolidated subsidiary OptiCast Inc.

Ordinary income on a non-consolidated basis will be revised upward by 1.5 billion yen from the
previous forecast of 6.0 billion yen, to 7.5 billion yen, and on a consolidated basis also by 1.5
billion yen from the previous forecast of 1.0 billion yen, to 2.5 billion yen. These revisions reflect a
reduction in marketing costs associated with changed expectations for new individual subscriber
figures.

The net income forecast on a non-consolidated basis will remain unchanged from the previous
forecast of 6.0 billion yen, in light of the costs incurred by subsidiary reorganizations and other
factors. Meanwhile, on a consolidated basis, the net income forecast will be revised upward by 0.5
billion yen from the previous forecast of 1.5 billion yen, to 2.0 billion yen, on the basis of the results
and forecasts for the results of the consolidated subsidiaries.

{Note) Forward looking statements including plan, strategy or belief contained in this material are not past facts but are
forecasts based on the assumption or belief of our management judging from information available currently. Final decisions
related to investment are on the judgment of users themselves. Such forward-looking statements are not guaranteed of future
performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ from those in the looking-forward statements as a
result of various factors, including, (1) the economic environment surrounding our areas of business, in particular consumer
trends, (2) changes in legislation such as broadcasting laws and communications laws, particularly in the case of restriction of our
business or proposals to this effect or incase of, for example, new busiess entry by rival companies, and (3) our ability to
develop and continue to provide programs and services acceptable to customers in a fiercely competitive market characterized by
feamres such as remarkably rapid technical innovation in the digital technology ficld in particelar and remarkably subjective and
changeable customer preferences in broadeasting business, However, factors that could influence our business results are not
limited to the above.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399




FILE No.
82—5113

(Summary English Translation)

SKY PerfecTV!
Consolidated Business Results of Third Quarter for the year ending March 2007
January 31, 2007
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Code No. 4795 Tokyo Stock Exchange 1st Section
(URL http://www.skyperfectv.co.jp)

*For any inquiries Representative:

Masao Nito, President and Representative Director
Contact person:

Katsunori Suzuki, General Manager of Finance &
Accounting Dept. TEL: (03)5468-7800

1. Matters Relating to the Preparation, etc. of the Quarterly Business Results

@
@

Adoption of Simplified Method of Accounting : None

Changes of the method of accounting policies compared with the Most Recent
Consolidated Fiscal Year: None
@ Changes in Application of Consolidation and Equity Method: Yes

Consolidated (new): 1

Equity Method (new): 9
(excluded): 0

(excluded): O

2. Business Results for the Third Quarter of the Year Ending March 2007 (from April 1, 2006
through December 31, 2006)

(D

Progress of Business Results (Consolidated)

{amounts less than one million yen have been rounded off)

Net Income for the
Operating Revenue Operating Income Ordinary Income Current Quarter
{Current Period)
(Million yen) (%) | (Million yen) (%) | (Million yen) (%) | (Million ycen) (%)
Third quarter of the
year ending March 64,003 309 1,883 - 2,271 - 2,575 -
2007
Third quarter of the
year ending March 61,585 10.8 -1,400 - -1,074 - -756 -
2006
(Reference) Year ) ) ) 7
e ) 82,3290 11.2 261 106 -97.1 357 -90.4




Net Income per Net Ig(}:lomc per
Share are
(fully diluted)

{yen) (ven)
Third quarter of the
year ending March 1,196.27 -
2007
Third quarter of the
year ending March -351.34 -
2006
(Reference) Year
ended March 2006 162.56 162.54

(Note}l: Percentages appearing under Operating Revenue and Operating Income, etc. for the Current Quarter
represent the ratio of increase/decrease compared to the same quarter of the prior year.
2:  Net Income per Share (fully diluted) for the third quarter of the year ending March 2006 has not been
included since net loss has been posted for the relevant quarter.
3:  Net Income per Share (fully diluted) for the third quarter of the year ending March 2007 has not been
included since no dilutive share exists for the relevant quarter.

(Million yen)
Previous Fiscal Year (Consolidated) Current Fiscal Year (Consolidated)
Classification T
) otal of Total of
of Business First Second Third First Fourth First Second Third First
SCWiCCS» etc. Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Three Quarter |Full Year{ Quarter | Quarter | Quarter Three
Quarters Quarters
Customer
management

business and
promotion of
digital
broadcasting
Business
relating to
broadcasting of
programs
Other platform-
related 5,535 5,686 5,817 17,039 5,628| 22,667| 5,617 6,123 6,194 17,934

businesses

Total 20,354| 20,669 20,561| 61,585| 20,744| 82,329| 20,985| 21,547| 21,470 64,003

12,536| 12,676 12,524 37,737 12,851 50,588| 13,134 13,110( 12,999 39,244

2,282 2,306 2,219 6,809 2,264 9,073 2,233| 2,314 2276| 6,824
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Summary of Business Results for 3Q/FY2006 (Supplemental Information)

1. Number ef Subscribers

{Thousands)
Net Addition (Total Subs.) 251
SKY PerfecTV! 121
SKY PerfecTV!110 88
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI * 3
Other Wired Services 39
Total Subs. at Period-End 4,075
SKY PerfecTV! 3,740
SKY PerfecTV!110 291
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI * 4
Other Wired Services 39
New Individual Subs. 407
SKY PerfecTV!/ 304
SKY PerfecTV!110 61
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI * 3
Other Wired Services 39
Number of Churn (Individual Subs. 216
SKY PerfecTV/ 202
SKY PerfecTV/ 110 14
SKY PerfecTVY! HIKARI * 0
Other Wired Services —
Net Addition (Individual Subs.) 191
SKY PerfecTV! 102
SKY PerfecTV/110 47
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI * 3
Other Wired Services 39
Individual Subs. at Period-End 3,501
SKY PerfecTV! 3,251
SKY PerfecTV/110 208
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI * 4
Other Wired Services 39
Churn Rate (Individual Subs.) 8.4%
SKY PerfecTV/ 8.4%
SKY PerfecTV!110 9.8%
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI * 8.5%
Other Wired Services —




* In April 2006, SKY Perfect Communications Inc. changed the name of its broadcasting service via FITH from HIKARI
PerfecTV/! to SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI. (The multichannel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, jointly operated
with Energia Communications, Inc. and the channel lease service in Achi-mura, Nagano remain under the name of HIKARI
PerfecTV1)

® New individual subscribers declined 74 thousand, from 407 thousand in the third quarter of the previous
fiscal year to 333 thousand, as the increase in the number of new individual subscribers to the mainstay
SKY Perfect TV/ and SKY Perfect TV/ 110 did not match expectations and progress in subscriptions of
SKYPerfect TV! HIKARI (detached home type) was slow.

®  An individual churn rate rose 1.4 percentage points from the third quarter of the previous year, to 9.8%, a
result principally reflecting the significant reaction following the broadcasting of the 2006 FIFA World
Cup™ Germany.

®  As a result, the cumulative number of individual subscribers for the third quarter of the fiscal year ending
March 2007 increased 70 thousand from the end of the previous fiscal vear (the end of March 2006), to
3,606 thousand.




2. Business Results

Financial Summary (From April 1 te December 31, 2006)

{Millions of Yen)

at Period-End

Revenues 61,585 20,561
Operating Income (Loss) -1,400 -976
Ordinary Income (Laoss) -1,074 3,346 - -966
Net Income (Loss} -756 3,332 - -433
Total Assets 127,754 127,754
Net Asset* 92,136 92,136
No::k ft?:il:iz?m Operating .551 13,257
Neltnszstl;:: :::tivities 5,403 10,660 |
Ne;‘ig::l;i;rgfcﬁﬁties 2,492 -208 ¢
Cash and Cash Equivalents 34.599 34,599 |

Revenues 55,683 1,301 2.3%

Operating Income 406 5,068 | 1,246.1%

Ordinary Income 951 5,179 544 5% 275
Net Income 1,320 356.3%

Total Asset 121,251 -1.3% 121,251
Net Asset* 96,200 -3,622 -3.8% 96,200

* Figures for the past fiscal year results are retroactively adjusted to the newly revised accounting standard.




Revenues increased 3.9% and 2.3% on consolidated and non-consolidated bases, respectively, mainly
because of an increase in the number of subscribers compared with the same period of the previous fiscal

year.

Consolidated ordinary income was 2,271 million yen, compared with a consolidated ordinary loss of
1,074 million yen in the same period of the previous fiscal year. Although promotional expenses
increased with the free broadcasting of the World Cup, marketing costs including sales incentives
declined, a result of a fall in the number of new subscribers from a year earlier. Consolidated net income
was 2,575 million yen, compared with a consolidated net loss of 756 million yen a year ago.

With respect to consolidated cash flow, net cash from operating activities was 3,888 mullion yen,
compared with -551 million yen in the same period of the previous fiscal year. This result was primarily
attributable to an increase in net income and the disappearance of gains on the sale of investment
securities that were generated in the same period of the previous year. Net cash from investing activities
was -6,566 million yen compared with a positive result of 5,403 million ven in the third quarter of the
previous fiscal year. Major factors for the decrease were the disappearance of gains on the sale and
redemption of securities that were posted a year ago and an increase in expenditures for the acquisition of
software in the quarter under review. Net cash from financing activities was -1,646 million yen, as we
paid dividends although we did not conduct any share buybacks. As a result, cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the quarter under review rose 1,385 million yen from the same period of the previous fiscal
year, to 35,984 million yen.




3. Revision of Results Forecast of FY 2006 Ending March 2007

(Millions of Yemn)

‘ch

New Individual Subs.

(Thousands)

Net Addition in Individual Subs. 189 -68 -36.0%
(Thousands)

Individual Subs. at Period-End 3,725 -68 -1.8%
(Thousands)

Total Subs. at Period-End 4,295 63 -1.6%
(Thousands)

Churn for Individual Subs. 9.4% 0.3 -

Consolidated Results
Revenues 87,500 -1,500 -1.7%
Ordinary Income 1,000 1,500 150.0%
Net Income 1,500 560 33.3%
Non-Consolidated Results
Revenues 77,000 -500 0.6%
Ordinary Income 6,000 1,500 25.0%
Net Income 6,000 - —
Dividend per Share for the FY 750yen — -
5.




We have revised our previous full-term results forecast for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007, which
was announced in October 19, 2006. The revision was made in light of our performance in the third quarter.

We have revised our forecast for new individual subscribers from 530 thousand in the previous forecast, to
470 thousand, and the churn rate from 9.4% to 9.7%, given the actual results up to the third quarter.

In light of the actual results and forecasts for the number of individual subscribers, revenues on a
non-consolidated basis will be revised downward by 0.5 billion yen from the previous forecast of 77.0 billion
yen, to 76.5 billion yen. On a consolidated basis, revenues will be revised downward by 1.5 billion yen from
the previous forecast of 87.5 billion yen, to 86.0 billion yen, taking into account both non-consolidated factors
and the slow subscriber uptake of SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI (detached home type) provided by consolidated
subsidiary OptiCast Inc.

Ordinary income on a non-consolidated basis will be revised upward by 1.5 billion yen from the previous
forecast of 6.0 billion yen, to 7.5 billion yen, and on a consolidated basis also by 1.5 billion yen from the
previous forecast of 1.0 billion yen, to 2.5 billion yen. These revisions reflect a reduction in marketing costs
associated with changed expectations for new individual subscriber figures.

The net income forccast on a non-consolidated basis will remain unchanged from the previous forecast of
6.0 billion yen, in light of the costs incurred by subsidiary reorganizations and other factors. Meanwhile, on a
consolidated basis, the net income forecast will be revised upward by 0.5 billion yen from the previous
forecast of 1.5 billion yen, to 2.0 billion yen, on the basis of the results and forecasts for the results of the
consolidated subsidiaries.

(Notg) Forward looking statements including plan, strategy or belief contained in this matenal are not past facts but are
forecasts based on the assumption or belief of our management judging from information available currently. Final decisions
related to investment are on the judgment of users themselves. Such forward-looking statements are not guaranteed of future
performance and involve risks and unceriainties, and actual results may differ from those in the looking-forward statements as &
result of vafous factors, including, (1) the economic enviromner_lt swrrounding our areas of business, in particular consumer
trends, (2) changes in legislation such as broadcasting laws and communications laws, particularly in the case of restriction of our
business or proposals to this effect or incase of, for example, new business entry by rival companies, and (3) our ability to
develop and continue to provide programs and services acceptable to customers in a fiercely competitive market cheracterized by
features such as remarkably rapid technical innovation in the digital technology field in particular and remarkably subjective and
changeable customer preferences in broadcasting business, However, factors that could influence our business results are not

lirnited to the above.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400  FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Summary of
Consolidated Statement of Income

{(Millions of Yen)

1]_-3'% . 1!—'-30‘;‘6, Diffarence | F?:{Qufs ’ Fi’%fﬁ Difference
Number of New Individual Subs. -
{thousands) L 407| - 333 73 160| - 108 55
Number of individual Subs. at L
Pertlod-End (thousands) ) 3501 3,606 +105 3,501 3,606 +105
Revenues: . 61,585| 64,003 +2,418 20561 21,470 +908

. Subscriber-Related Reverues | 37,737| 39,244| +1,507| 12524| 12,998| +a74
 Transmission-Related Revenues 6,809| . 6,824 +15 2,219 2,276 +56

Other Fees and Revenues' - -~ ] 17039 17,934 +895 5817] 6,194 +377
Operating Expenses . . ..... | 62,986 62,120 -866 21,538 | 20,842 -695
Operating Income o) 1,400 1,883 | +3,284 -976 627 | +1,604
ordinary Income 1 -1,074|  2,271| +3,346 966 . 919| +1,885
Net Income -756 2575 +3332 -433 1,287 | +1,720

Retained Earnings at Period-End 3514 5,579 +2,065 3,514 5579 | +2,065

Total Deating Amount of - - -

Subscription Fees and Others 104,393 [ 106,274 | +1,881 34,627 | 35,166 +539

EBITDA Lo S 2,489 6,293 | +3,804 814 2,191 +1,377
EBITDA Margin - - - & 5. 4.0% 9.8% +5.8 40% | 10.2% +6.2
3 © 2007 SKY Prrect Communacations Inc, AF Rirhts Remrved

Results of Consolidated
Subsidiaries for the 1-3Q/FY2006
(Millions of Yen)
...... B B e T T
y Data | SKY - Pay Per | . - Cabla .
Company Network | Perfect :| 5241 .| "viow | opticast [Television| Peroct
;. Name Center |Marketing|: "% | Japan- Adachl | g0 |Others®yz
Maj;:'r Area of Custames §;r:a Rertal oortent Cl-blol'- va:mb:::ru tI:ﬂ;m'
Business. . nguaz ----- Servicas | 7o ~ and \ .
L
Sharehold 51.0% 51.0%| 80.3% | 65.0% [100.0% | 77.3% |100.0% -
ings
Revenues 12,410 2,319| B89 |11,065| 1,079| 2,364| 520(-23,630
O}dinary
Income 743 £91 51 328 | 3,602 359 -248 £95
Net
.Income 731 £91 52 156 | -2,817 214 -249 743
{Loss)
*1 Others include SKY Perfect Mobile, Infformation Network Kortyama, CS Now , Japan MedArk and other companies that
has minot impact on consalidated financial results,
*2 There are seven equity-method companies induding System Create Inc., J SPORTS Broadeasting Corporation,
Nikkatsu Corporation, Chugoku-Monogatari Inc.
4 © 2007 SKY Puriwst Communications Ira. AR Rights Reserved




Number of New Subscribers and Churn Rate s
(1-3Q/FY2006) -

(Thousands)
190 £ 0%
83 - BT
Free antenna imstakation .| 2008 FIFAWorkd Cup Germany | Seasorr-End of
campaign (Apr. to Dec. 2005} | . . . (Jun. to Jul. 2008) " FProkssional Basecal [ 7
0Ty e G |75 fem
ar4y 0
44 r 40
0 2
(] 0%
Aor [Z= T . Aug Sep Qeat MNow. Dec.
N9, of maw Indviduat surecrter (FY0S)  EREE No. of rew ingividsslsubicriter {FYOR?
e Individrat thurn 1ate EPASS —— sk Chuen rate (P05}
5 © 2007 SKY Paract Communicationn .. A Righis Ressreed

ARPU (CS124/128 + CS110)

Subscribar-Relatod Revenues per

Subscription Fes par Subscribar Subscriber

1307 1374 14611053
153 :

[t

Wowe ™ ¥ ™ ¥

© Bt we Dkey Qi
DR pmaedin | 5Pk Sosumcetadn

] © 2007 SKY Parivct Communtons I, AF Rufrts Reserved




SAC (CS124/128 + CS110)

Totat SAG SAC per Sutscribar

Mifme of Vwnl Yanl

39.051

53

1G-00FY2006 102O/FYE 1 QB/F YR 10-30/Freos
E 0 Salns lrrnrthes O Proscticral esoanees - Y

0 Advartising exporess B Expenses Felatng O Advert sing e e
: From Fromicmtig et

*1 Expenses paid by SKY Perfect Communications and SKYPerfect Marketing.
*2 Publiic relations costs are excluded from adwvertising expenses.
*3 Expenses relating free broadcasting is extluded from SAC per subscriber.

7 © 2007 SKY Perfect Comvruncetons Iro . AF Rights Rescrved

Summary of Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Milions of Yen)
: : March 2006 ‘September 2006 December 2008
Current Assets - 58,917 62,556 60,828
Fixed Assets ) 74,253 57,799 66,732
Total Assets - - 133,171 120,355 117,560
Current Liabilities . 25 848 28,347 26,137
Fixed Liablitties 8,505 3,352 3,359
Total Liabilities . 34,353 31,699 29,496
Common Stock 50,083 50,083 50,083
Capitat Surpluses 43,995 43,995 43,995
Earned Surpluses - 4628 4,201 §,579
Treasury Stock -10,282 -10,282 -10,282
Total Shareholders’ Equity 88,425 88,088 89,376
Unrealized Gains {Losses) on 5574 4032 5366
Securities : ! M
Stock Option - - 2
Minority tnterests 4818 4,599 4,051
Net Assets 98,817 88,656 88,063
Total Assets and Net Assets 133,171 120,355 117,560
* March figures are retroactively adjusted to the newly revised accounting standards.
g © 2007 5K Parfact Communicsticns I . AF Rights Rescrved




for’ Flnam:lal Instruments} .

[Millians of Yen)
FY0SM-3Q- | FYoen3Q | Difference

551 [ 3,888 4,439

+5,403 |7 - 8,566 -11,970

-2,492 -1,646 848

+0 [ 0 -0

‘Cash Equivalents +2,359 |10 4,328 -6,686

:Cash and Casl_l quwalentsalPenod- 34509 | el 35,984 1.385
| End {A)=: S SR )

Cas_h_ and Negotiable Securities at A
Period-End {B) 36,599 39,183 2,583
-Total Amount of Fund ((B)+Securmes 50,955 56,806 3,149

© 2007 SKY Perfact Communications Inc.. AF Rigtts Reserved
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Revision of g

Business Results Forecast for FY2006

Number of Subscribers Annualized Chum Rate
(Thousands) {Individual Subscribers
Onginal  E 1 Orginal
= Forecast Forecast
New Indlvidial Subs. -1 530
NetIncrease 188 9.4%
Individual Subs. at 3725
Fiscal Year-End '
Total Subs. at 4205
Fiscal Year-End ! :
Business Results Forecast
k Consalidated Nonconsoidated -
: Onging : ) N Onginat g !
FY2006 - Forecest | Farseust ] Do | orocest |i Difergnce
Revenues 87,500 86,000 -1.500 77.000 76,500 -500
Ordinary Income 1,000 2,500 +1,500 6,000 7,500 +1,500
NetIncome 1,500 2,000 +500 6,000 6,000 +0

*1 Forecast of the number of new individuat subscribers is changed to 470 thousand.
(SKY PerfecTV! : 260 thousands, 82 by SKY PerfecTV!: 180 thausands, Wired senices: 30 thousands)

*2 Ferecast for annual dividends is unchanged at ¥750.

11 - © 2007 SKY Periect Communatiors I . AF Rights Reserved

Business Combination with JSAT

Oct. 28 Jan. 11 Feb. B Early Mar. Apr. 2

F 3 F 3 4 >

Basic agreement

Canclusion of the share
" fransfer agreement

12 © 2007 SKY Perfect Commuricetions loc . AF Safits R sroed




Change in the Breakdown of g

the New Individual Subscribers

In areas where multiple SKY PerfecTV! services are provided, newer services
are gaining popularity

Example; Breakdown of the New Individual Subscribers
in the SKY PerfecTV/HIXARI Service Arca {Tokyo)

28%

18%

MSKY PuarbecTV
47%] -

WEKY ParfecTV
119

27%

QSKY Pertso TV
HIKARE

December 2005 December 2006

13 © 7007 SKY Partect Communcstons I AX Rights Resirved

J.LEAGUE Project

® Utilize the broadcasting rights of all 620 games
from season 2007 to season 2011 including

SKY PorfecTV! & SKY PerfecTV/HIKARL

J1 and J2 league games and J1/J2 relegation Jieague Live DX' ¥2.080/manth
erfec and e2 by erfecTV! Two : s

of which broadcasted on e2 by SKY PerecTv! | 2t -7 ¥1.580/menth

are high-definition. ¢2 by SKY PerfecTV! . ]

JLeague Selection ¥2.500/manth

m  Support J.LEAGUE's One Hundred Year Vision

as an official broadcasting partner. (all including

tax)

® |mplement an area marketing under tie-up with ea
increase number of audience coming Lo stadium (about 470 thousand house old
every year) by 20% over five years and win subscription of J.LEAGUE genre set from

40% of the increased number of audience.

® Positioning JLEAGUE games as a flagship content of SKY PerfecTV! services, SKY
Perfec! is distinguishing contents to invest from others and planning to improve the
balance of revenue and expenses refating 1o own contents.

14 © 2007 SKY Paclect Communcstons Ire.. AP Gghts Reserrid




Consolidation of eTEN, Inc.

Consolidate eTEN, Inc.,

Which took over e-tenki .
‘business from SPACE -
'SHOWER NETWORKS
ING., through share. .-
'eitchan‘ge'. L

Bolster SKY Perfect's:. .~
‘Pplatform function. . .
: ,Opefation of a weather -
channel . .0 ..
Providin§ weal-her” -
:ir:jfb;hétioh onits: .
promotion channels -
Providing news flashes at”
times of natural disasters. ;-

15 ©2007 SKY Parfact Communicationss Irm, AX Rights Reserved

Advance-Call Pay Per View Service

‘Commenced an Advance-Call Pay Per View Service with which subscribers can sign
up far PPV programs without connecting STB to telephone line. - o

Channel coverage: POWER PLATS {Ch. 100 and 101) and Perfect Choice (Ch. 161 and 162}
Programs: Selected Western and Japanese movies
Day of broadcast: Saturdays and Sundays
Application period: From the prior Monday to the day before broadcast
Please Apply for: SKY PerfecTV! Customer Center
Tel. 0570-039-888 (10:00 to 20:00)
A dedicated phone number for Advance-Call Pay Per View Service is
opening soon,

© 2007 SKY Parfm: | Commumcatons (ro, AFRyhts Reserved




Multi-Room Viewing - WILLCOM -

17 © 2007 SKY Farfoct Gommunications Ina . A Aights Reserved

Enhancing Customer Service and
Prevention of Churn

e A AR ot

——
18 © 2007 SKY Perfot Communcatians lnc . AT Rights Recerved




Development of 110-Degree CS
Digital Broadcasting Service

19 0 2007 SKY Perlect Communications [rc.. AF Righls Reserved

e2 by SKY PerfecTV! -New Service Name—

20 © 2007 5K Parfect Communicators inc . AF Rights Reserved
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High Definition Broadcasting
on e2 by SKY PerfecTV!

21 © 2007 SKY Pactuct Communaxns brc., AF Riphts Reserved

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI| -=Condominiums-

Number of subscribers
A
I.
.l
l
1

(Thousands)

B Number of households within
propertiax that have
approved service brovieion

B Number of hauscholds within
proparies currently recelving]
service

«0a
100
oa

22 © 2007 SKY Parfect Communication I . AF Rights Reserved




SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI ~Detached Homes--

Number of subscribers

7,000

8,000 |

5000 r

“ 6 A % 5.8 .80

O Number of new subscribers
@ Gumulative numbar of subscribers

23 © 2007 EKY Parfaci Communicatona Inc, AF Rights Ry srrved

SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI
and Other Wired Services

a Currenlly provide SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI services in Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya
.+ Metropolitan Area by using NTT's optical fiber nelworks Expansnon in suburban

i - areas of Tokyo, such as Saitama, is planned.
‘0" Also providing Other Wired Services in local areas.

12
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IP Broadcasting --Equity investments
and business developments--

Broadcasting using Broadcasting using
Radio Frequency Internet Protocol

Broadcasters ..

services .

System 5.

‘Customer management

- and billing.

Sales and B
. arketing activities

25 © 2007 BKY Parfact Communiontions Ire.. AF Rights Reservd

General Notes to This Material

Financial sdormation in this matenal is prepared under Japanese GAAP unless memtioned otherwrse. -

*Sales Incentives” mean sales Incertives paid to the manufacirers and reteders of our set-iop boxes uu:ming o the mmber of

new subscribers and are Commissions to SahsAgmts in the Maprlmrnsund Amount cut of the Sales andGetmlExvenses in

the note of the financial statements A

umber of Subscribers o Lo T .

Number of individual Subscribers

Subseribers who agreed with Pny-Sub:cﬁpton Ag—eemenl und hm been nciunl!'y puylng subseription I'ea

Number of Total Registrations:

The total numbers of provisional subscribers bem'e exel:wng Pay—Suuscnpnun Ay'eemenl. Insnuloml swscnm Indudng

retailers exhibition and registrations for technical development In addibon lo DTH subscribers.

’Touu Dealng Amourt of Subscripbon Fees” Is used 1o represent the scale of the subscription fees of our company for comverience

called ps “Total Bikng Amours of Subscription Fees”, meaning Subscripiion Fees (Fh1 PPV and Own contert) +

Regmﬂon Fee + Basic Fee + Corporaie Subscripion Fee, in this presentaton material.

EBiTOA was ¢akutatad as Operatng +Dep P to Net profigloss) + bss of rdnuﬂty interests +

Corporaie tax, Resident fax and Business tax + Inerest payrnent + Depreclation expenses.

Forward looking statements including plan. strategy or befiel comdained in this material are not past facts but are forecasts based

on the assumpton o befief of our management judging from information avaitable currentty. Final decisions related to investmant

-sre on the judgment of users hemselves. Such forward-looking statements are not guaranteed of future parformance and involve

risks and uriceftaintes, and actual results may ditfer from thosa in the (ooking-forward stalements as a resuit of varicus factors,

“lnchudhg, (1) the economic environment surrounding our areas of business, in particular consumer trends, (2) changes in

- legisiation such &s troadeasting laws and communications laws, particularly in ihe case of resticion of owr business of proposals

.to this effect or incese of, for example, new business eniry by rival companies, and (3} our ability ko develop and conlinue ©

provide programs and services acceptable o cusiomers i a fercely compelitve market charactenized by featres such as

renwkwry rapi¢ technical innovaton in the dgital technology field in particutar and remarkably subj and changeable
customer preferences in broadcasting business, However, factors thal coul influence or business are not limited to the

< For any Inqulnes about this material or investor relatiohs of our company)
. SKY Perfect Communications Inc. PR & IR Department

E-mail : [rf®skyperfectv.cojp TEL ; +B1-3-546B-TB00)
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Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of January 2007

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director; Masao Nito, “SKY Perfect”) announced the number of total
registrations and individual subscribers as of the end of January 2007

Churn 44711 33,971
Churn Rate*’ 12.7% 11.3%
Net Increase 7,880 3,823

Cumulative Total 4,216,037 3,614,832

* The tota] column shows the summed-up figure of cumulative totals of DTH Services and Wired Broadcasting
Services.

¢ Individual Subgcribars*2za

SKY PerfecTV!

New Subscribers 21,738
Churn 29,959

Churn Rate*’ 11.1%
Net Increase -8.221
Cumulative Total 3,699,348 3,216,561
SKY PerfecTV! 110.::! ]+ Total Subsériberst'“" | Individual Subscribers*®..
New Subscribers 29,972 18,711
Churn 12,230 3,304

Churn Rate** 33.8% 12.8%
Net Increase 17,742 15,317
Cumulative Total 451,839 334,556
= Cimiilative Total of DTH Services T 415187 - 0 3,551,117

Mu_lgiqlih:lifhel_.Broad_casting Service

through SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI * | - Total Subscribers™

dividus Subsrbers

New Subscnbers 1,591 1,622
Chumn 177 175
Churn Rate** 9.6% 9.8%
Net Increase 1,414 1,447
Cumulative Total 23,482 22,809




individual Subscribers*? ¢

New Subscribers 506 723
Churmn 443 443
Churn Rate*’ 12.9% 13.1%
Net Increase 63 280
Cumulative Total 41,368 40 906

v, o : 63 715?

*1 Total Subscnbers: The total numbers of prowswnal subscribers before emcutmg pay- subscription agreement
(provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV! only), institutional subscribers including retailers exhibition and
registrations for technical development in addition to individual subscribers,

*2  TIndividual Subscribers; Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have been actually paying
subscription fee.

*3  Monthly Churn Rate: The chum rete is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number of churns into
yearly basis.
Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month /Total subscribers at the end of the previous month x 12
months

*4 The multichannel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, jointly operated with Energia
Communications, Inc. and the channel lease service in Achi-mura, Nagano, that uses available fiber-optic
network bandwidth will remain under the name of “HIKARI Perfec TV

*5  Other Wired Broadcasting Services; Other Wired Broadcasting Services refer to the number of multichannel
broadcasting contract using SKY Perfect’s digital broadcasting system, including cable television, excluding
SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARL

The breakdown of properties that have approved SKY PerfecTV/! HIKARI and properties
receiving the service as of the end of January 2007,

Properties that have approved ..« Properties currently .
o R <} service prov:snon* -] . recelving service®
Number of properties 700 1,018
Number of households*® 79,249 83,696

*5  Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each month, have
concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) provision agreement.
This figure also includes some properties for which service provision will commence in the following month or
later, depending on when construction will be completed.

*7 Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month, broadcasting
services (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) are being provided and which are being charged
for such.

*$  The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-5400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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ST JSAT Corporation

T LT Kiyoshi Isozaki, President & CEO, Representative Director
S . o (Code Number: 9442, First Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange)

¢ ‘C %:C:&;_(:),ntact:,l-ﬁdeto Usa, Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division, General Manager

TEL: 03-5219-7778

SKY Perfect Communications Inc,

Masao Nito, President and Representative Director

(Code Number: 4795, First Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange)

Contact: Tomonari Niimoto, Public Relations and Investor Relations Department, General Manager
TEL: 03-5468-9400

Notice Regarding Allocation and Issuance of Stock Acquisition Rights
Accompanying the Share Transfer

JSAT Corporation (President & CEO: Kiyoshi Isozaki; Headquarters: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; “JSAT”) and SKY
Perfect Communications Inc. (President and Representative Director: Masao Nito; Headquarters: Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo; “SKY Perfect”) are pleased to announce that, following a resolution approving the share transfer plan at
an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting for both companies held today, JSAT and SKY Perfect have finalized the
allocation and issuance of stock acquisition rights for SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (“SKY Perfect JSAT"), the
holding company established through the share transfer. These new stock acquisition rights will be issued in lien
of the existing stock acquisition rights to each holder of the existing stock acquisition rights as follows upon the
share transfer, as per the Notice regarding the Preparation of a Share Transfer Plan and the Conclusion of a Share
Transfer Agreement released by both companies on January 11, 2007.

The following details are now provided as supplementary information to the announcement made on January 1,

2007.
Details

Provided in the table below and the attachment are the details of the existing JSAT and SKY Perfect stock
acquisition rights in question, the type and number of shares regarding stock acquisition rights to be issued by
SKY Perfect JSAT in lieu of the existing stock acquisition rights, the amount to be invested on exercise of the

stock acquisition rights, and the exercise period for stock acquisition rights.




First stock 1,644 | 105,436 yen | Dec. 1, 2004 to First stock 1,644
acquisition rights Nov. 30, 2008 acquisition rights | (1,644 shares)
of SKY Perfect of SKY Perfect
JSAT
Second stock 2,909 | 152,000 yen | April 1, 2006 to Second stock 2,909
acquisition nghts March 31, 2010 acquisition rights | (2,909 shares)
of SKY Perfect of SKY Perfect
JSAT
Third stock 1,158 | 126,105 yen | Dec. 1, 2006 to Third stock 1,158
acquisition rights Nov. 30, 2010 acquisition rights | (1,158 shares)
of SKY Perfect of SKY Perfect
JSAT
Fourth stock 2,522 | 83,953 yen | Aug. 1, 2007 to July | Fourth stock 2,522
acquisition rights 31,2011 acquisition rights | (2,522 shares)
of SKY Perfect of SKY Perfect
JSAT
Fifth stock 1,180 | 70,256 yen | Oct. 1, 2008 to Sept. | Fifth stock 1,180
acquisition rights 30,2012 acquisition rights (1,180 shares)
of SKY Perfect of SKY Perfect
JSAT
First stock 1,000 | 464,387 yen | July 1, 2005 to June | Sixth stock 1,000
acquisition rights 30, 2008 acquisition rights | (4,000 shares)
of JSAT of SKY Perfect
JSAT
Second stock 1,000 | 340,150 yen | July 1, 2005 to June | Seventh stock 1,000
acquisition rights 30, 2009 acquisition rights | (4,000 shares)
of JSAT of SKY Perfect
JSAT
Fourth stock 300 | 308,600 yen | July 1, 2007 to June | Eighth stock 300
acquisition nights 30,2011 acquisition rights | (1,200 shares)
of JSAT of SKY Perfect
JSAT
Fifth stock 1,200 | 308,600 yen | Dec. 22, 2008 to Ninth stock 1,200
acquisition rights June 30, 2011 acquisition nights | (4,800 shares)
of JSAT of SKY Perfect
JSAT
Total 12,913 12913
(23,413

shares)




*]  With respect to type and number of shares regarding the stock acquisition rights to be issued by SKY
Perfect JSAT, taking into account the exchange ratio in the share transfer plan, one common share of
SKY Perfect JSAT will be acquired for each stock acquisition right in case of the first through fifth
stock acquisition rights, and four common shares of SKY Perfect J SAT will be acquired for each stock
acquisition right in case of the sixth through ninth stock acquisition rights.

*2  The number of each stock acquisition rights issued by the companies is as of February 9, 2007 and is
subject to change by cxercise of the rights thereafter. With this exercise, the number of stock
acquisition rights to be issued by SKYY Perfect JSAT in lieu of the existing stock acquisition rights will
be subject to change accordingly. In addition, whereas the number of stock acquisition rights initially
issued for the fourth stock acquisition rights of SKY Perfect was 2,599, this number has now
decreased with the retirement of one recipient, reducing the number by 77 to a current total of 2,522.

*3  Some changes have been made to the exercise periods for stock acquisition rights. Please refer to the
separate schedule for details pertaining to the exercise periods for SKY Perfect JSAT stock acquisition

rights.

* For inquiries:

JSAT Corporation
Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division
TEL: 03-5219-7778 FAX: 03-5219-7876

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Public Relations and Investor Relations Department
TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399




(Reference)

Details of First Series Stock Acquisition Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

1. Corporate name
SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation {(the “Company™)

2. Total number of stock acquisition rights

1,644 units

This is the scheduled number of the total number of stock acquisition rights to be allocated, and the Company shall
deduct the number of First Series Stock Acquisition Rights issued by SKY Perfect Communications Inc. exercised
before the day immediately prior to the Company’s incorporation date.

3. Number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

1,644 shares of common stock in the Company

The number of shares of common stock of the Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
shall be one share of common stock in the Company (the “Number of Shares per SAR”).

In the case of a stock split or stock consolidation by the Company, the Number of Shares per SAR shall be adjusted
using the following formula.

Number of shares _ Number of shares Ratio of stock split or consolidation

after adjustment before adjustment

X

If the Company carries out a gratis allotment of shares, if it carries out a merger, company split, share for share
exchange or share transfer (collectively, “Merger, ¢tc.”), or any other adjustment of the Number of Shares per SAR is
required, the Company may adjust the Number of Shares per SAR to the extent deemed reasonably necessary taking
into account terms and conditions of the gratis allotment of shares or the Merger, etc.  Any fraction of a share resulting
from any adjustments above shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

4, Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be obtained by
multiplying the amount to be paid per share upon exercise of stock acquisition rights (“Exercise Price”) by the Number
of Shares per SAR.

The Exercise Price shall be 105,436 yen.

If the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation with respect to the shares in the Company, the Exercise
Price mentioned above shall be adjusted using the following formula according to the ratio of stock split or stock
consolidation, and any fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

1

Exercise Price - Exercise Price
afler adjustment before adjustment Ratio of stock split or consolidation

If the Company issues new shares or disposes of treasury stocks at a price that is less than the market price with respect
to the shares in the Company (excluding sales of treasury stocks in accordance with the provisions of Article 194 of the
Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less Than One Unit), conversion or
exercise of stock acquisition rights which allow to request delivery of securities to be or that may be converied to shares
of the Company or shares of the Company (including stock acquisition rights attached to bonds with stock acquisition
rights) and including gratis allotment of shares), the abovementioned Exercise Price per share shall be adjusted using
the following formula, and any fraction of a yen after such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Number of shares newly issued
x  Exercise price per share
Number of issued shares +
Market price
Exercise Price _ Exercise Price x
after adjustment before adjustment

Number of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued

The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the total number of issued shares of the Company less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares held by the Company.  If the Company disposes of its treasury stocks,
“Number of shares newly issned” shall be read as “Number of treasury stocks 1o be disposed of”.

If the Company carries out the Merger, etc. or when the Exercise Price above requires any other adjustment, the
Company may adjust the Exercise Price to a reasonable extent taking ito consideration the conditions of the Mergers,
etc.

5. Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From April 2, 2007 to November 30, 2008

6. Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights
(a) Any person who is allocated stock acquisition rights (an “SAR Holder”) may exercise them even after the holder




loses his or her position as a director or an employee of the Company, provided, that if any of the followings
applies to such SAR Holder, he or she may not exercise stock acquisition rights thereafter,

(i) A director is removed, or an employce is dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;

(ii) A director or an employee acts in a way that is hostile to the Company or harms the interest of the Company
such as becomes a director, corporate auditor, employee, advisor, contract employce, consultant or the like of
a company in competition with the Company. This shall apply only when such act is made with the
intention of acting hostile lowards the Company or harming the interest of the Company;

(iii) An SAR Holder is subject 1o imprisonment without labor or heavier penalties;

(iv) Any event that should be a rcason for dismissal under instruction or disciplinary action of an employee that is
revealed after his or her retirement;

(v) An SAR Holder transfers, pledges, creates as security, or otherwise disposes of the allocated stock acquisition
rights to any third party.

(b) Any SAR Holder may not split one stock acquisiton right and exercise that right.
(c) [Succession of Stock Acquisition Rights]

(i) If an SAR Holder dies, his or her successor may exercise the stock acquisition rights in accordance with
provision of this item {c) unless before his or her death the SAR Holder gave the Company a written notice
stating that the holder does not wish his or her successor to exercise the stock acquisition rights. When an
SAR Holder dies, the conditions described in (a) above shail not be applied.

(ii) When succeeding stock acquisition rights, promptly after commencement of inheritance the successor of an
SAR Holder must notify the Company in writing of the following matters in the form prescnibed by the
Company, signed and sealed by all the successors (only with registered seals, but non-Japanese successors
may use their signatures instead of seals).

a. Commencement date of inheritance;

b.  Names and addresses of all the successors (in case of successors residing outside of Japan, their contact
information within Japan);

c. Name of the successor who will succeed the stock acquisition rights and the number of stock acquisition
rights to be succeeded (there may be no fractions of stock acquisition rights).

(iii) The successor of an SAR Holder must submit the following documents to the Company when notifying of
the matters set out in (ii) above,

a. A certified copy of the removal of the SAR Holder;

b. A certified copy of the family register or the like proving that persons who signed and sealed the form
described in (ii) above are all the successors of the holder of stock agcuisition rights;

c.  Cenrtificates of scal registration (or for non-Japanese successors proof of signaturej of all the successors
of the holder of stock aqcuisition rights;

d.  Other documents that the Company specifies.

(iv) If a successor who succeeded stock acquisition rights of an SAR Holder dies, it shall be handled as if an SAR
Holder has died, and the same applies thereafier.

7. Mattcrs on stated capital and capital rescrves to be increased when issning shares upon exercise of
stock acquisition rights

The amount of stated capital to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shali be a half
of the maximum amount of capital increase calculated in accordance with Aricle 40.1 of the Corporate Calculation
Rules, with any fraction of a yen resulting from that calculation being rounded up to the nearest whele yen. The
amount of capital reserves to be increased in such case shall be the abovementioned maximum amount of capital
increase less the amount of stated capital to be increased.

8. Restrictions on the transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Company.

9. Causes of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

(a) If a proposal for the approval of a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissolved company is
approved, a proposal for the approval of a company split agreement where the split division is succeeded by
another existing company (kyushu bunkatsu) or a compamy split plan where a new company is incorporated
(shinsetsu bunkatsu), or a proposal for the approval of a share for share exchange agreement or share transfer plan
under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved at the Company’s shareholders’
meeting (or a board of directors meeting, if a resolution of a shareholders’ meeting is not required), the Company
may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by the board of directors of the
Company.

(b) The Company may acquire all or part of the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by
board of directors of the Company. When aquiring part of stock acquisition rights, the portion to be acquired shall
be resolved by the board of directors of the Company.

10. Issue of stock acquisition rights upon the Company’s merger (only when the Company is dissolved as a
result of merger), company split (kyushu bunkatsu or shinsetsu bunkatsu), share for share exchange or share
transfer and the conditions thereof

If the Company carries oul a merger (only when the Company becomes dissolved as a result of the merger), company
split {whether the split division is succeeded by another existing company (Kyvushu bunkatsu) or a new company is
incorporated (shinsetsu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or a share transfer (collectively “Reorganization”), stock
acquisition rights of the surviving joint-stock company after merger, the incorporated joint-stock company upon merger,
the joint-stock company succeeding all or pant of the rights and obligations of the joint-stock company conducting the
kyushu bunkatsu related to the business, the joint-stock company incorporated upon shinsetsu bunkatsu, the joint-stock




company succeeding all the issued shares of the joint-stock company conducting a share for share exchange, or the
joint-stock company incorporated upon share transfer {collectively “Reorganized Company”) shall be delivered using
the following manner. This shall apply only if the Company’s shareholders’ meeting approves the merger agreement,
consolidation agreement, kyushu bunkatsu agreement, shinseisu bunkatsu plan, share for share exchange agreement or
share transfer plan.
(a) Number of stock acquisition rights of Reorganized Company to be Delivered

The number of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of

remaining stock acquisition rights.
(b) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

Shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company
(c) Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right

To be determined in accordance with Scction 3 above flaking into consideration the conditions of the

Reorganization.
(d) Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right

The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be

determined in accordance with Section 4 above taking into consideration the conditions of the Reorganization.
(€) Exercise Period of Stock Acquisition Rights

From the later of the commencement date of the exercise period of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 5

above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise period of stock acquisition

rights set out in Section 5 above.
(f) Matiers on Stated Capital and Capital Reserves to be Increased upon Issuance of Shares by Exercise of Stock

Acquisition Rights

To be determined in accordance with Section 7 above.
(g) Restrictions on the Acquisition by Transfer of Stock Acquisition Rights

Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reorganized Company.
(h) Other Conditions of Exercising Stock Acquisition Rights and Causes for Acquisition of Stock Acquisition Rights

To be determined in accordance with Sections 6 and 9 above.

11. Issue of stock acquisition right certificates
Stock acquisition right certificates shatl not be issued.

12. Handling of fractional shares
If the number of shares delivered 10 a SAR Holder who exercised stock acquisition rights is a fraction of a whole share,
the fraction of a share shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

13. Location to submit exercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company
14, Payment location upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd., Otemachi Corporate Banking Division (or an applicable branch of Mizuho Corporate
Bank Ltd.’s successor)

15. Total issuable shares of the Company
14,500,000 shares
16. Name, address and business office of the shareholder register administrator of the Company

(i) Shareholder Register Administrator
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
(ii) Business Handing Location of Shareholder Register Administrator
Head Office Securities Agency Department of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Lid.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
(iii) Agency Location of Shareholder Register Administrator
Branch offices of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. within Japan
Head office and branch offices of Mizuho Investors Securities Co., Ltd.

17. Handling of interpretation of terms and conditions and other measures

If certain provisions under these terms and conditions should be read differently, the Company may take necessary
measures in any manner it deems appropriate such as amendments to the terms and conditions provided herein in
accordance with the provisions of the Corporation Law and the objectives of the stock acquisition rights.




Details of Second Series Stock Acquisition Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

1. Corporate name
SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation {the “Company™)

2. Total number of stock acquisition rights

2,909 units

This is the scheduled number of the total number of stock acquisition rights to be allocated, and the Company shall
deduct the number of Second Series Stock Acquisition Rights issued by SKY Perfect Communications Inc. exercised
before the day immediately prior to the Company’s incorporation date.

3. Number of shares to be acguired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

2,909 shares of common stock in the Company

The number of shares of common stock of the Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
shall be one share of common stock in the Company (the “Number of Shares per SAR™).

In the case of a stock split or stock consolidation by the Company, the Number of Shares per SAR shall be adjusted
using the following formula.

Number of shares - Number of shares Ratio of stock split or consolidation

afier adjustment before adjustment

X

If the Company carries out a gratis allotment of shares, if it carries oul a merger, company split, share for share
exchange or share transfer (collectively, “Merger, etc.”), or any other adjustment of the Number of Shares per SAR is
required, the Company may adjust the Number of Shares per SAR 1o the extent deemed reasonably necessary taking
into account terms and conditions of the gratis allotment of shares or the Merger, etc. Any fraction of a share
resulting from any adjustments above shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

4. Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be obtained by
multiplying the amount to be paid per share upon exercise of stock acquisition rights (“Exercise Price”} by the Number
of Shares per SAR_

The Exercise Price shall be 152,000 yen.

If the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation with respect to the shares in the Company, the Exercise
Price mentioned above shall be adjusted using the following formula according 1o the ratio of stock split or stock
consolidation, and any fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

1
Exercise Price _  Exercise Price x Ratio of stock split or consolidation
afier adjustment before adjustment

If the Company issues new shares or disposes of treasury stocks at a price that is less than the market price with respect
to the shares in the Company (excluding sales of treasury stocks in accordance with the provisions of Article 194 of the
Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less Than One Unit), conversion or
exercise of stock acquisition rights which allow to request delivery of securities to be or that may be converted 1o shares
of the Company or shares of the Company (including stock acquisition rights attached to bonds with stock acquisition
rights) and including gratis allotment of shares ), the abovementioned Exercise Price per share shall be adjusied using
the following formula, and any fraction of a yen afier such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Number of shares newly issued
x  Exercise price per share

Number of issued shares +
Market price

Exercise Price - Exercise Price x

afier adjustment before adjustment
er acistmen ore 1 o Number of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued

The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the total number of issued shares of the Company less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares held by the Company.  If the Company disposes of its treasury stocks,
“Number of shares newly issued” shall be read as “Number of treasury stocks to be disposed of”.

If the Company carries out the Merger, etc. or when the Exercise Price above requires any other adjustment, the
Company may adjust the Exercise Price to a reasonable extent taking into consideration the conditions of the Mergers,
etc.

5. Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From April 2, 2007 to March 31, 2010

6. Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights
(a) Any person who is allocated stock acquisition rights (an “SAR Holder”) may exercise them even after the holder




loses his or her position as a director or an employce of the Company, provided, that if any of the followings

applies to such SAR Holder, he or she may not exercise stock acquisition rights thereafter.

(1) A director is removed, or an employee is dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;,

(i) A director or an employee acts in a way that is hostile to the Company or harms the interest of the Company
such as becomes a director, corporate auditor, employee, advisor, contract employee, consultant or the like of
a company in competition with the Company. This shall apply only when such act is made with the
intention of acting hostile towards the Company or harming the interest of the Company,

(iif) An SAR Holder is subject to imprisonment without labor or heavicr penallics;

(iv) Any event that should be a reason for dismissal under instruction or disciplinary action of an employee that is
revealed afier his or her retirement;

{(v) An SAR Holder transfers, pledges, creates as security, or otherwise disposes of the allocated stock acquisition
rights to any third party.

(b) Any SAR Holder may not split one stock acquisiton right and exercise that right.
{c) [Successton of Stock Acquisition Rights]

(i) If an SAR Holder dies, his or her successor may exercise the stock acquisition rights in accordance with
provision of this item (c) unless before his or her death the SAR Holder gave the Company a written notice
stating that the holder does not wish his or her successor 1o exercise the stock acquisition rights, When an
SAR Holder dies, the conditions described in {(a) above shall not be applied.

(ii) When succeeding stock acquisition rights, promptly afier commencement of irheritance the successor of an
SAR Holder must notify the Company in writing of the following matters in the form prescribed by the
Company, signed and sealed by all the successors (only with registered seals, but non-fapanese successors
may use their signatures instead of seals).

a. Commencement date of inheritance;

b. Names and addresses of all the successors (in case of successors residing outside of Japan, their contact
information within Japan);

¢.  Name of the successor who will succeed the stock acquisition rights and the number of stock acquisition
rights to be succeeded (there may be no fractions of stock acquisition rights).

(iii) The successor of an SAR Holder must submit the following documents to the Company when notifying of
the matters set out in (ii) above.

a. A certified copy of the removal of the SAR Holder;

b. A certified copy of the family register or the like proving that persons who signed and sealed the form
described in (i) above are all the successors of the holder of stock aqcuisition rights;

¢. Cenificates of scal registration (or for non-Japanese successors proof of signature) of all the successors
of the holder of stock aqcuisition rights;

d.  Other documents that the Company specifies.

(iv) If a successor who succeeded stock acquisition rights of an SAR Holder dies, it shall be handled as if an SAR
Holder has died, and the same applies thereafier.

7. Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased whea issuing shares upon exercise of
stock acquisition rights

The amount of stated capital to be increased when issuing shares upen exercise of stock acquisition rights shali be a half
of the maximum amount of capital increase calculated in accordance with Article 40.1 of the Corporate Calculation
Rules, with any fraction of a ven resulting from that calculation being rounded up 1o the nearest whole yen. The
amount of capital reserves 1o be increased in such case shall be the abovementioned maximum amoumt of capital
increase less the amount of stated capital to be increased.

8. Restrictions on the traonsfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Company.

9. Causes of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

(a) If a proposal for the approval of a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissolved company is
approved, a proposal for the approval of a company split agreement where the split division is succeeded by
another existing company (kyushu bunkatsu) or a company split plan where a new company is incorporated
(shinsetsu bunkatsu), or a proposal for the approval of a share for share exchange agreement or share transfer plan
under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved at the Company’s shareholders’
meeting (or a board of directors meeting, if a resolution of a shareholders’ mecting is not required), the Company
gay acquire the stock acquisition rights al no cost on the date separately determined by the board of directors of the

ompany.

(b) The Company may acquire all or part of the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by
board of directors of the Company. When aquiring pant of stock acquisition rights, the pertion to be acquired shall
be resolved by the board of directors of the Company.

10. Issue of stock acquisition rights upon the Company’s merger (only when the Company is dissolved as a
result of merger), company split (kyushu bunkatsu or shinsctsu bunkatsu), share for share exchange or share
transfer and the conditions thereof

If the Company carries cut a merger (only when the Company becomes dissolved as a result of the merger), company
split (whether the split division is succeeded by another existing company (kyushu bunkatsu) or a new company 1s
incorporated (shinseisu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or a share transfer (collectively “Reorganization™), stock
acquisition rights of the surviving joint-stock company afier merger, the incorporated joint-stock company upon merger,
the joint-stock company succeeding all or part of the rights and obligations of the joint-stock company conducting the
kyushu bunkatsu related to the business, the joint-stock company incorperated upon shinsetsu bunkatsu, the joint-stock




company succeeding all the issued shares of the joint-stock company conducting a share for share exchange, or the
joint-stock company incorporated upon share transfer (collectively “Reorganized Company”) shall be delivered using
the following manner. This shall apply only if the Company’s shareholders’ meeting approves the merger agreement,
consolidation agreement, kyushu bunkatsu agreement, shinsetsu bunkatsu plan, share for share exchange agreement or
share transfer plan.
(2) Number of stock acquisition rights of Reorganized Company to be Delivered
The number of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of
remaining stock acquisition rights.
(b) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon cxercise of stock acquisition rights
Shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company
(c) Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
To be determined in accordance with Section 3 above taking into consideration the conditions of the
Reorganization.
(d) Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be
determined in accordance with Section 4 above taking into consideration the conditions of the Reorganization.
(e) Exercise Period of Stock Acquisition Rights
From the later of the commencement date of the exercise peried of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 3
above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise period of stock acquisition
rights set out in Section 5 above.
(f) Matters on Stated Capital and Capital Reserves to be Increased upon Issuance of Shares by Exercise of Stock
Acquisition Rights : _
To be determined in accordance with Section 7 above.
(g) Restrictions on the Acquisition by Transfer of Stock Acquisition Rights :
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reorganized Company.
(h) Other Conditions of Exercising Stock Acquisition Rights and Causes for Acquisition of Stock Acquisition Rights
To be determined in accordance with Sections 6 and 9 above.

11. Issue of stock acquisition right certificates
Stock acquisition right certificates shall not be issued.

12. Handling of fractional shares
If the number of shares delivered to a SAR Holder who exercised stock acquisition rights is a fraction of a whole share,
the fraction of a share shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

13. Location to submit exercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company
14. Payment location upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd., Otemachi Corporate Banking Division (or an applicable branch of Mizuho Corporate
Bank Ltd.’s successor)

15. Total issuable shares of the Company
14,500,000 shares

16. Name, address and business office of the shareholder register administrator of the Company
(i) Shareholder Regisier Administrator
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
(ii) Business Handing Location of Shareholder Register Administrator
Head Office Securities Agency Department of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
(iii) Agency Location of Shareholder Register Administrator
Branch offices of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. within Japan
Head office and branch offices of Mizuho Investors Securities Co., Ltd.

17 Handling of interpretation of terms and conditions and other measures

If certain provisions under these terms and conditions should be read differently, the Company may take necessary
measures in any manner it deems appropriate such as amendments to the terms and conditions provided herein in
accordance with the provisions of the Corporation Law and the objectives of the stock acquisition rights.




Details of Third Series Stock Acquisition Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

1. Corporate name
SKY Perfect ISAT Corporation (the “Company”)

2. Total number of stock acquisition rights

1,158 units

This is the scheduled number of the total number of stock acquisition rights to be allocated, and the Company shall
deduct the number of Third Series Stock Acquisition Rights issued by SKY Perfect Communications Inc. exercised
before the day immediately prior to the Company’s incorporation date.

3 Number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

1,158 shares of common stock in the Company

The number of shares of common stock of the Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
shall be one share of commeon stock in the Company (the “Number of Shares per SAR”).

Tn the case of a stock split or stock consolidation by the Company, the Number of Shares per SAR shall be adjusted
using the following formula.

Number of shares . Number of shares Ratio of stock split or conselidation

after adjustment before adjustment

X

If the Company carries out 2 gratis allotment of shares, if it carries out a merger, company split, share for share
exchange or share transfer (collectively, “Merger, etc.”), or any other adjustment of the Number of Shares per SAR is
required, the Company may adjust the Number of Shares per SAR to the extent deemed reasonably necessary taking
into account terms and conditions of the gratis allotment of shares or the Merger, etc.  Any fraction of a share resulting
from any adjustments above shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

4, Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be obtained by
multiplying the amount to be paid per share upon exercise of stock acquisition rights (“Exercise Price”) by the Number
of Shares per SAR.

The Exercise Price shall be 126,105 yen.

If the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation with respect to the shares in the Company, the Exercise
Price mentioned above shall be adjusied using the following formula according to the ratio of stock split or stock
consolidation, and any fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole ven.

)1

Exercise Price = Exercise Price x Ratio of stock split or consolidation
afier adjustment before adjustment

If the Company issues new shares or disposes of treasury stocks at a price that is less than the market price with respect
to the shares in the Company (excluding sales of trcasury stocks in accordance with the provisions of Article 194 of the
Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less Than One Unit), CONVersion or
exercise of stock acquisition rights which allow to request delivery of securities to be or that may be converted to shares
of the Company or shares of the Company (including stock acquisition rights attached 1o, bonds with stock acquisition
rights) and including gratis allotment of shares}, the abovementioned Exercise Price per share shall be adjusted using
the following formula, and any fraction of a yen after such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen,

Number of shares newly issued
%  Exercise price per share

Number of issued shares +
Market price

Exercise Price _  Exercise Price x

after adjustment before adjustment
er adjustmen ore adjusimen Nutnber of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued

The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the total number of issued shares of the Company less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares held by the Company.  If the Company disposes of its treasury stocks,
“Number of shares newly issued” shall be read as “Number of treasury stocks to be disposed of”.

If the Company carries out the Merger, eic. or when the Exercise Price above requires any other adjustment, the
Company may adjust the Exercise Price to a reasonable extent taking into consideration the conditions of the Mergers,
etc.

5. Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From April 2, 2007 to November 30, 2010

6. Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights
(a) Any person who is allocated stock acquisition rights (an “SAR Holder”) may exercise them even after the holder
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loses his or her position as a director or an employee of the Company, provided, that if any of the followings

applies 1o such SAR Holder, he or she may not exercise stock acguisition rights thereafler.

(i) A dircctor is removed, or an employee is dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;

(ii) A director or an employee acts in a way that is hostile to the Company or harms the interest of the Company
such as becomes a director, corporate auditor, employee, advisor, contract employee, consultant or the like of
a company in compctition with the Company. This shall apply only when such act is made with the

_ intention of acting hostile towards the Company or harming the interest of the Company;

(iii) An SAR Holder is subject to imprisonment without labor or heavier penalties;

{iv) Any event that should be a reason for dismissal under instruction or disciplinary action of an employee that is
revealed after his or her retirement;

(v) An SAR Holder transfers, pledges, creates as security, or otherwise disposes of the aflocated stock acquisition
rights to any third party.

{b) Holders of stock acquisition rights may exercise all or part of stock acquisition rights allocated in accordance with
(i) or (ii) below. Any fraction of a stock acquisition right for the number of exercisable stock acquisition rights
shall be rounded up to the nearest whole unit.

(i) Holders of steck acquisition rights may exercise half of the rights allocated from April 2, 2007 to November

30, 2007.

(ii) Holders of stock acquisition rights may exercise all rights allocated from December 1, 2007 to November 30,

2010.

(c) Any SAR Holder may not split one stock acquisiton right and exercise that right.

(d) [Succession of Stock Acquisition Rights]

(i) If an SAR Holder dies, his or her successor may exercise the stock acquisition rights in accordance with
provision of this item (d) unless before his or her death the SAR Holder gave the Company a written notice
stating that the holder does not wish his or her successor to exercise the stock acquisition rights. When an
SAR Holder dies, the conditions described in (a) and (b) above shall not be applied.

(ii) When succeeding stock acquisition rights, promptly after commencement of inheritance the successor of an
SAR Holder must notify the Company in writing of the following matters in the form prescribed by the
Company, signed and sealed by all the successors (only with registered seals, but non-Japanese successors
may use their signatures instead of seals).

a. Commencement date of inheritance;

b. Names and addresses of all the successors (in case of successors residing outside of Japan, their contact
information within Japan);

¢. Name of the successor who will succeed the stock acquisition rights and the number of stock acquisition
rights to be succeeded (there may be no fractions of a stock acquisition rights).

(iii) The successor of an SAR Holdcr must submit the following documents to the Company when notifying of
the matters set out in (ii) above.

a. A certified copy of the removal of the SAR Holder;

b. A certified copy of the family register or the like proving that persons who signed and scaled the form
described in (ii) above are all the successors of the holder of stock ageuisition nights;

c. Certificates of scal registration (or for non-Japanese successors proof of signature) of all the successors
of the holder of stock agcuisition rights;

d.  Other ducuments that the Company specifies.

(iv) If a successor who succeeded stock acquisition rights of an SAR Holder dies, it shall be handled as if an SAR
Holder has died, and the same applies thereafter.

7. Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of
stock acquisition rights

The amount of stated capital 10 be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall be a half
of the maximum amount of capital increase calculated in accordance with Article 40.1 of the Corporate Calculation
Rules, with any fraction of a yen resulting from that calculation being rounded up to the nearest whole yen. The
amount of capital reserves to be increased in such case shall be the abovementioned maximum amount of capital
increase less the amount of stated capital to be increased.

8. Restrictions on the transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Company.

9. Causes of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

(a) If a proposal for the approval of a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissolved company is
approved, a proposal for the approval of a company split agreement where the split division is succeeded by
another existing company (kyushu bunkatsu) or a company split plan where a new company is incorporated
(shinsetsu bunkatsu), or a proposal for the approval of a share for share exchange agreement or share transfer plan
under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved at the Company’s sharcholders’
meeting (or a board of directors meeting, if a resolution of a shareholders’ meeting is not required), the Company
may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date scparately determined by the board of directors of the
Company.

(b) The Company may acquire all or part of the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by
board of directors of the Company. When aquiring part of stock acquisition rights, the portion to be acquired shall
be resolved by the beard of directors of the Company.

10. Issue of stock acquisition rights upon the Company’s merger (only when the Company is dissolved as a
result of merger), company split (kyushu bunkatsu or shinsetsu bunkatsu), share for share exchange or share
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transfer and the conditions thercof
If the Company carries out a merget (only when the Company becomes dissolved as a result of the merger), company
split (whether the split division is succeeded by another existing company (kyushu bunkatsu) of a new company is
incorporated (shinsetsu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or a share transfer {collectively “Reorganization”), stock
acquisition rights of the surviving joint-stock company after merger, the incorporated joint-stock company upon merger,
the joint-stock company succeeding all or part of the rights and obligations of the joint-steck company conducting the
kyushu bunkatsu related to the business, the joint-stock company incorporated upon shinsetsu bunkatsu, the joint-stock
company succeeding all the issued shares of the joint-stock company conducting a share for share exchange, or the
joint-stock company incorporated upon share transfer (collectively “Reorganized Company™) shall be delivered using
the following manner. This shall apply only if the Company’s shareholders’ ineeting approves the merger agreement,
consolidation agreement, kyushu bunkatsu agreement, shinsetsu bunkaisu plan, share for share exchange agreement or
share transfer plan.
(a) Number of stock acquisition rights of Reorganized Company to be Delivered
The number of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of
remaining stock acquisition rights.
(b) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
Shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company
(¢) Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
To be determined in accordance with Section 3 above taking into consideration the conditions of the
Reorganization,
(d) Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be
determined in accordance with Section 4 above taking into consideration the conditions of the Reorganization
(e} Exercise Period of Stock Acquisition Rights
From the later of the commencement date of the exercise period of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 5
above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise period of stock acquisition
rights set out in Section 5 above.
(f) Matters on Stated Capital and Capital Reserves to be Increased upon Issuance of Shares by Exercise of Stock
Acquisition Rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 7 above.
(g) Restrictions on the Acquisition by Transfer of Stock Acquisition Rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reorganized Company.
(h) Other Conditions of Exercising Stock Acquisition Rights and Causes for Acquisition of Stock Acquisition Rights
To be determined in accordance with Sections 6 and 9 above.

11. Issue of stock acquisition right certificates
Stock acquisition right certificates shall not be issued.

12. Handling of fractional shares
If the number of shares delivered to a SAR Holder who exercised stock acquisition rights is a fraction of a whole share,
the fraction of a share shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

13. Location to submit exercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company
14. Payment location upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd,, Otemachi Corporate Banking Division (or an applicable branch of Mizuho Corporate
Bank Ltd.’s successer) .

15, Total issuable shares of the Company
14,500,000 shares

16, Name, address and business office of the shareholder register administrator of the Company
(i) Sharcholder Register Administrator
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
(ii) Business Handing Location of Sharchelder Register Administrator
Head Office Securities Agency Department of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
(iii) Agency Location of Shareholder Register Administrator
Branch offices of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. within Japan
Head office and branch offices of Mizuho Investors Securities Co., Ltd.

17, Handling of interpretation of terms and conditions and other measures

If certain provisions under these terms and conditions should be read differently, the Company may take necessary
measures In any manner it deems appropriate such as amendments to the terms and conditions provided herein in
accordance with the provisions of the Corporation Law and the objectives of the stock acquisition rights.




Details of Fourth Series Stock Acquisition Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect ISAT Corporation

1. Corporate name
SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (the “Company”)

2. Total number of stock acquisition rights

2,522 units

This is the scheduled number of the total number of stock acquisition rights to be allocated, and the Company shall
deduct the number of Fourth Series Stock Acquisition Rights 1ssued by SKY Perfect Communications Inc. exercised
before the day immediately prior to the Company’s incorporation date.

3 Number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

2,522 shares of common stock in the Company

The number of shares of common stock of the Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
shall be one share of common stock in the Company (the “Number of Shares per SAR™).

In the case of a stock split or stock consolidation by the Company, the Number of Shares per SAR shall be adjusted
using the following formuila.

Number of shares _ Nusnber of shares Ratio of stock spiit or consolidation

after adjustment before adjustment

X

If the Company carries out a gratis allotment of shares, if it carries out a merger, company split, share for share
exchange or share transfer (collectively, “Merger, etc.”), or any other adjustment of the Number of Shares per SAR is
required, the Company may adjust the Number of Shares per SAR to the extent deemed reasonably necessary taking
into account terms and conditions of the gratis allotment of shares or the Merger, etc. Any fraction of a share resulting
from any adjustments above shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

4, Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be obtained by
multiplying the amount to be paid per share upon exercise of stock acquisition rights (“Exercise Price”) by the Number
of Shares per SAR.

The Exercise Price shall be 85,953 yen.

If the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation with respect to the shares in the Company, the Exercise
Price mentioned above shall be adjusted using the following formula according to the ratio of stock split or stock
consolidation, and any fraction of a yen resuhting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

1
% Ratio of stock split or consolidation

Exercise Price _ Exercise Price
after adjustment before adjustment

If the Company issues new shares or disposes of treasury stocks at a price that is less than the market price with respect
to the shares in the Company (excluding sales of treasury stocks in accordance with the provisions of Article 194 of the
Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less Than One Unit), conversion or
excrcise of stock acquisition rights which allow to request detivery of securities to be or that may be converied to shares
of the Company or shares of the Company (including stock acquisition rights attached to bonds with stock acquisition
rights) and including gratis allotment of shares), the abovementioned Exercise Price per share shall be adjusted using
the following formula, and any fraction of a yen after such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Nurmnber of shares newly issued
x  Exercisc price per share

Number of issued shares +
Market price

Exercise Price _  Exercise Price x

after adjustm before adjustment
<t adjustment clore agusimen Number of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued

The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the total number of issued shares of the Company less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares held by the Company. If the Company disposes of its treasury stocks,
“Number of shares newly issued” shall be read as “Number of trcasury stocks to be disposed of .

If the Company carries out the Merger, eic. or when the Exercise Price above requires any other adjustment, the
Company may adjust the Exercise Price to a reasonable extent taking into consideration the conditions of the Mergers,
etc.

5. Exervise period of stock acquisition rights
From August 1, 2007 to July 31, 2011

6. Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights
(a) Any person who is allocated stock acquisition rights (an “SAR Holder”} may exercise them even after the holder
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loses his or her position as a director or an employee of the Company, provided, that if any of the followings

applies to such SAR Holder, he or she may not cxercise stack acquisition rights thereafter.

(i) A director is removed, or an employee is dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;

(ii) A director or an employee acts in a way that is hostile to the Company or harms the interest of the Company
such as becomes a director, corporate auditor, employee, advisor, contract cmployee, consultant or the like of
a company in competition with the Company. This shall apply only when such act is made with the
intention of acting hostile towards the Company or harming the interest of the Company;

(iii) An SAR Holder is subject to imprisonment without tabor or heavier penalties;

(iv) Any event that should be a reason for dismissal under instruction or disciplinary action of an employe¢ that is
revealed afier his or her retirement;

(v) AnSAR Holder transfers, pledges, creates as sccurity, or otherwise disposes of the atlocated stock acquisition
rights to any third party.

(b) Holders of stock acquisition rights may exercise all or part of stock acquisition rights allocated in accordance with
(i) or (ii) below. Any fraction of a stock acquisition right for the number of exercisable stock acquisition rights
shall be rounded up to the nearest whole unit.

(i) Holders of stock acquisition rights may exercise half of the rights allocated from August 1, 2007 to July 31,

2008.

(i) Holders of stock acquisition rights may exercise all rights allocated from August 1, 2008 to July 31, 2011.

(c) Any SAR Holder may not split one stock acquisiton right and exercise that right.

{(d) [Succession of Stock Acquisition Rights] :

(i) If an SAR Holder dies, his or her successor may exercise the stock acquisition rights in accordance with
provision of this item (d) unless before his or her death the SAR Holder gave the Company a writien notice
stating that the holder does not wish his or her successor to exercise the stock acquisition rights. ' When an
SAR Holder dies, the conditions described in (a) and (b) above shall not be applied.

(ii) When succeeding stock acquisition rights, promptly afier commencement of inheritance the successor of an
SAR Holder must notify the Company in writing of the following matters in the form prescribed by the
Company, signed and sealed by all the successors (only with registered seals, but non-Japanese successors
may use their signatures instead of seals).

a. Commencement date of inheritance;

b. Names and addresses of all the successors (in case of successors residing outside of Japan, their contact
information within Japan),

¢, Name of the.successor who will succeed the stock acquisition rights and the number of stock acquisition
rights to be succeeded (there may be no fractions of a stock acquisition rights).

(iii) The successor of an SAR Holder must submit the following documents 1o the Company when notifying of
the matlers set out in (ii) above.

a.  Acertified copy of the removal of the SAR Holder;

b. A certified copy of the family register or the like proving that persons who signed and sealed the form
described in (i) above are all the successors of the holder of stock aqcuisition rights;

¢. Certificates of seal registration (or for non-Japanese successors proof of signature) of all the successors
of the holder of stock aqcuisition rights;,

d.  Other ducuments that the Company specifies.

(iv) If a successor who succeeded stock acquisition rights of an SAR Holder dies, it shall be handled as if an SAR
Holder has died, and the same applies thereafter.

7. Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of
stock acquisition rights

The amount of stated capital to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall be a half
of the maximum amount of capital increase calculated in accordance with Article 40.1 of the Corporate Calculation
Rules, with any fraction of a yen resulting from that calculation being rounded up to the nearest whole yen. The
amount of capital reserves to be increased in such case shall be the abovementioned maximum amount of capital
increase less the amount of stated capital to be increased.

8. Restrictions on the transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Company.

9. Causes of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

(a) If a proposal for the approval of a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissolved company is
approved, a proposal for the approval of a company split agreement where the split division is succeeded by
another existing company (Jushu bunkatsu) or a company split plan where a new company is incorporated
(shinsetsu bunkatsu), or a proposal for the approval of a share for share exchange agreement or share transfer plan
under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved at the Company’s shareholders’
meeting (or a board of directors meeting, if a resolution of a shareholders’ meeting is not required), the Company
may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by the board of directors of the
Company.

(b) The Company may acquire all or part of the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by
board of directors of the Company. When aquiring part of stock acquisition rights, the portion to be acquired shall
be resolved by the board of directors of the Company.

10. Issue of stock acquisition rights upon the Company’s merger (only when the Company is dissolved as a
result of merger), company split (Joyushu bunkatsu or shinsetsu bunkatsu), share for share exchange or share
transfer and the conditions thereof




If the Company carries out a merger {only when the Company becomes dissolved as a result of the merger), company
split (whether the split division is succceded by another existing company (kyushu bunkatsy) or a new company is
incorporated (shinsetsu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or 2 share transfer (collectively “Reorganization”), stock
acquisition rights of the surviving joint-stock company after merger, the incorporated joint-stock company upon merger,
the joint-stock company succeeding all or part of the rights and obligations of the joint-stock company conducting the
kyushu bunkatsu related to the business, the joint-stock company incorporated upon shinsetsu bunkatsu, the joint-stock
company succeeding all the issued shares of the joint-stock company conducting a share for share exchange, or the
joint-stock company incorporated upon share transfer (collectively “Reorganized Company™) shall be delivered using
the following manner. This shall apply only if the Company’s shareholders’ meeting approves the merger agreement,
consolidation agreement, kyushu bunkatsu agreement, shinsetsu bunkatsu plan, share for share exchange agreement or
share transfer plan.
(a) Number of stock acquisition rights of Reorganized Company to be Delivered
The number of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of
remaining stock acquisition rights.
(b) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
Shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company
{c) Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
To be determined in accordance with Section 3 above taking into consideration the conditions of the
Reorganization
(d) Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be
determined in accordance with Section 4 above taking into consideration the conditions of the Reorganization.
{e) Exercise Period of Stock Acquisition Rights
From the later of the commencement date of the exercise period of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 5
above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise period of stock acquisition
rights set out in Section 5 above.
(f) Matters on Stated Capital and Capital Reserves to be Increased upon lIssuance of Shares by Exercise of Stock
Acquisition Rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 7 above.
(g) Restrictions on the Acquisition by Transfer of Stock Acquisition Rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reerganized Company.
(h) Other Conditions of Exercising Stock Acquisition Righis and Causes for Acquisition of Stock Acquisition Rights
To be determined in accordance with Sections 6 and 9 above.

11, Issue of stock acquisition right cerfificates
Stock acquisition right certificates shall not be issued.

12 Handling of fractional shares
If the number of shares delivered to a SAR Holder who exercised stock acquisition rights is a fraction of a whole share,
the fraction of a share shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

13, Location to submit exercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company
14, Payment location upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd., Otemachi Corporate Banking Division (or an applicable branch of Mizuho Corporate
Bank Ltd.’s successor)}

15. Total issuable shares of the Company
14,500,000 shares
16. Name, address and business office of the shareholder register administrator of the Company

(i) Shareholder Register Administrator
Mizuho Trast & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-l, Tokyo
(ii) Business Handing Location of Shareholder Register Administrator
Head Office Securities Agency Department of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesw, Chuo-ku, Tokye
(iii) Agency Location of Shareholder Register Administrator
Branch offices of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. within Japan
Head office and branch offices of Mizuho Investors Securities Co., Ltd.

17. Handling of interpretation of terms and conditions and other measures

If certain provisions under these terms and conditions should be read differently, the Company may take necessary
measures in any manner it deems appropriate such as amendments to the terms and conditions provided herein in
accordance with the provisions of the Corporation Law and the objectives of the stock acquisition rights.
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Details of Fifth Series Stock Acquisition Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

1, Corporate name
SKY Perfect ISAT Corporation (the “Company™)

2. Total number of stock acquisition rights

1,180 units

This is the scheduled number of the total number of stock acquisition rights to be allocated, and the Company shall
deduct the number of Fifth Seties Stock Acquisition Rights issued by SKY Perfect Communications Inc. exercised
before the day immediately prior to (he Company’s incorporation date.

3. Number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

1,180 shares of common stock in the Company

The number of shares of common stock of the Company to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
shall be one share of common stock in the Company (the “Number of Shares per SAR”™).

In the case of a stock split or stock consolidation by the Company, the Number of Shares per SAR shall be adjusted
using the following formula.

Number of shares . Number of shares Ratio of stock split or conselidation

afler adjustment before adjustment

X

If the Company carries out a gratis allotment of shares, if it carries out a merger, company split, share for share
exchange or share transfer (collectively, “Merger, etc.”), or any other adjustment of the Number of Shares per SAR is
required, the Company may adjust the Number of Shares per SAR to the extent decmed reasonably necessary taking
into account terms and conditions of the gratis allotment of shares or the Merger, etc.  Any fraction of a share resulting
from any adjustments above shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

4. Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be obtained by
multiplying the amount to be paid per share upon exercise of stock acquisition rights (“Exercise Price”) by the Number
of Shares per SAR.

The Exercise Price shall be 70,256 yen.

If the Company carries out a stock split or siock consolidation with respect to the shares in the Company, the Exercise
Price mentioned above shall be adjusted using the following formula according to the ratio of stock split or stock
consolidation, and any fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shali be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

1

Exercise Price . Exercise Price x Ratio of stock split or consolidation
after adjustment before adjustment

If the Company issues new shares or disposes of treasury stocks at a price that is less than the market price with respect
to the shares in the Company (excluding sales of treasury stocks in accordance with the provisions of Article 194 of the
Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less Than One Unit), conversion or
exercise of stock acquisition rights which allow to request delivery of securities to be or that may be converted to shares
of the Company or shares of the Company (including stock acquisition rights attached to bonds with stock acquisition
rights) and including gratis allotment of shares), the abovementioned Exercise Price per share shall be adjusted using
the following formula, and any fraction of a yen after such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Number of shares newly issued
x  Exercise price per share

Number of issued shares +
Market price

Exercise Price Exercise Price x

after adjustment " befi diustment
eT adju. ore aojustmen Number of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued

The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the total number of issued shares of the Company less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares held by the Company. If the Company disposes of its treasury stocks,
“Number of shares newly issued” shall be read as “Number of treasury stocks to be disposed of .

If the Company carries out the Merger, etc. or when the Exercise Price above requires any other adjustment, the
Company may adjust the Exercise Price 1o a reasonable extent taking into consideration the conditions of the Mergers,
elc. .

5. Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From October 1, 2008 to September 30, 2012

6. Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights
(a) Any person who is allocated stock acquisition rights (an “SAR Holder”) may exercise them even after the holder
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loses his or her position as a director or an employee of the Company, provided, that if any of the followings
applies 1o such SAR Holder, he or she may not exercise stock acquisition rights thercafter.

(i) A director is removed, or an employee is dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;

(i1} A director or an employee acts 1n a way that is hostile to the Company or harms the interest of the Company
such as becomes a director, corporate auditor, employee, advisor, contract empioyee, consultant or the like of
a company in competition with the Company. This shall apply only when such act is made with the
intention of acting hostile towards the Company or harming the interest of the Company;

(iii) An SAR Holder is subject to imprisonment without labor or heavier penalties;

(iv) Any event that should be a reason for dismissal under instruction or disciplinary action of an employee that is
revealed afier his or her retirement;

() An SAR Holder transfers, pledges, creates as security, or otherwise disposes of the allocated stock acquisition
rights to any third party.

(b) Holders of stock acquisition rights may exercise all or part of stock acquisition rights allocated in accordance with
(i) or (ii) below. Any fraction of a stock acquisition right for the number of exercisable stock acquisition rights
shall be rounded up to the nearest whole unit.

(i) Holders of stock acquisition rights may exercise half of the rights allocated from QOctober 1, 2008 to

September 30, 2009.

(ii) Holders of stock acquisition rights may exercise all rights allocated from October 1, 2009 to Sepiember 30,

2012,

(c) Any SAR Holder may not split one stock acquisiton right and exercise that right.

(d) [Succession of Stock Acquisition Rights]

(i) If an SAR Holder dies, his or her successor may exercise the stock acquisition rights in accordance with
provision of this item (d) unless before his or her death the SAR Holder gave the Company a writicn notice
stating that the holder does not wish his or her successor to exercise the stock acquisition rights, When an
SAR Holder dies, the conditions described in (a) and (b) above shall not be applied.

(i) When succeeding stock acquisition rights, promptly after commencement of inheritance the successor of an
SAR Holder must notify the Company in writing of the following matters in the form prescribed by the
Company, signed and sealed by all the successors (only with registered seals, but non-Japanesc successors
may use their signatures instead of seals).

a. Commencement date of inheritance;

b. Names and addresses of all the successors (in case of successors residing outside of Japan, their contact
information within Japan);

¢, Name of the snccessor who will succeed the stock acquisition rights and the number of stock acquisition
rights to be succeeded (there may be no fractions of a stock acquisition rights).

(iii) The successor of an SAR Holder must submit the following documents to the Company when notifying of
the matters set out in (ii) above.

a. A certified copy of the removal of the SAR Holder,;

b. A certified copy of the family register or the like proving that persons who signed and sealed the form
described in (ii) above are all the successors of the holder of stock aqcuisition fights;

¢. Centificates of seal registration (or for non-Japanese successors proof of signature) of all the successors
of the holder of stock aqcuisition rights;

d.  Other ducuments that the Company specifies.

(iv) If a successor who succeeded stock acquisition rights of an SAR Holder dies, it shall be handled as if an SAR
Holder has died, and the same applies thereafier.

7. Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of
stock acquisition rights

The amount of stated capital to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall be a half
of the maxitmum amount of capital increase calculated 1n accordance with Article 40.1 of the Corporate Calculation
Rules, with any fraction of a yen resulting from that calculation being rounded up to the nearest whole yen. The
amount of capital reserves to be increased in such case shall be the abovementioned maximum amount of capital

increase less the amount of stated capital to be increased.

8. Restrictions on the transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Company.

9, Causes of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

(a) If a proposal for the approval of a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissotved company is
approved, a proposal for the approval of a company split agreement where the split division is succeeded by
another existing company (kyushu bunkatsu) or a company split plan where a new company is incorporated
(shinsetsu bunkatsu), or a proposal for the approval of a share for share exchange agreement or share transfer plan
under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved at the Company’s shareholders’
meeting (or a board of directors meeting, if a resolution of a shareholders’ meeting is not required), the Company
r(r:lay acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by the board of directors of the

ompany.

(b) The Company may acquire all or part of the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by
board of directors of the Company. When aquiring part of stock acquisition rights, the portion to be acquired shall
be resolved by the board of directors of the Company.

10. Issue of stock acquisition rights upon the Company’s merger (only when the Company is dissolved as a
result of merger), company split (kyushu bunkatsu or shinsetsu bunkatsut), share for share exchange or share
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transfer and the conditions thereof
If the Company carries out a merger (only when the Company becomes dissolved as a result of the merger), company
split (whether the split division is succeeded by another existing company (kyushu bunkatsu) or a ncw company is
incorporated (shinsetsu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or a share transfer (collectively “Reorganization™), stock
acquisition rights of the surviving joint-stock company after merger, the incorporated joint-stock company upon merger,
the joint-stock company succeeding all or part of the rights and obligations of the joini-stock company conducting the
kyushu bunkatsu related to the business, the joint-stock company incorporated upon shinsetsu bunkatsu, the joint-stock
company succeeding all the issued shares of the joint-stock company conducting a share for share exchange, or the
joint-stock company incorporated upon share transfer (collectively “Reorganized Company™) shall be delivered using
the following manner. This shall apply only if the Company’s shareholders’ meeting approves the merger agreement,
consolidation agreement, kyushu bunkatsu agreement, shinsetsu bunkatsu plan, share for share exchange agreement or
share transfer plan.
(a) Number of stock acquisition rights of Reorganized Company to be Delivered
The number of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of
remaining stock acquisition rights.
(b) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company 1o be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
Shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company
(c) Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of ¢ach stock acquisition right
To be determined in accordance with Section 3 above taking into consideration the conditions of the
Reorganization.
(d) Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right
The object contributed in exercising stock acquisition rights must be cash, the amount of which shall be
determined in accordance with Section 4 above taking into consideration the conditions of the Reorganization.
() Exercise Period of Stock Acquisition Rights
From the later of the commencement date of the exercise period of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 5
above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise period of stock acquisition
rights set out in Section 5 above.
(D Matters on Stated Capital and Capital Reserves to be Increased upon Issnance of Shares by Exercise of Stock
Acquisition Rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 7 above.
{g) Restrictions on the Acquisition by Transfer of Stock Acquisition Rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reorganized Company.
(h) Other Conditions of Exercising Stock Acquisition Rights and Causes for Acquisition of Stock Acquisition Rights
To be determined in accordance with Sections 6 and 9 above.

11. Issue of stock acquisition right certificates
Stock acquisition right certificates shatl not be issued.

12. Handling of fractional shares
If the number of shares delivered to a SAR Holder who exercised stock acquisition rights is a fraction of a whole share,
the fraction of a share shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

13. Location to submit exercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company
14. Payment location upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd, Otemachi Corporate Banking Division (or an applicable branch of Mizuho Corporate
Bank Ltd.’s bridge bank) )

15. Total issuable shares of the Company
14,500,000 shares
16. Name, address and business office of the shareholder register administrator of the Company

(i) Sharcholder Register Administrator
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
(ii) Business Handing Location of Sharcholder Register Administrator
Head Office Securities Agency Department of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-2-1 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
(iii) Agency Location of Sharehelder Register Administrator
Branch offices of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. within Japan
Head office and branch offices of Mizuho Investors Securities Co., Ltd.

17. Handling of interpretation of terms and conditions and other measures

If certain provisions under these terms and conditions should be read differently, the Company may take necessary
measures in any manner it deems appropriate such as amendments to the terms and conditions provided herein in
accordance with the provisions of the Corporation Law and the objectives of the stock acquisition rights.
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Details of Sixth Series Stock Acquisifion Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

1. Name of stock acquisition rights
Sixth Series Stock Acquisition Rights issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (the “Company”)

2, Payment location upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

Head Office of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Sales Department
Address: 1-1-2 Yurakucho, Chivoda-ku, Tokyo

(or from time to time the successor to that bank or the successor to that branch)

3. Location to submit exercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company

4, Class and number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

4,000 shares of common stock in the Company, provided that the Company deducts the number of First Series Stock
Acquisition Rights of JSAT Corporation exercised before the day immediately prior to the Company’s incorporation
date multiptied by four.

If the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation, the number of shares to be acquired shall be adjusted
using the following formula, provided, however, that such adjustment shall only apply to the number of shares to be
acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights that have not been exercised at that point in time from all stock
acquisition rights, and any fraction of a share resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded down to the nearest

whole share.
Number of shares = Number of shares x Ratjo of stock split or consolidation
after adjustment before adjustment

5. Total number of the stock acquisition rights

1,000 units, provided, however, that the Company deducts the number of First Series Stock Acquisition Rights of the
JSAT Corporation exercised before the day immediately prior to the Company’s incorporation date (four shares per
stock acquisition right, provided, that the same adjustment shall be made in case of an adjustment to the number of
shares as set oul in Section 4 above.)

6. Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The Exescise Price per stock acquisition right shall be an amount equal to the exercise price per share of 116,097
multiplied by the number of shares per stock acquisition right provided in Section 4 above.

If, after the allocation date, the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation of the common stock of the
Company, the Exercise Price per share shall be adjusted at the time either of those acts takes place using the following
formula, and any fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Exercise Price - Exercise Price x 1

after adjustment before adjustment Ratio of stock split or consolidation

If, after the allocation date, the Company issues new shares or disposes of treasury stock with regards to common stock
of the Company at a price less than the market price (excluding sales of treasury stocks in accordance with the
provisions of Article 194 of the Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less
Than One Unit), transfer of treasury stock in accordance with the provisions of supplementary provision Article 5,
Paragraph 2 of the Law for Partial Amendments to the Commercial Code, etc. (Law No. 79 of 2001), and conversicn of
exercise of stock acquisition rights (including stock acquisition rights attached to bonds with stock acquisition rights)
which allow request of delivery of securities to be or that may be converted to shares of commeon stock of the Company
or shares of common stock in the Company), the Exercise Price shall be adjusted using the following formula, and any
fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Number of shares newly issued
x Exercise Price per share

Number of issued shares

+ Stock price before new issuance

Exercise Price Exercise Price x
after adjustment before adjustment Number of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued

The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the total number of issued shares of the Company less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares of commen stock held by the Company. 1f the Company disposes of
its treasury stocks, “Number of shares newly issued” shall be read as “Nurnber of treasury stocks to be disposed of”.

7. Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From April 2, 2007 to June 30, 2008

8. Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of
stock acquisition rights
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(a) The amount of stated capital to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall be a
half of the maximum amount of capital increase calculated in accordance with Article 40.1 of the Corporate
Calculation Rules, with any fraction of a yen resulting from that calculation being rounded up to the nearcst whole
yen.

(b) The amount of capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall
be the maximum amount of capital increase as set out in item (a) above less the amount of stated capital to be
increased as provided for in item (a) above.

. Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights

(a) Any person who is allocated stock acquisttion rights (“SAR Holder”) must be in the position of director, corporate

auditor, advisor or employee of the Company or an affiliate of the Company at the time of exercising the rights,

except when the SAR Holder retires from his or her position due to the expiration of his or her term, faces
mandatory retirement, has a transfer of employment, or on any other reasonable grounds.

®) (i) If an SAR Holder dies, his or her successor shall be approved to succeed those stock acquisition rights,

provided that the limit of successors is within two degrees of kinship, unless the SAR Holder gave the
Company a written notice as prescribed by the Company stating that the SAR Holder does not wish his or her
successor to exercise the stock acquisition rights.

(i) The successor to the SAR Holder succeeding the stock acquisition rights (“Right Successor”) must give
notice of the succession of the stock acquisition rights within ten months of the commencement date of the
succession following the procedures determined by the Company. If the stock acquisition rights are jointly
succeeded, all successors must collectively select a representative successor and give notice of the joint
succession of the stock acquisition rights within ten months of the commencement date of the succession
following the procedures prescribed by the Company.

(iii) If there are several units of stock acquisition rights that are target to the succession, the successors may divide
and succeed the stock acquisition rights.  In such case, the selection of a representative successor provided
for in subitem (ii) above is not required and each successor receiving a portion of the divided rights shall be a
Right Successor, provided that any fraction stock acquisition right resulting from the division shall be
rounded down to the nearest whole unit

(iv) If there are changes to matters in the notice such as the Right Successor’s address, the Right Successor must
promptly notify the Company in writing of that change in the form prescribed by the Company.

) If a succession is commenced in connection to a Rights Successor, that successor shall not succeed the stock
acquisition rights (a secondary succession is not permitted.)

(¢) Stock acquisition rights may not be pledged or otherwise disposed of.

(d) Holders of stock acquisition rights shall be restricted as follows in regards to the exercise of stock acquisition

rights;

(i) The total annual exercise price for exercised rights shall not exceed 12 million yen per year (in a calendar
year), provided that the year (calendar year) described in this subitem (i) shall be the period commencing on
January 1 (except in 2007, which shall commence on April 2) and ending on December 31 (except in 2008,
which shall end on June 30) each year.

(ii) Shares acquired by exercise of rights shall be held in a share custody account of a securities company
desigrated by the Company in the name of the SAR Holder.

(e) An SAR Holder may not exercise stock acquisition rights even during the exercise period determined in Section 7

above if any one of the following subitems applies:

(i) The SAR Holder is subject to imprisonment without {abor or heavier penalties;

(i) The SAR Holder is removed or has suffered any sanction under the employment regulations of the Company
such as being dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;

(iii) The SAR Holder resigns from the position of director, corporate auditor, advisor or employee of the
Company or an affiliale of the Company, except if the holder retires from his or her position due to the
expiration of his or her term, faces mandatory retirement, has a transfer of employment, or on any other
reasonable grounds determined by the Company;

(iv) The SAR Holder is appointed as an officer or employvee of a company other than the Company that is in
competition with the Company and whose purpose is the business of satellite communication or sateliite
broadcasting (except upon prior written approval from the Company), or

(v) The SAR Holder has given a writien proposal in the form prescribed by the Company of iis intention to
waive all or part of the stock acquisition rights.

10, Conditions of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

(a) If a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissolved company, a proposal for a share for share
exchange agreement or a share transfer under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved
at a shareholders’ meeting of the Company, the Company may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the
date separately determined by the board of directors of the Company.

(b) When a SAR Holder does not fulfil the conditions of exercising stock acquisition tights set out in Section 9 above,
the Company may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by the board of
directors of the Company.

11, Restrictions on the transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Company’s board of directors.

12. Handling of stock acquisition rights upon reorganization of the Company
If the Company carries out a merger (only when the Company becomes dissolved as a result of the merger), company
split {(whether the split division is succeeded by another existing company (kyushu bunkatsu) or a new company is
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incorporated (shinsetsu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or a share transfer (collectively “Reorganization™), in
each case stock acquisition rights of joint-stock companies as described in Article 236.1(8)}(a) through (e) of the
Corporation Law (“Reorganized Company™) shail be delivered to holders of stock acquisition rights of stock acquisition
rights remaining at the time of the Reorganization (“Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights™) in accordance with the
following conditions. In such case, Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights shall be cancelled and the Reorganized
Company shall newly issue stock acquisiion rights only when the delivery of stock acquisition nights of the
Reorganized Company following the conditions below is provided for in a merger agreement, consolidation agreement,
kyushu bunkaisu agreement, shinsetsu bunkatsu plan, share for share exchange agreement or share transfer plan.
(2) Number of slock acquisition nghts of Reorganized Company 1o be Delivered
The number of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of
remaining stock acquisition rights ai the time of Reorganization.
(b) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
Shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company
(cy Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 4 above laking into consideration the conditicns of the
Reorganization
(d) Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
The amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right delivered shall be the amount
obtained by multiplying the exercise price afler the reorganization adjusted taking into consideration the conditions
of the Reorganization by the number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights determined
in accordance with item ().
() Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From the Iater of the commencement date of the exercise period of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 7
above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise petiod of stock acquisition
rights set out in Section 7 above,
(f) Matiers on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased upon issuance of shares by exercise of stock
acquisition rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 8§ above.
(g) Restrictions on the acquisition by transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reorganized Company.
(h) Conditions of acquisition of stock acquisition rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 10 above.

13. Rounding down of fractions occurring from the exercise of stock acquisition rights
Fractions of shares regarding the number of shares to be delivered to the SAR Holder shall be rounded down to the

nearest share,
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Details of Seventh Series Stock Acquisition Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

1. Name of stock acquisition rights
Seventh Series Stock Acquisition Rights issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (the “Company™)

2. Payment location upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

Head Office of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Sales Department
Address: 1-1-2 Yurakucho, Chivoda-ku, Tokyo

(or from time to time (he successor to that bank or the successor to that branch)

3. Location to submit exercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company
4 Class and number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

4,000 shares of common stock in the Company, provided that the Company deducts the number of Secend Series Stock
Acquisition Rights of JSAT Corporation exercised before the day immediately prior to the Company’s incorporation
date multiplied by four.

If the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation, the number of shares to be acquired shall be adjusted
using the following formula, provided, however, that such adjustment shall only apply to the number of shares to be
acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights that have not been exercised at that point in time from all stock
acquisition rights, and any fraction of a share resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded down to the nearest

whole share.
Number of shares = Number of shares X Ratio of stock split or consolidation
after adjustment before adjustment

5. Total number of the stock acquisition rights

1,000 units, provided, however, that the Company deducts the number of Second Series Stock Acquisition Rights of the
JSAT Corporation exercised before the day immediately prior to the Company’s incorporation date (four shares per
stock acquisition right, provided, that the same adjustment shall be made in case of an adjustment to the number of
shares as set out in Section 4 above.)

6. Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The Exercise Price per stock acquisition right shall be an amount equal to the exercise price per share of 85,038
multiplied by the number of shares per stock acquisition right provided in Section 4 above.

If, after the allocation date, the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation of the common stock of the
Company, the Exercise Price per share shall be adjusted at the time either of those acts takes place using the following
formula, and any fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Exercise Price _ Exercise Price 1
after adjustrment before adjustment

Ratio of stock split or consolidation

If, afier the allocation date, the Comparry issues new shares or disposes of treasury stock with regards to common stock
of the Company at a price less than the market price (excluding sales of treasury stocks in accordance with the
provisions of Article 194 of the Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less
Than One Unit), transfer of treasury stock in accordance with the provisions of supplementary provision Article 5,
Paragraph 2 of the Law for Partial Amendments to the Commercial Code, etc. (l.aw No. 79 of 2001), and conversion or
exercise of stock acquisition rights (including stock acquisition rights attached to bonds with stock acquisition rights)
which allow request of delivery of securities to be or that may be converted to shares of common stock of the Company
or shares of common stock in the Company), the Exercise Price shall be adjusted using the following formula, and any
fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Number of shares newly issued

x Exercise Price per share

Number of issued shares
Stock price before new issuance

Exercise Price Exercise Price x

after adjustment before adjustment
Number of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued
The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the totat number of issued shares of the Company less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares of common stock held by the Company. If the Compary disposes of
its treasury stocks, “Number of shares newly issued” shall be read as “Number of treasury stocks to be disposed of”.

7. Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From April 2, 2007 to June 30, 2009

8. Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of

stock acquisition rights
(a) The amount of stated capital to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall be
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(®)
9.
(a)

(b)

(c)
()

(e

10.
(a)

®

11.

half of the maximum amount of capital increase calculated in accordance with Article 40.1 of the Corporate
Calculation Rules, with any fraction of a yen resulting from that calculation being rounded up to the nearest whole
yen.

The amount of capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall
be the maximum amount of capital increase as set out in item (a) above less the amount of stated capital to be
increased as provided for in item (a) above.

Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights

Any person who is allocated stock acquisition rights (“SAR Holder”) must be in the position of director, corporate

auditor, advisor or employee of the Company or an affiliate of the Company at the time of exercising the rights,

except when the SAR Holder retires from his or her position due to the expiration of his or her term, faces
mandatory retirement, has a transfer of employment, or on any other reasonable grounds.

(i) If an SAR Holder dies, his or her successor shall be approved to succeed those stock acquisition rights,
provided that the limit of successors is within two degrees of kinship, unless the SAR Holder gave the
Company a written notice as prescribed by the Company stating that the SAR Holder does not wish his or her
successor to exercise the stock acquisition rights.

(i) The successor to the SAR Holder succeeding the stock acquisition rights (“Right Successor™) must give
notice of the succession of the stock acquisition rights within ten months of the commencement dale of the
succession following the procedures determined by the Company.  If the stock acquisition rights are jointly
succeeded, all successors must collectively select a representative successor and give notice of the joint
succession of the stock acquisition rights within ten months of the commencement date of the succession
following the procedures prescribed by the Company.

(iii) If there are several units of stock acquisition rights that are target to the succession, the successors may divide
and succeed the stock acquisition rights. In such case, the selection of a representative successor provided
for in subitem (ii) above is not required and each successor receiving a portion of the divided nights shall be a
Right Successor, provided that any fraction stock acquisition right resulting from the division shall be
rounded down to the nearest whole unit.

(iv) If there are changes to matters in the notice such as the Right Successor’s address, the Right Successor must
promptly notify the Company in writing of that change in the form prescribed by the Company.

(v} If a succession is commenced in connection to a Rights Successor, that successor shall not succeed the stock
acquisition rights (a secondary succession is not permitted.)

Stock acquisition rights may not be pledged or otherwise disposed of.

Holders of stock acquisition rights shall be restricted as follows in regards to the exercise of stock acquisition

rights:

(i) The total annual exercise price for exercised rights shall not exceed 12 million yen per year (in a calendar

year), provided that the year (calendar year) described in this subitem (i) shall be the period commencing on

January 1 (except in 2007, which shall commence on April 2) and ending on December 31 (except in 2008,

which shatl end on June 30) cach year.

(ii) Shares acquired by exercise of rights shall be held in a share custody account of a securities company
designated by the Company in the name of the SAR Holder.

An SAR Holder may not exercise stock acquisition rights even during the exercise period determined in Section 7

above if any one of the following subitems applies:

(i) The SAR Holder is subject to imprisorument without labor or heavier penaltics,

(i) The SAR Holder is removed or has suffered any sanction under the employment regulations of the Company
such as being dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;

(i) The SAR Holder resigns from the position of director, corporate auditor, advisor or employee of the
Company or an affiliate of the Company, except if the holder retires from his or her position due to the
expiration of his or her term, faces mandatory retirement, has a transfer of employment, or on any other
reasonabie grounds determined by the Company,

(iv) The SAR Holder is appointed as an officer or employee of a company other than the Company that is in
competition with the Company and whose purpose is the business of satellite communication or satellite
broadcasting (except upon prior written approval from the Company}; or

(v) The SAR Holder has given a written proposal in the form prescribed by the Company of its intention to
waive all or part of the stock acquisition rights.

Conditions of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

If a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissolved company, a proposal for a share for share
exchange agreement or a share transfer under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved
at a shareholders’ meeting of the Company, the Company may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the
date separately determined by the board of directors of the Company.

When an SAR Holder does not fulfil the conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights set out in Section 9 above,
the Company may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by the board of
directors of the Company.

Restrictions on the transfer of stock acquisition rights

Stock acquisition rights may not be ransferred without approval from the Company’s board of directors.

12,

Handling of stock acquisition rights upon reorganization of the Company

If the Company carries out a metger (only when the Company becomes dissclved as a result of the merger), company
split (whether the split division is succeeded by another existing company (kyushu bunkalsu) Or a new company is
incorporated (shinsetsu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or a share transfer (collectively “Reorganization”), in
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each case stock acquisition rights of joint-stock companies as described in Article 236.1(8)(a) through (&) of the
Corporation Law (“Reorganized Company”} shall be delivered to holders of stock acquisition rights of stock acquisition
rights remaining at the time of the Reorganization (“Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights”) in accordance with the
following conditions. In such case, Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights shall be cancelled and the Reorganized
Company shall newly issue stock acquisition nghts only when the delivery of stock acquisition rights of the
Reorganized Company following the conditions below is provided for in a merger agreement, consolidation agreement,
kyushu bunkatsu agreement, shinsetsu bunkatsu plan, share for share exchange agreement ot share transfer plan.
(a) Number of stock acquisition rights of Reorganized Company fo be Delivered
The number of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of
remaining stock acquisition fghts at the time of Reorganization.
(b) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
Shares of comumon stock of the Reorganized Company
(c) Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 4 above taking into consideration the conditions of the
Reorganization
(d) Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
The amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right delivered shall be the amount
obtained by multiplying the exercise price after the reorganization adjusted taking into consideration the conditions
of the Reorganization by the number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights determined
in accordance with item (c).
(e) Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From the later of the commencement date of the exercise period of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 7
above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise period of stock acquisition
rights set out in Section 7 above.
(f) Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased upon issuance of shares by exercise of stock
acquisition rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 8 above.
(g) Restrictions on the acquisition by transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reorganized Company.
(h) Conditions of acquisition of stock acquisiiion rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 10 above.

13. Rounding dowa of fractions occurring from the exercise of stock acquisition rights
Fractions of shares regarding the number of shares to be delivered to the SAR Holder shall be rounded down to the
nearest share.
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Details of Eighth Series Stock Acguisiﬁon Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

1. Name of stock acquisition rights
Eighth Series Stock Acquisition Rights issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (the “Company™)

2, Payment location upon exercise of steck acquisition rights

Head Office of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Sales Department
Address: 1-1-2 Yurakucho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo :

(or from time to time the successor to that bank or the successor to that branch)

3. Location to submit exercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company

4. Class and number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

1,200 shares of conunon siock in the Company.

If it is appropriate for the Company to amend the number of shares as a result of a merger, company split, stock split or
stock consolidation, etc., the Company shall make adjustments as it deemns necessary.

5. Total number of the stock acquisition rights
300 units (four shares per stock acquisition right, provided, that the same adjustment shall be made in case of an
adjustment to the number of shares as set oul in Section 4 above.)

6. Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The Exercise Price per stock acquisition right shall be an amount equal to the exercise price per share of 77,150
multiplied by the number of shares per stock acquisition right provided in Section 4 above.

If, after the allocation date, the Company carries out a stock split or stock consolidation of the common stock of the
Company, the Exercise Price per share shall be adjusted at the time either of those acts takes place using the following
formula, and any fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Excercise Price - Exercise Price x 1

afier adjustment before adjustment Ratio of stock split or consolidation

If, after the allocation date, the Company issues new shares or disposes of treasury stock with regards to commen stock
of the Company at a price less than the market price (excluding sales of treasury stocks in accordance with the
provisions of Article 194 of the Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less
Than One Unit), transfer of treasury stock in accordance with the provisions of supplementary provision Article 5,
Paragraph 2 of the Law for Partial Amendments to the Commerciat Code, etc. (Law No. 79 of 2001), and conversion or
exercise of stock acquisition rights (including stock acquisition rights attached to bonds with stock acquisition rights)
which allow request of delivery of securities to be or that may be converted to shares of common stock of the Company
or shares of common stock in the Company), the Exercise Price shall be adjusted using the following formmula, and any
fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shall be rounded up 1o the nearest whole yen,

Number of shares newly issued
x Exercise Price per share

Number of issued shares - -
Stock price before new issuance

Exercise Price Exercise Price x
after adjustment before adjustment Number of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued

The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the total number of issued shares of the Company less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares of common stock held by the Company. If the Company disposes of
its treasury stocks, “Number of shares newly issued” shall be read as “Number of treasury stocks to be disposed of”.

7. Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From December 22, 2008 to June 30, 20011

8. Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of

stock acquisition rights

(a) The amount of stated capital to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall be
half of the maximum amount of capital increase calculated in accordance with Articte 40.1 of the Corporate
Calculation Rules, with any fraction of a yen resulting from that calculation being rounded up to the nearest whole
yen.

(b} The amount of capital reserves 10 be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall
be the maximum amount of capital increase as set out in item (a) above less the amount of stated capital to be
increased as provided for in item (a) above.

9. Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights
(a) Any person who is allocated stock acquisition rights (“SAR Holder”) must be in the position of director, corporate
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auditor or advisor of the Company or an affiliate of the Company at the time of exercising the rights, except when

the SAR Holder retires from his or her position due to the cxpiration of his or her term or on any other reasonable

grounds.

(® () If an SAR Holder dics, his or her successor shall be approved to succeed those stock acquisition rights,
provided that the limit of succcssors is within two degrees of kinship, unless the SAR Holder gave the
Company a written notice as prescribed by the Company stating hat the SAR Holder does not wish his or her
successor o exercise the stock acquisition rights.

(i) The successor to the SAR Holder succeeding the stock acquisition rights ("Right Successor”™) must give
notice of the succession of the stock acquisition rights within ten months of the commencement date of the
succession following the procedures detcrmined by the Company.  If the stock acquisition nights are jointly
succeeded, all successors must collectively select a representative successor and give notice of the joint
suctession of the stock acquisition rights within ten months of the commencement date of the succession
following the procedures prescribed by the Company.

@iii) If there are several units of stock acquisition rights that are target to the succession, the successors may divide
and succeed the stock acquisition rights.  In such case, the selection of a representative successor provided
for in subitem (ii) above is not required and each successor receiving a portion of the divided rights shall be a
Right Successor, provided that any fraction stock acquisition right resulting from the division shall be
rounded down to the nearest whole unit

(iv) If there are changes to matters in the notice such as the Right Successor’s address, the Right Successor must
promptly notify the Company in writing of that change in the form prescribed by the Company.

() If a succession is commenced in connection to a Rights Successor, that successor shall not succeed the stock
acquisition rights (a secondary succession is not permitted.)

(¢) Stock acquisition rights may not be pledged or otherwise disposed of.

(d) Holders of stock acquisition rights shall be restricted as follows in regards to the exercise of stock acquisition

rights:

(i) The total anmual exercise price for exercised rights shall not exceed 12 million yen per year (in a calendar
year), provided that the year (calendar year) described in this subitern (i) shall be the period commencing on
January 1 (except in 2008, which shall commence on December 22) and ending on December 31 (except in
2011, which shall end on June 30) each year.

(ii) Shares acquired by exercise of rights shall be held in a share custody account of a sccurities company
designated by the Company in the name of the SAR Holder.

(¢) An SAR Holder may not exercise stock acquisition rights even during the cxercise period determined in Section 7

above if any one of the following subitems applies:

(i) The SAR Holder is subject to imprisonment without labor or heavier penaltics;

(ii) The SAR Holder is removed or has suffered any sanction under the employment regulations of the Company
such as being dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;,

(i) The SAR Holder resigns from the position of director, corporate auditor or advisor of the Company or an
affiliate of the Comnpany, except if the holder retires from his or her position due to the expiration of his or
her term or cn any other reasonablie grounds determined by the Company,

(iv) The SAR Holder is appointed as an officer or employee of a company other than the Company that is in
competition with the Company and whose purpose is the business of satellite communication or satellite
broadcasting (except upon prior writien approval from the Company); or

(v) The SAR Holder has given a written proposal in the form prescribed by the Company of its intention to
waive all or part of the stock acquisition rights.

10. Conditions of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

(2) If a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissolved company, a proposal for a share for share
exchange agreement or a share transfer under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved
at al shareholders’ meeting of the Company, the Company may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the
date separately determined by the board of directors of the Company.

(b When an SAR Holder does not fulfil the conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights set out in Section 9 above,
the Company may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by the board of
directors of the Company.

it Restrictions on the transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred withowt approval from the Company’s board of directors.

12, Handling of stock acquisition rights upon reorganization of the Company
If the Company carries out a merger (only when the Company becomes dissolved as a result of the merger), compary
split (whether the split division is succeeded by another existing company (kvushu bunkatsv) or a new company is
incorporated (shinsetsu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or a share transfer (collectively “Reorganization™), in
each case stock acquisition rights of joint-stock companies as described in Article 236.1(8)(a) through (e) of the
Corporation Law (“Reorganized Company”) shall be delivered 1o holders of stock acquisition rights of stock acquisition
rights remaining at the time of the Reorganization (“Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights”) in accordance with the
following conditions. In such case, Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights shafl be cancelled and the Reorganized
Company shall newly issue stock acquisition rights only when the delivery of stock acquisition rights of the
Reorganized Company following the conditions below is provided for in a merger agreement, consolidation agreement,
kyushu bunkatsu agreement, shinsetsu bunkatsu plan, share for share exchange agreement or share transfer plan.
{a) Number of stock acquisition rights of Reorganized Company to be Delivered
The nurmber of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of
remaining stock acquisition rights at the time of Reorganization.
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13.

Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

Shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company

Number of shares of the Reorganized Company (o be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

To be determined in accordance with Section 4 above taking into consideration the conditions of the
Reorganization

Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

The amount of assets to be contribuied upon exercise of each stock acquisition right delivered shall be the amount
obtained by multiplying the exercise price after the reorganization adjusted taking into consideration the conditions
of the Reorganization by the number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights determined
in accordance with item (),

Exercise period of stock acquisition rights

From the Iater of the commencement date of the exercise period of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 7
above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise period of stock acquisition
rights set out in Section 7 above.

Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased upon issuance of shares by exercise of stock
acquisition rights

To be determined in accordance with Section 8 above.

Restrictions on the acquisition by transfer of stock acquisition rights

Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reorganized Company.

Conditions of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

To be determined in accordance with Section 10 above.

Rounding down of fractions occurring from the exercise of stock acquisition rights

Fractions of shares regarding the number of shares to be delivered to the SAR Holder shall be rounded down to the
nearest share.
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Details of Ninth Series Stock Acquisition Rights
Issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

1. Name of stock acquisition rights
Ninth Series Stock Acquisition Rights issued by SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (the “Company™)

pA Payment location upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

Head Office of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Carporation, Sales Department
Address: 1-1-2 Yurakucho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

{or from time to time the successor to that bank or the successor to that branch)

3. Location to submit cxercise notice of stock acquisition rights
Head office of the Company
4 Class and number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

4:800 shares of common stock in the Company.
If it is appropriate for the Company to amend the number of shares as a result of a merger, company split, stock split or
stock consolidation, etc., the Company shall make adjustments as it deems necessary.

5. Total number of the stock acquisition rights
1,200 units (four shares per stock acquisition right, provided, however, that the same adjustment shall be made in case
of an adjustment to the number of shares as set out in Section 4 above.)

6. Amount of assets to be contributed upon excrcise of stock acquisition rights

The Exercise Price per stock acquisition right shall be an amount equal to the cxercise price per share of 77,150
multiptied by the number of shares per stock acquisition right provided in Section 4 above.

If, after the allocation date, the Company carries out a stock split ot stock consolidation of the common stock of the
Company, the Exercise Price per share shall be adjusted at the time either of those acts takes place using the following
formula, and any fraction of a yen resulting from such adjustment shali be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Exercise Price - Exercise Price x !

afler adjustment before adjustment Ratio of stock split or consolidation

If, after the allocation date, the Company issues new shares or disposes of treasury stock with regards to common stock
of the Company at a price less than the market price (excluding sales of treasury stocks in accordance with the
provisions of Article 194 of the Corporation Law (Request to sell Shares Less Than One Unit by Holders of Shares Less
Than One Unit), transfer of treasury stock in accordance with the provisions of supplementary provision Article 5,
Paragraph 2 of the Law for Partial Amendments to the Commercial Code, etc. (Law No. 79 of 2001), and conversion or
exercise of stock acquisition rights (including stock acquisition rights attached to bonds with stock acquisition rights)
which allow request of delivery of securities to be or that may be converted to shares of common stock of the Company
or shares of common stock in the Company), the Exercise Price shall be adjusted using the following formula, and any
fraction of a yen resnlting from such adjustment shall be rounded up to the nearest whole yen.

Number of shares newly issued

x Exercise Price per share
Stock price before new issuance

Number of issued shares

Exercise Price _ Exercise Price X
after adjustment before adjustment Number of issued shares + Number of shares newly issued

The “Number of issued shares” used in the formula above is the total number of issued shares of the Comipany less the
number of treasury stock with respect to shares of common stock held by the Company. If the Company disposes of
its treasury stocks, “Number of shares newly issued” shall be read as “Number of treasury stocks 10 be disposed of”.

7. Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From December 22, 2008 to June 30, 20011

8. Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of

stock acquisition rights

(@) The amount of stated capital 10 be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall be
hailf of the maximum amount of capital increase calculated in accordance with Article 40.1 of the Corporate
Calculation Rules, with any fraction of a yen resulting from that calcolation being rounded up to the nearest whole
yen,

(b) The amount of capital reserves to be increased when issuing shares upon exercise of stock acquisition rights shall
be the maximum amcunt of capital increase as set out in item (a) above less the amount of stated capital to be
increased as provided for in item (a) above.

9, Conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights
(a) Any person who is allocated stock acquisition rights (“SAR Holder™) must be in the position of director, corperate
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anditor, advisor or employee of the Company or an affiliate of the Company at the time of exercising the rights,

except when the SAR Holder retires from his or her position due to the expiration of his or her term, faces

mandatory retirement, has a transfer of employment, or on any other reasonable grounds.

(b) (i) If an SAR Holder dies, his or her successor shall be approved to succeed those stock acquisition rights,
provided that the Limit of successors is within two degrees of kinship, unless the SAR Holder gave the
Company a written notice as prescribed by the Company stating that the SAR Holder does not wish his or her
successor to exercise the stock acquisition rights.

(ii) The successor to the SAR Holder succeeding the stock acquisition rights (“Right Successor™) must give
nolice of the succession of the stock acquisition rights within ten months of the commencement date of the
succession following the procedures determined by the Company.  If the stock acquisition rights are jointly
succeeded, all successors must collectively select a representative successor and give notice of the joint
succession of the stock acquisition rights within ten months of the commencement date of the succession
foliowing the procedures prescribed by the Company.

(i) If there are several units of stock acquisition rights that are target to the succession, the successors may divide
and succeed the stock acquisition rights. In such case, the selection of a representative successor provided
for in subitem (ii) above is not required and each successor receiving a portion of the divided rights shall be a
Right Successor, provided that any fraction stock acquisition right resulting from the division shall be
rounded down to the nearest whole unit.

(iv) If there are changes to matters in the notice such as the Right Successor’s address, the Right Successor must
promptly notify the Company in writing of that change in the form prescribed by the Company.

(v) If a succession is commenced in connection to a Rights Successor, that successor shall not succeed the stock
acquisition rights (a secondary succession is not permitted.)

(c) Stock acquisition ights may not be pledged or otherwise disposed of,

(d) Holders of stock acquisition rights shall be restricted as follows in regards to the exercise of stock acquisition

rights:

(i) The total annual exercise price for exercised rights shall not exceed 12 million yen per year (in a calendar
year), provided that the year (calendar year) described in this subitem (i) shall be the period commencing on
January 1 (except in 2008, which shall commence on December 22) and ending on December 31§ (except in
2011, which shall end on June 30) each year.

(ii) Shares acquired by exercise of rights shall be held in a share custody account of a securities company
designated by the Company in the name of the SAR Holder.

(e) An SAR Holder may not exercise stock acquisition rights even during the exercise period determined in Section 7

above if any one of the following subitems applies:

(i) The SAR Holder is subject to imprisonment without labor or heavier penatties;

(ii) The SAR Holder is removed or has suffered any sanction under the employment regulations of the Company
such as being dismissed under instruction or for disciplinary reasons;

(iii) The SAR Holder resigns from the position of director, corporate auditor, advisor or employee of the
Company or an affiliate of the Company, except if the holder retires from his or her position due to the
expiration of his or her term, faces mandatory retirement, has a transfer of employment, or on any other
reasonable grounds determnined by the Company;

(iv) The SAR Holder is appointed as an officer or employee of a company other than the Company that is in
competition with the Company and whose purpose is the business of sateilite communication or satellite
broadcasting (except upon prior written approval from the Company); or

(v) The SAR Holder has given a written proposal in the form prescnibed by the Company of its intention to
waive all or part of the stock acquisition rights.

10. Conditions of acquisition of stock acquisition rights

(a) If a merger agreement under which the Company becomes a dissolved company, a proposal for a share for share
exchange agreement or a share transfer under which the Company becomes a wholly owned subsidiary is approved
at a sharehoiders’ meeting of the Company, the Company may acquire the stock acquisition nghts at no cost on the
date separately determined by the board of directors of the Company.

(b) When an SAR Holder does not fulfil the conditions of exercising stock acquisition rights set out in Section 9 above,
the Company may acquire the stock acquisition rights at no cost on the date separately determined by the board of
directors of the Company.

11. Restrictions on the transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Company’s board of directors.

12. Handling of stock acquisition rights upen rcorganization of the Company
If the Company carries out a merger (only when the Company becomes dissolved as a result of the merger), company
split (whether the split division is succeeded by another exisling company (kyushu bunkatsw) or a new company is
incorporated (shinsetsu bunkatsu)), a share for share exchange or a share transfer (collectively “Reorganization™), in
each case stock acquisition rights of joint-stock companies as described in Article 236.1(8)(a) through (¢} of the
Corporation Law (“Reorganized Company”) shall be delivered to holders of stock acquisition rights of stock acquisition
rights remaining at the time of the Reorganization (“Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights™) in accordance with the
following conditions. In such case, Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights shall be cancelled and the Reorganized
Company shall newly issue stock acquisition rights only when the delivery of stock acquisition rights of the
Reorganized Company following the conditions below is provided for in a merger agreement, consolidation agreement,
kyushu bunkatsu agreement, shinsetsu bunkatsu plan, share for share exchange agreement or share transfer plan.
(2) Number of slock acquisition rights of Reorganized Company to be Delivered

The number of stock acquisition rights that is equal to the number of stock acquisition rights held by the holder of
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remaining stock acquisition rights at the time of Reorganization.

(b) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
Shares of common stock of the Reorganized Company

(c) Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acguisition rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 4 above taking into consideration the conditions of the
Reorganization

(d) Amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of stock acquisition rights
The amount of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right delivered shall be the amount
obtained by multiplying the exercise price after the reorganization adjusted taking into consideration the conditions
of the Reorganization by the number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights determined
in accordance with item (c).

(e) Exercise period of stock acquisition rights
From the later of the commencement date of the exercise period of stock acquisition rights set out in Section 7
above and effective date of the Reorganization to the expiration date of the exercise period of stock acquisition
rights set out in Section 7 above.

(f) Matters on stated capital and capital reserves to be increased upon issuance of shares by exercise of stock
acquisition rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 8 above.

(g) Restrictions on the acquisition by transfer of stock acquisition rights
Stock acquisition rights may not be transferred without approval from the Reorganized Company.

(h) Conditions of acquisition of stock acquisition rights
To be determined in accordance with Section 10 above.

13. Rounding down of fractions occurring from the exercise of stock acquisition rights
Fractions of shares regarding the number of shares to be delivered to the SAR Holder shall be rounded down to the
nearest share.
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Notice of Share Exchange Ratio of eTen, Inc.

(TEL: 03-54638-9400)

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) is pleased to announce that the share exchange ratio has been determined for the
purpose of making eTEN, Inc. (Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Masahito Atsumi; “eTEN™) a subsidiary of SKY Pe_rfect through the share exchange resolved at a meeting of

the Board of Directors held on January 31, 2007. The details are as follows.

Share Exchange Ratio
L eTEN, Inc.
SKY Perfect Communications Ine.
. (Wholly-owned
(Wholly owning parent company) .
subsidiary)
Share exchange
. 1 2.40
raho
(Note) Ratio of share allotment

Based on the closing price of SKY Perfect’s common shares in regular transactions on the day prior to
the effective date (March 1, 2007), SKYY Perfect will aliot its common shares in a ratio calculated based
on the following formula (fractions will be omitted) to one common share of ¢eTEN owned by the

shareholders of eTEN who are listed or recorded in the final register of sharcholders on the day prior to

- the effective date.

Number obtained by dividing 400 million yen
by the value of a commen share of SKY Perfect (72,5 00 yen)

Total number of eTEN shares issued (2,300 shares)

=2.40

SKY Perfect will allot 5,532 shares calculated based on the above formula, using its treasury stocks.

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Ine.

- TEL: 03-5468-5400 FAX: (3-5468-9399
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Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of February 2007

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director; Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) announced the number of total
registrati d individual subseribers as of the end of Febrary 2007

New Sucnbcrs

Churn 43,882 31,919
Churn Rate*’ 12.5% 10.6%
Net Increase 2,026 3,341

Cumulative Total 4,218,063 3,618,173

* The total column shows the summed-up figure of cumulative totals of DTH Services and Wired Broadcasting
Services.

Y Fe ot Subscribers®’ | Tndividual Subscribers*?

New Subscribers ' 21,827 20,325

Churn 30,252 28,738

Churn Rate** 9.8% 10.7%

Net Increase -8,425 -8.413

Cumulative Total 3,208,148
T Todividual Suberibers®

New Subscribers 12,236

Churn 2,538

Chumn Rate*’ 9.1%

Net Increase 9,698

Cumulative Total 460,143 - 344,254

. Cumulative Total of DTH Services: . | . ls 4,151,066 | 3,552,402
tﬁﬁ%g%ﬁ?gé;wﬁ%&m 4] T tai 'Sul;a'sc:'*i"bé:'rls"}_ : Iﬁdi\'idual Subscnbe:rs"‘2 -:—:
New Subscribers 2,298 2,195

Churn 151 151

Chum Rate*’ 7.7% 7.9%

Net Increase 2147 2.044

Cumulative Total 25,629 24,853




New Subscribers

Churn 492
Churn Rate*’ 14.3%
Net Increase 0

Cumaulative Total ‘ 41,368

§i4L

*1

*2

*3

*4

*5

Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay- subscription agreement
(provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV/ only), institutional subscribers including retailers exhibition and
registrations for technical development in addition to individual subscribers.

Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have been actually paying
subscription fee.

Monthly Churn Rate; The churn rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number of churns inte
yearly basis,

Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month /Total subscribers at the end of the previous month x 12
months

The multichannel broadcasting service in Fukuyama-shi, Hiroshima, jointly operated with Energia
Communications, Inc. and the channel lease service in Achi-mura, Nagano, that uses available fiber-optic
network bandwidth will remain under the name of “HIKARI PerfecTV/”

Other Wired Broadcasting Services: Other Wired Broadcasting Services refer to the number of mnltichannel
broadcasting contract using SKY Perfect’s digital broadcasting system, including cable television, exciuding
SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARL

The breakdown of properties that have approved SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI and properties
receiving the service as of the end of February 2007.

Number of properties 711 1,078

Number of households*® 81, 278 89, 431

*6

*7

*3

Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each month, have
concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) provision agreement.
This figure also includes some properties for which service provision will cornmence in the following month or
later, depending on when construction will be completed.

Properties currently receiving service: Those prOp.enjes to which, as of the end of each month, broadcasting
services (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) are being provided and which are being charged
for such.

The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call

Public Relations and Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc,

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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A e Kiyoshi Isozaki, President & CEO, Representative Dircctor
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o J {Code Number: 9442, First Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange)

T k ntact Hldeto Usa, Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division, General Manager
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SKY Perfect JSAT’s Corporate Logo and
Location of the Head Office

On April 2, 2007, JSAT Corporation (Headquarters: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, President &
CEO: Kiyoshi Isozaki; “JSAT”) and SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Headquarters:
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President & Representative Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”)
will conduct a business combination (the “Business Combination™) by establishing a
joint holding company, SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (Headquarters: Chiyoda-ku,
Tokyo; President and Representative Director (tentative): Masao Nito, “SKY Perfect
JSAT™). In accordance with this integration, the companies have decided to adopt a new
corporate logo for the new company.

New corporate logo for SKY Perfect JSAT

SKY Perfect JSAT

Z 77 / (o““'J SAT Corporation

The new corporate logo combines the initial letters “S” of SKY Perfect and the “J” of
JSAT in a dynamic design that conjures up the image of “a new wind,” powerfully
expressing SKY Perfect JSAT’s resolve to innovate new approaches. This resolve is in
line with the SKY Perfect JSAT Group’s commitment, expressed in its Mid-Term
Management Plan, to utilize its position as a base that accumulates and transmits




multichannel content to become a media group that delivers a personal, rich video life to
all people.

The corporate logo complement the SKY PerfecTV! shade of blue used by SKY
Perfect’s mainstay SKY PerfecTV! service and the JSAT shades of blue and red used in
JSAT’s logo.

In addition to being used as the corporate logo for the holding company SKY Perfect
JSAT, the new logo is intended for use as a Group logo by the two business subsidiaries
JSAT and SKY Perfect. The two business subsidiaries will continue to use the existing
JSAT, SKY PerfecTV, e2 by SKY PerfecTV! and other logos.

SKY Perfect JSAT Group logo

SKY Perfect JSAT
Group

SKY Perfect JSAT
Group
The location of the Head Office of the new holding company SKY Perfect JSAT has
been decided.

Overview of SKY Perfect JSAT

(1) Company name: SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation

(2) Head Office address: Pacific Century Place Marunouchi 17F, 1-11-1 Marunouchi,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan

(3) Scheduled date of establishment: April 2, 2007

* For inquiries:

JSAT Corporation
Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division
TEL: 03-5219-7778 FAX: 03-5219-7876

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Public Relations and Investor Relations Department

. TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-5359%
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JSAT Corporation

Kiyoshi Isozaki, President & CEO, Representative Director

(Code Number: 9442, First Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange)

Contact: Hideto Usa, Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division, General Manager
TEL: 03-5219-7778

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Masao Nito, President and Representative Director

(Code Number: 4795, First Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange)

Contact: Tomonari Niimoto, Public Relations and Investor Relations Department, General Manager
TEL: 03-5468-9400

SKY Perfect JSAT Group
The New Mid-Term Management Plan (FY 2007 - FY 2011)

JSAT Corporation (Headquarters: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President & CEO: Kiyoshi Isozaki;
“JSAT™) and SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Headquarters: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and
Representative Director: Masao Nito, “SKY Perfect”) will conduct a business combination (the
“Business Combination”) by establishing a joint holding company, SKY Perfect JSAT
Corporation (Headquarters: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director
(tentative): Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect JSAT™) through a joint share transfer on April 2, 2007. In
accordance with the Business Combination, JSAT and SKY Perfect have formulated the
Mid-Term Management Plan for SKY Perfect JSAT for the fiscal years 2007 to 2011.

The foundations for the SKY Perfect JSAT Group are as follows:
As the leading provider of the multichannel pay TV in Japan, we will drive an expansion of the
multichannel pay TV market, and through our multichannel broadcasts contribute to a richer
lifestyle for subscribers.
With the aim of allowing all people to enjoy a wide range of video content, we will maintain a
pioneering spirit as we incorporate new technologies, and provide easy-to-use, enriched
broadcasting and telecommunications services.

JSAT and SKY Perfect, since the launch of PerfecTV/ in 1996, have worked together for over a
decade in the field of the multichannel pay TV in Japan to expand the market through the use of
direct-to-home satellite services, building a subscriber base that now exceeds 4.2 million (total
registrations). The business environment facing both companies is currently in the midst of a
rapid transformation. The broadcasting and telecommunications industry in Japan is bracing for
the start of nationwide terrestrial digital broadcasts and the termination of analog broadcasts in
2011, while at the same time adapting to the spread of fiber optic networks, the appearance of
NGN (next generation network) infrastructure, and the broadbandization of the mobile
environment through the use of wireless LANs and other technologies. Video content is
increasingly being distributed over the Internet, and large-scale telecommunications and
broadcasting business groups are being formed centered around triple-play, quattro-play and FMC
(fixed mobile convergence) services.

With competition between media outlets growing increasingly fierce, JSAT and SKY Perfect
have decided to integrate their business operations through a holding company structure with the
aim of expanding and enhancing the cross-sectional, lateral development of the multichannel pay
TV market, and as the SKY Perfect JSAT Group have formulated the Mid-Term Management
Plan. Through the Plan SKY Perfect JSAT will seek to provide families with a diverse range of
enjoyable, high-quality video content, and offer individuals a wide variety of programming that
they can easily enjoy anytime, anywhere.




A general outline of the measures for each service in the Mid-Term Management Plan is as
follows.

1. SKY PerfecTV! (CS124/128 service)

For the core SKY PerfecTV! service, we plan to launch the hi-definition (HD) multichannel pay
TV service SKY PerfecTV! HD, starting with about 10 channels, mainly pay-per-view (PPV) and
premium channels, from some time around the summer of 2008, and begin offering an HD pack
from around the autumn of 2009, at the same time increasing the number of HD broadcast
channels around 30 channels. We are also planning such high-value-added services as the
introduction of the SKY PerfecTV! HD tuner, a highly sophisticated tuner able to handle the
next-generation encoding format H.264, and which will incorporate a tuner for terrestrial digital
broadcasts that is also compatible with home networks. We expect the growth in number of
individual subscribers to reach 3.6 million by the end of fiscal 2011.

2. e2 by SKY PerfecTV!

For the e2 by SKY PerfecTV/, 110-degree CS digital broadcastmg service that allows viewers to
easily enjoy the multichannel pay TV, we plan to expand the number of HD broadcast channels to
about five from the current two during fiscal 2007, and to increase this to around 10 by fiscal
2011. With the further spread of digital televisions equipped with three-wavelength tuners capable
of receiving terrestrial digital, BS digital and 110-degree CS digital broadcasts, along with new
marketing strategies, we are targeting 1.8 million individual subscribers by fiscal 2011,

3. SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI

For our mainstay in wired broadcasting services SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI, in line with the
full-scale development of the service to detached homes, during 2007 we will link an IP-based
content distribution service with the RF (radio frequency) format the multichannel pay TV service
currently offered. Further, we will provide an enhanced menu of broadcasting services by
incorporating the HD channel to be started by SKY PerfecTV/, and combining it with terrestrial
digital broadcasts and BS digital broadcasts.

. The service area for SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI will be expanded to reach over 10 miflion
households, focused on Tokyo, Nagoya and Osaka. We are targeting 800 thousand individual
subscribers by fiscal 2011.

4, TP, Mobile and other services

For IP broadcasting, we are planning to enter the business in fiscal 2007 utilizing our content
aggregation and customer management. In tandem with our SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI service, our
future plan calls for establishing a nationwide content-distributing system capable of functioning
with NTT’s B FLETS service and next-generation networks (NGN). Also, we are targeting the
development of the personal user market by developing a “light” version of SKY PerfecTV/ to
broadcast multichannel content to small monitors {personal television, mobile devices, computers,
game consoles, PDAs, car navigation systems, etc.) using wireless LAN and other recent
technologies. We are further considering individual level broadcasts and communications services,
exploiting the possible development of mobile multimedia broadcasts and utilizing grid
computing to realize a wide array of segmented content development and distribution over IP.
Taking into account flexibility in obtaining copyrights and greater sophistication of mobile
terminals, we are targeting 1.3 million subscribers for IP and mobile services by fiscal 2011.




5. Enhancing our subscriber-oriented focus and further enrichment of content that we
provide

As part of our commitment to providing a more subscriber-oriented service across all services, we
plan to offer discounts for multiple televisions in one household, as well as introduce a range of
discount services for existing subscribers, expand the “friendly call” service to increase the
number of opportunities to interact with subscribers, and set up a new telephone consultation
service. To expand the multichannel pay TV market we will expand the amount of programming
in HD format, offer a greater range of content including live broadcasts of all 620 JLEAGUE
J1/12 soccer games, as well as appeal to and attract subscribers through a wide range of sales
channels centering on home appliance stores. We will also make an effort to improve customer
satisfaction, raise the average revenue per user, prevent service cancellations, and encourage
previous customers to conclude new contracts.

6. Satellite communications business

For the satellite communications business, we will pursue efficient procurement of satellites and
stable operations, as well as expansion of service areas through collaboration with other operators.
We will also focus on the broadcast, communal, global, and mobile aspects where satellites have
an advantage, striking a balance between our mission as an infrastructure operator to provide a
reliable service, while generating stable earnings and cash flow.

As a result of these measures the SKY Perfect JSAT Group is forecasting 8 million subscribers
(total registrations) for all services by the end of fiscal 2011. The forecast for SKY Perfect JSAT’s
business results are ¥240 billion for operating revenue, with EBITDA of ¥50 billion, and ordinary
profit of ¥38 billion.

The SKY Perfect JSAT Group, in establishing the Mid-Term Management Plan, seeks to utilize
its position as a base to accumulate and transmit multichannel content to become a media group
that delivers a personal, rich video life to all people. '

Note: The forecasts and projections about future business results contained in this announcement
are the judgments of the management of JSAT and SKY Perfect based on information
currently avaijlable. Investors are therefore cautioned not to make investment decisions
solely on the basis of these business forecasts. Actual business results may differ materially
from these business forecasts due to a variety of significant factors.

* For inquiries:

JSAT Corporation
Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division
TEL: 03-5219-7778 FAX: 03-3219-7876

SKY Perfect Communications Inc,
Public Relations and Investor Relations Department
TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: (}3-5468-9399
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Results Forecasts of SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation
for the Year Ending March 31, 2008 '

JSAT Corporation (Headquarters: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President & CEO: Kiyoshi
Isozaki; “JSAT”) and SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Headquarters: Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo; President & Representative Director: Masao Nito; “SKY Perfect”) plan to
establish the joint holding company SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation (Headquarters:
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director (tentative): Masao Nito;
“SKY Perfect JSAT”) on Apnil 2, 2007 through a joint share transfer.

The results forecasts of SKY Perfect JSAT for the year ending March 31, 2008 are as
follows.

1. Forecasts of consolidated results for the year ending March 31, 2008

(million yen)

Revenues Operating Ordinary profit Net income
income
First half 60,000 2,000 2,000 1,600
Full year 125,000 5,500 5,000 5,000

We intend to announce the non-consolidated forecasts for the year ending March 31,
2008 for SKY Perfect JSAT on April 2, 2007, the scheduled date for the estasblishment
of SKY Perfect JSAT. '

Goodwill of approximately 10,000 million yen (estimated from the results forecast
for March 31, 2007) that is projected to arise from the share exchange will be amortized

over 15 years on a straight-line basis. Goodwill amortization expenses of

approximately650 million yen have been factored into full-year earnings forecasts for
the year ending March 31, 2008.




2. Projected dividends for the year ending March 31, 2008

SKY Perfect JSAT intends to pay an annual dividend of 1,000 yen per share for the
year ending March 31,' 2008. SKY Perfect JSAT’s policy is to focus on the return of
earnings to shareholders and to ensure stable dividends in the future, taking into account
the implementation of the group's medium-term plan announced today and the level of
earnings achievable by the plan.

As has been already announced, JSAT and SKY Perfect intend to pay shareholders of
record on March 31, 2007 year-end dividends of 3,000 yen per share and 750 yen per
share, respectively.

Note: The forecasts and projections about future business results contained in this
announcement are the judgments of the management of JSAT and SKY Perfect
based on information currently available. Investors are therefore cautioned not to
make investment decisions solely on the basis of these business forecasts. Actual
business results may differ materially from these business forecasts due to a
variety of significant factors.

* For inquiries:

JSAT Corporation
Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division
TEL: 03-5219-7778 TFAX: 03-5219-7876

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Public Relations and Investor Relations Department

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-5399
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Philosophy of the Group

45AT |

Changes in Environment and Services of the Group

M Spread of terrestrial digital broadcasting
*Beijing Olympics in 2008

*Termination of terrestrial analog broadeasts in 2011
B Spread of optic fiber networks and greater
functionality

*NTT targeting 30 million subscribers

+Start of NGN (next generation network) in 2008

B Further advances in the mobile environment
*Progress in 3.5G and other mobile phones
+Progress in WiMAX and other wireless LANs

B Increasing distribution of video content over
the Internet

sIncrease in volume of content available by due to
growing contribution and parlicipation by users, etc.
*Appearance of a variety of mixed video services

W Formation of large-scale telecommunications
and broadcasting business groups centered
around triple play, quattro play and FMC (fixed
mobile convergence) services

 HProvide homes with a diverse range of -~

enjoyable, high-quality video conunt

: ..".ﬁTarg:unballhomcholds SO B

ho:rer individuals » wide variety of )
;. programming that they can easnly cnjoy -
g nnyhme. ‘anywhére SR

a l’rm ide high quality and Iughly reliable .
=t satellite services
= Through broadcaslmg and r:nmmumcauﬂns R
T mfrasm.lcturcs ;::;,._ . -

_ Combine, integrate and utilize Group resources -




Examples of Services for the Home

" Multiphe HD Chamieb sn Mxin TV in the

' Rexpocd to wrrtval ol NGN |

Schematic of Personal SKY PerfecTV/

- Devtlop and distribute a wide :rny ofnegmrnted

Lo cnntem aver [P

I Use 2 low-cost distributiun nrmnrk achieved usmg
" P2P, etc. and uplinks to enable individual-level -
hrnnducu and d]stnhutlnn services -




Mid-Term Management Plan Targets

EY201 1 irtegrated Group revenues:.. . ¥240biflion )

EY2011 integrated Group ordinary profit:  ¥38 billion -

2011 integrated Group EBITDA: ;. ¥50 billion

_snilir

Total Registrations af end of FY2011:

H R o HEE
SKY PerfecTV/ 3.6 million

€2 by SKY PerfecTV! 1.8 million
SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI 0.8 million

IP, mohile and other services 1.3 million

“1: Totsl regstrations

{Toul registrations = Nomber of ndividual + number of registrations during free-view period befors pay-view coditract {temporary regisrariona oaly far
SKY PerfecTV!) + number of corporste contracts {including displays st sgents) + mumber of registeations for technology develoy ec.)

42: Individual Subscribers

{Individual mbscribers = Number of subscribers making paymeniz on the basis of pay-view (individual registrations).)

Measures and Initiatives to Achieve Targets

. SKY PerfecTV! . Enhance our subscriber-oriented focus Expand sales channels

cz by SKY PerfecTV! : x HD services and highly functional Tl_xl_ntr.'j x . Adopt new ”]“_ mcll;oq!s
TSKY PertecTV! HIKARI . :

Siity L Improve content .

LI R—

Improve customer satisfaction .
- Increase number of subscribers
Lower number of service cancellations




SKY PerfecTV! Milestones

Renewal of SKY PerfecTV! service by launching a high definition (HD)) multichannel broadcast
service in FY2008-9 and infroducing a highly sophisticated tuner. Boost the number of subseribers te
3.6 million. e o : .
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e2 by SKY PerfecTV! Milestones

. Uisiing digital televisions that can recelve thé very easy-to-use €2 by SKY PerfecTV! -
‘sérvice, turget sign up rate of 3.5-4.0% of households (1.8 million subscribers).
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SKY PerfecTV! HIKARI Milestones

FYr2007 Fr2008 Y2008 :FY?(HO FY2011 .
B Full-scale n ched homes | 1 - . m-m;nmm‘:-l:mm.nwn E
(Review circuje-fee srocture} M . - bensehobds wationwride tn flscal
; '
'

Target 1.3 million subgcribern for [P wnd muhile servlr:es ha
growing snphistiution of moblle terminals

Promate distnbution of video to mobile terminals

Investigate distribution of video using witeless LAN, WiFi, and WiMAX technologies

Usc the bandwidth that will become available [ollowing 1ermination of terrestrial analog brosdcasts to develop mobile multimedia broadcasts
Investigate wider ranging video distribution services utilizing grid computing




Enhancing Our subscriber-oriented
Focus and Improving Content

_ Introduce discounts for multiple
televisions in one household, as well
‘as various discount services oniented
to existing subscribers

Further expand call center funcuons
_and greatly increase interactions w1th
xisting subscribers to 1mpmve
customer satisfaction, raise average
revenue per user and prcvcnt contract
canccllauons

. Expand "ﬁ':endly call™ scr\nce
. Set up support phone ling -
Enmurage past cuslomers to conclude new
* contracls -
) Can'y out major overhaul of websﬂe
: Irnplemenl bold overhaul of guide -
magazine

12

SKY PerfecTV/! HD Services and Plans for
Highlv Functional Tener

¢ - Phase 1 (Scheduled for summer 2008) PPV (Films,

7 adult entert t, s0CCer) pr services, ete,
+. " Phase 2 (Scheduled for autamn 2009): Sales ul'HD

;. channel pack;ge

Business integration will enable us to:
- Build muttichannel HD services only possible at
SK\ Pcrl’ccTV'

ie hnilding hased

-1 maodel in which

bmnd::st providers can essily participate by

introducing a revenue sharing structure, etc.

@ Tunems

+ Compatible with MPEG-Z(SD) and H.Z64(HD)

= Plans for model with bullt-in terrestrial dlgital
" tuner . .

=" Make one remote controf umit

Coennect home networks

Quick enr-tsw rearowal of SKY PerfecTV/ services by the development [

nd Eatrodurthon olMguy!lmdhml uner




Strengthening Marketing Strategies

——,... oAt k&

<. New sakes methadh

Improve eamings by focusmg
on areas where satelhtcs havc X

Efﬁaent procurement of

Highly relisble satelite.

~satellites :

Generate cnnsmtem earnmgs
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Focusing on Areas Where Satellites Have an Advantage é{’SAT 9

TE miache

f'As' ‘wel[ as exastmg eainings base, work to |mprnve earnmgs by developmg
: "' new areas where satellites have an advantage

BHD hroadcasts

.o SKY PerfecTV! HD channels

" HMaobile/mobile ubiquitous

‘= Land, sea and air mobile businesses

" * Busipesses that Tink with WIMAX and mohilt terminals’

lPublu:

"+ Gavernment agencies

» Local gov:rnmcnl.l AR .

"+ Bridging the “Digits) Divide” -
= Disaster prevention tl

* W Global

+ Expand strau-glc atllance with INTELSAT Grnup (Hnnzons, lOR POR)

* Boast sales and conduct M&As in Asian markets -

-Maintain and expand e: stmg earnings base c
Expand customer services through telepnrt semcgs i
+Expand salcs thruugh ‘cooperation with NTT Group

16

Ensuring Stable Services From Satellites

'Efficicnt procurement of satellites™ - - " o
“Pursue the efficient procurement of satellit
—Satellites shared with other cnmpamﬂ

:'nghly reliable satellite opcratlons

" Maintain a backup system ™

JCRAT-IR Langrivdr 170 degrees cat Corparste commuricshon Japan, Asia, Hrem:

JCBAT-24 Longrhude 154 degrees axt Corporate commuracatuons Jupm, Asin, oemea, Hawar

JCSAT-3A Lovgrhuie 120 degrees east SXT PartecTV! bromdeacs Jman, A, Ocewna, R

ICIATAA Longiude 124 degrees et SKY PerbecTV brosdcasts Jagan

JCSAT-R - Crtaal bacinp surlie Jpn, Aa, Gcemin, Hrwut

JCBAT-3A Songude 112 tegrvn et HTT Group and ctr eovporsie commuacatans Iun, Sousheast Ana, Hawar, Ocars et FTT TnCobdn, o + @ dmod S bk
NSTARY Langaude 136 degram ean NTT Oroup communctuons Jgan

JCBAT-110 Longtude 110 fegrees ras. 2 by EXY PartecTV( brosdents I i e e
Fiontom. | Longrtude 127 degrees west Commmucaon fer Japanese companies in U 8 North Amen e, Howaii

JCSAT-11 Orbital backup ellde Asin, Indtn Ocem, Middle Bant ity il
Eonzons-2 Longhatu T4 dagres wrtt Carmmuncaiom fr fopmese comprees i 0 § Horth: ammencs. e ey Lt et




Consolidated Business Forecasts and Related Factors gyﬂr g

OiP. mobie and
other services

[ SKY ParfacTV!
HIKAR]

o2 by SKY
PerfacTV!

B SKY PerfecTV!

-tBEEE syyss8es

<SKY PerfecTV />

=42 ¥y SKY PerfecTV!>

«<SKY PerfecTY! HIKARI>

<Teespumerdcations smd sthetl -




Revenues ¥60 billion ¥12.5 billion
Operaling income ¥2 billion ¥5.5 billion
Ordinary profit ¥2 billion ¥5 billion
Net income afler tax ¥1.5 billion ¥5 billion
Dividend per share - ¥1,000/share
Number of new individual - 600,000
contracts
Annualized Churn rate - 9.2%

* Accompanying the business integration, projected geodwill of ¥10.0 billion will be
amortized over 15 years nsing the straight-line method.

20

Fiscal 2007 Group’s Major Policies 45aT g




Disclaimer ,

. The plans, forecasts, and'strategies pertaining to future business profitability .-
stated in this document are based on judgments by the management of this group
that have been obtained from currently available data. Accordingly, we ask that
‘you make no investment decisions that rely solély on these business forecasts. ' -
Pléase nnderstand that, due to'a number of important factors, actual performance
‘may produce results that differ significantly from these business forecasts.;

22




FILE No.
825113

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT

The Semi-Annual Report for the six month period from April 1, 2006 through September 30,
2006 prepared in accordance with Articles 24-5 of the Securities and Exchange Law has been
submitted to the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau on December 21, 2006 through
EDINET (Electronic Disclosure for Investors' Network).
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Financial Highlights (Unaudited)*!

Six-month periods ended Year ended
September 30 March 31

Number of Channels 2005 2006 2006

SKY PerfecTV/{CS 124/128 service)

Television 185 190 191
Radio 101 101 101

SKY PerfecTV/ 110 (CS 110 service)

Television and data 74 75 72

SKY PerfecTV/HIKARI (Fiber To The Home service)

Retransmission (Terrestrial and BS television and FM

radio channels)*?
Television 171 182 171
Radio 101 101 101

Number of Subscribers (Thousands)

Total subscribers: 3,957 4,178 4,106
SKY PerfecTv! 3,704 3,727 3,737
SKY PerfecTV! 110 251 393 321
SKY PerfecTV/ HIKAR) 2 18 9
Other wired broadcasting services — 41 40

Individual subscribers: 3417 3,595 3,536
SKY ParfecTV! 3,226 3,245 3,255
SKY PerfecTV/ 110 189 293 234
SKY PerfecTV! HIKAR! 2 17 9
Other wired broadcasting services — 40 39

Annualized churn rate: 8.3% 9.5% 8.6%
SKY PerfecTV! 82 9.4 8.6
SKY PerfecTV! 110 9.8 10.0 9.0
SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI 7.5 7.4 b4
Other wired broadcasting services — 11.6 —

ARPU {Average revenue per subscriber per month for SKY PerfecTViand SKY PerfecTV! 110, yen)

Subscription fees per subscriber ¥3496 ¥3,400 ¥3,443

Subscriber-related revenues per subscriber 1,3¢8 1,363 1,382

SAC (Subscriber acquisition cost per subscriber for SKY PerfecTV!and SKY PerfecTV! 110, yen)

Total ¥39,533 ¥27.618 ¥35,817
Advertising costs 14,085 11,525 12,143
Sales promotion expenses 10,005 6,149 9,800
Sales incentives 15443 9,944 13,874

Thousangs of
US. dollars
Millions of yen {Note 2}
2005 2006 2006

Results of operations:

Revenues ¥ 41024 ¥42 533 $363,530

Operating expenses 41,448 41,277 352,795

Operating income (loss) {424} 1,256 10,735

Net income (loss) {323} 1,288 11,002

Net income (loss) per share, basic (Yen) ¥{149.97) ¥598.36 $ 511

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
Millions of yen {Note 2)

march 31, 2006 September 30, 2006

September 30, 2006

Financial position:

Total assets ¥133,172 ¥120,356
Total liabilities 34,354 31,700
Total equity 94,000 88,656

$1.028.684
270,940
757.744

*1 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
*2 The number of retransmitled terrestrial and BS television and FM radio channels varies depending on the region.



To Our Shareholders

Viewing Changes in Our Operating Environment as Opportunities

Turbulent change is reshaping the business envirenment in which we operate. Arnid increasingly
intertwined broadcasting and communications, ihe Japanese broadcasting environment is saan ta
experience a major shake-up.

Historically, change has been good to us, and we look forward to such developments as the spread
of tarrestrial digital broadcasting to the entire nation by the end of 2006, Digital televisions now are
sold with built-in three-wavelength tuners, which aflow viewers to watch terrestrial digital, BS*! digital
and CS*? 110-degree digital broadcasts without adding an external tuner. Moreover, the Japanese
government has set a policy of ensuring that no part of the country is without broadband access by
2010. This bodes well for rapidly expanding internet broadband, centered on optical fiber networks.

Characteristicaily viewing change as opportunity, we are aggressively developing our operations and
pulting together customer approach strategies that clearly outling the distinctive features of our
services. These include SKY PerfecTV! SKY PerfecTV! 110 and SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI.

First-Half Activities

During the first half of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007, subscribers to our core SKY PerfecTV!
service grew steadily. In particular, two products—SKY PerfecTV! valuable Pack and SKY PerfecTV/
Select 15—continued demonstrating the popularity that began immediately upon their launch in
December 2005.

Using three-wavelength tuners, subscribers can enjoy SKY PerfecTV/ 110 muitichanne! broadcasts.
In the first half, digital televisions remained popular, thanks to aggressive sales promotions, prompting
a surge in our subscriber numbers. Digital televisions on sale from November 2006 feature a
preloaded service that automatically gives consumers temporary access to SKY PerfecTV!110.

Our subsidiary, OptiCast Inc., provides SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI—a multichannel broadcast service
over optical fiber networks. With Nippon Telegraph and Telephone East Corperation (“NTT East") and
Nippon Telegraph and Telephone West Corporation ("NTT West"), OptiCast bundles SKY PeriecTV!
HIKARI, Internet access and IP telephony into a single service package. We began offering SKY
PerfecTV! HIKARI to condeminium-dwellers in February 2005, and from April 2006 we began
infroducing the service to residents of detached homes as well. In late October 2006, together with
NTT East we alsa launched a television commiercial advertising optical triple-play services. We now
have commenced full-fledged sales of these services to residents of detached homes, and our
television commercial has proven effective in intraducing these customers to SKY PerfecTV/ HIKARI.
As optical fiber continues to expand, we anticipate a major demand increase.

Using this combination of platforms, we are working diligently to cultivate new subscribers with
an enticing content menu. During the first half, we broadcast a number of own-content programs,
including the 2006 FIFA World Cup Germany™ and the FIBA Wortd Champicniship. These programs
met our expectations in terms of increases in the number of subscribers.

*! broadcast satellite
*2 communications satellite

Looking to the Second Half

In the second half of the fiscal year, in cooperation with NTT East and NTT West we will accelerate
efforts 1o promote sales of SKY PerfecTVIHIKARI tc residents of detached homes, which should lead
{0 sleady subscriber expansion. However, the true effects of our promotional activities probably will not
become evident until the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008.




In the preceding fiscal year, our SKY PerfecTV! service free antenna installation campaign contrib-
uted to a new-subscriber increase. We plan to relaunch this campaign in Novernber., Aiming for even
better success this time, we will ally ourselves with broadcasters, linking the campaign to television
cammercials and in-store promotions.

On December 1, 2006, SKY PerfecTV! will commence WOWOW broadcasts, so only a SKY Perfect
tuner will be required to view both services, and our offerings will now inciude more popular premium
movie and sports channels. This tie-up will enable us to provide even more superior content efficiently
and foster expansion of the pay TV market.

We began offering SKY ParfecTV! DVR tuners with built-in hard disks as a rental service on Qctober 1,
2006. SKY PerfecTV! DVRs store an average of 90 hours of recorded programming. The digital video
recorders are equipped with a host of functions that make them fun and convenient to use. Timed to
coincide with the SKY PerfecTV! DVR launch, we began offering 2 Gutput Dish Antennas so that
subscribers in the same household can view different SKY PerfecTV! content simuitaneously in
separate rooms.

Our Medium- to Long-Term Perspective

Japan's CS digital broadcasting system breaks out into broadcasters that provide programming and
satellite operators, which operate communications satellites and deliver programs. Independent of
these two and working with both are piatform providers, such as the SKY Perfect Group, which offers
a complement of attractive platforms. Our core content aggregation and multi-platform strategies are
designed to build strong relationships with broadcasters, and through SKY Perfect Well Think Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary, we are investing aggressively in content production.

The SKY Perfect Group has steadily developed into Japan’s largest content aggregator, assimilating
and providing content from more than 100 broadcasters, as well as our own content. We distribute
over multiple platforms, including sateflites, optical fiber networks, mchile systems and IP networks.
This diversity is linked with our expanding subscriber base and our continued success as a group.

To cultivate new subscribers, over the medium term we intend to enhance our awn-content library.
We have acquired exclusive Japanese CS broadcast rights to five seasons of J.League soccer, begin-
ning with the 2007 seasen, as well as exclusive rights to deliver this content over IP networks and
mobile systems. By broadcasting all J1 and J2 team matches, we anticipate an increase in new
subscribers from J.League enthusiasts throughout the nation. As the official broadcaster for J.League,
we will provide broad-ranging suppert for the J.League 100 Years Vision. Through soccer broadcasts,
we expect to introduce SKY PerfecTV! into new subscriber households and demonrstrate our appeal to
numeraus audience age ranges.

Amid a fast-moving media environment and propeiled by the march of digital technology, high-
definition television broadcasts are increasingly prevalent. We are adding high-definition content to
the SKY PerfecTV/ channel, among others, SKY PerfecTV/ 110 already includes two high-definition
channels, and by summer of 2008 we aim 1o raise our SKY PerfecTV! channel offerings to 10,
expanding to around 30 by autumn of 2009. In preparation, we have begun developing tuners that
can handle these channels as well as terrestrial digital broadcasts.

From a medium- to long-term perspective, we have acknowledged the synergistic potentizl of
teaming up with JSAT Corporation, a satellite operator. As a result, on October 26, 2006, we concluded
a basic agreement with ISAT to conduct a business combinaticn through the establishment of a joint




fnolding company in April 2007. Through this business combination, we expect the following synergies
1o accrue:

1. Optimization of satellite broadcasting operations and expansion of the multichannel satellite
broadcasting market

Our business domain comprises content provision and platform operation. Adding satellites to this

mix should introduce substantial synergy through vertical integration, as the combined organization

will be capable of services ranging from producing and procuring content ta expanding our distribution

system for tuners. We will create a structure to acquire even more subscribers and expand the

multichannel pay TV market.

2. Enhancement of horizontal development through scale expansion

Expanded financial and buman resources will enable the combined group to strengthen operations
across multiple platforms. As a leader in multichannel pay TV, the combined group will be capable of
accelerating new business development. In addition, we will further develop the satellite communica-
tions business, including the combination of cable and wireless services.

3. Efficient operation of the combined group under a holding company structure

A new holding company will be responsible for the planning, operational and control functicns of the
combined group, enabling financial and investment decisions to be made in a more flexible and strategic
manner. This structure should optimize decision making and raise Group management efficiency.

Our Mid-Term Vision, which commenced in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, states our goal cf
forming the largest conglomerate in Japan’s pay TV business and providing diversified content services
that cater to a broad spectrum of consumer lifestyles. As | see it, a business combination with JSAT is
in line with these objectives. The vision also outlines a number of other growth-supperting measures,
such as strengthening relationships with and investing in broadcasters, building sales networks,
investing in content, developing the business of our subsidiaries, and investing aggressively and
strategically in other new businesses, poientially including mergers and acquisitions.

Through a business combination with JSAT, we will become a member of the SKY Perfect JSAT
Corporation Group. We are now working on a new medium-term management plan that we expect to
complete and introduce by the end of March 2007.

We plan to maintain dividends for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007, at ihe previous year's level
of ¥750 per share. Following the business combination outlined above, we will review our respective
dividend and payout policies and endeavor to maintain dividend stability. We will centinue doing our
utrmost to satisty our shareholders and other stakeholders. We ask for your suppont as we take on a
number of exciting new challenges.

November 2006
OYw. OVSXa ™
Masac Nito

President and Representative Director




The gray bars show the interim period: the blue bars shaw the fuil fiscal year.

Revenues (100,006 (Milliens sl el

. ] (Forecast)
During the first half, revenues expanded 87,500

3.7%, to ¥42.5 billion, compared with the
corresponding period of the previous fiscal
vear, buoyed by an increase in our subscriber
base, in line with our expectations.

FY2003 FY2004 FY2005 FY2006

Operating Income (Loss) 4,000 (Millions of yen)

The rise in revenues, coupled with efforts to
hold down expenses—notably marketing
costs—enabled us to post aperating income
of ¥1.3 billion, moving into the black after
recording operating losses in each of the
past two six-month periods.

Net Income (Loss)

Bolstered by positive operating income, net

income imDrOVed 10 ¥13 bi”ion' Compared e S'M) ........................................
with a net loss of ¥323 million in the
. ) ‘ ) 2.000
corresponding period of the previous fiscal -5 .- [ S - DN DO (Forecast) - -
1,500

year, despite ¥371 million equity in net 1.288

IUSSeS Of Ur‘lCOﬂSOhda[E‘d SUbSIdIarIES and ..... T e o P N T
affiliated companies.

Assets / Equity 150,000 tMilions otyery . [oleses MR ol ety OO

Total assets were ¥120.4 billion, down 9.6%
fram the close of the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2006. Toial equity amounted 1o
¥88.7 billion, down 5.7%, as lower stock
prices caused a decline in valuation gains

FY2003 FY2004 FY2005  FY2006°

on available-for-sale securities.

*Total equity for fiscal year 2006 includes a dafarred
gain on derivatives under hedge accounting and
minority interests, while total equity from previous
fiscat years excludes these items. Please see Note 1
to the consolidated financial stataments.
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The number of total subscribers increased :1‘?‘35{‘?0%&35“

1.8% from the close of the fiscal year ended s [‘—fm i OF 7.55
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annualized churn rate, which indicates ‘ o E E
subscriber turnover, was 9.5%, resulting from 2000 i Yo
an increase i cancellations following the , b
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A
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FY2003 FY2G04 FY2005 FY2006
ARPU

I
{Average revenue per subscriber per month)

ARPU was ¥3,400, down ¥96 compared with
the comesponding period of the previous fiscal
year. Although the intreduction of a new basic
package had a positive impact, ARPU
decreased because of such factors as fower
revenue from own-content programs.

FY2003 FY2004 Fy2005 FY2006

SAC (Subscriber acquisition cost) | 50000 (e L, fonasm o U0 S pocionaspense W Stssmcente

SAC, the average cost for acquiring a new
subscriber, fell a substantial ¥11.915 R o T DN
compared with the corresponding periad of

the preceding fiscal year. Principal factors 30000 : 2T6IE e
included lower advertising costs and sales ; e
promotion expenses, as No Major campaigns 20000 e - N [ TEEE TN SERRRTEE
took place during the period. Sales ) 6,149
incentives also decreased, owing to changes - 10000 : e : e e I R
in our new-subscriber mix.
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FY2003 FY2004 FY2005 FY2006

EBITDA ‘ [ 8000 Mllensolyen)

EBITDA, or earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization and other
financial items, is an important financial
indicator of cash-based earnings generated
by operating activities.

FY2003 FY2004 FY2005 FY2006




Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

March 31, 2006 and September 30, 2006

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
{Note 2)

March 31, 2006 September 30, 2006  September 30, 2008
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 40,311 ¥ 37,557 $ 321,001
Short-term investments (Note 3) 10 3,189 27,256
Accaunts receivable—net of allowance 10,481 10,593 90,539
Breoadcasting rights 2,653 5,995 51,239
Other 5,463 5,222 44,632
Tolal current assets 58,918 62,556 534,667
Property and equipment:
Buildings and structures 4115 3,980 34,017
Machinery and equipment 10,098 9,115 77,906
Other 509 3,816 32,615
Total property and equipment 15,122 16,911 144,538
Investments and other assets:
Software 2,438 4,420 37,778
Goodwill 1,260 1,102 9,419
Investment securities (Note 3) 48,446 27,287 233,222
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries and
affiliated companies 3,481 4,699 40,162
Other 3,507 3,381 28,898
Total investments and other assets 59,132 40,889 349,479
Total ¥133,172 ¥120,356  $1,028,684




Thousands af

U5, dollars
Millions of yen {Note 2}
March 31, 2006 September 30, 2006  September 30, 2006

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings and

current portion of long-term debt ¥ 700 ¥ 690 &% 5,897
Accounis payable 8,366 9,376 80,137
Income taxes payable 406 360 3,077
Accrued expenses 625 1,137 9718
Subscription fees received 13,003 13,322 113,863
Other 2,749 3,462 29,590

Total current liabilities 25,849 28,347 242,282
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt 979 946 8,086
Long-term payables 266 127 1,085
Liability for retirement benefits 758 792 6,769
Deferred tax liabilities 5,177 176 1,504
Cther 1,325 1,312 11,214
Total long-term liabilities 8,505 3,353 28,658
MINORITY INTERESTS 4818 — —
EQUITY
Common stock 50,084 50,084 428,068
authorized—9,000,000 shares
issued—2,270,365 shares at March 31, 2006,
and at September 30, 2006
Capital surplus 43,995 43,995 376,026
Retained earnings 4,629 4,292 36,684
Net unreelized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 5574 (4,068) (34,769)
Deferred gain on derivatives under hedge accounting — 35 299
Treasury stock, at cost—117,441 shares at March 31, 2006,
and at September 30, 2006 (10,282) {10,282} (87,880)
Total 94,000 84,056 718,428
Minerity interests — 4,600 39,316
Total equity 54,000 88,656 757,744
Total ¥133,172 ¥120,356  $1,028,684

See notes to consolidated financia! statements.




Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)

For the six-month periods ended September 30, 2005 and 2006

Millions of yen

Thousands of
LS. dollars
{Note 2)

September 30, 2005  September 30, 2006

September 30, 2006

Revenues:
Subscriber-related revenues ¥25,213 ¥26,245 $224,316
Transmission-related revenues 4,589 4,547 38,863
Other fees and revenues 11,222 11,741 100,351
Total 41,024 42 533 363,530
Operating expenses (Note 5):
Cost of services 28,081 28,905 247,051
Selling, general and administrative expenses 13,367 12,372 105,744
Tctal 41,448 41,277 352,795
Operating income {loss) {424) 1,256 10,735
Other income (expenses):
Interest income 397 331 2,829
Interest expense (19) (20} (17D
Equity in net losses of uncensolidated subsidiaries
and affiliated companies (5} (371) (3,171}
Gain on sales of investment securities 465 — —
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (204) (87) (744)
Impairment loss (326) — —
Other—net {97) 193 1,650
Other income—net 211 46 393
Income (loss) before income taxes
and minority interests (213) 1,302 11,128
Income taxes:
Current 264 223 1,806
Deferred (23) (6) (52}
Minority interests 131 203 1,735
Net income (loss) (323) ¥ 1,288 $ 11,009
.S dollars
Yen {Note 2}

September 30, 2005 September 30, 2006  September 30, 2006

Per share of common stock

Net income {loss)
—Basic ¥(149.97) ¥598.36 $5.11
—Diluted* — — —

*Diluted net income per share for the six-month period ended September 30, 2005 is not disclosed because of the Companies’ net loss position.
Diluted net income per share for the six-manth period ended September 30, 2006 is not disclosed because 1t is anti-dilutive

See notes to consclidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity (Unaudited)

For the six-month period ended September 30, 2006

Millions of yen
Nelunresized  Defecred
ginlisslen  ganon

anlable derivaliees

Balance at March 31, 2006 ¥50,084 ¥43995 Y4629 ¥55/4 ¥(10.282) ¥94,000 ¥4818 ¥98818
Net income 1,288 1,288 1288
Cash dividends, ¥750 per share (1,615) {1,615} {1,615)
Bonuses to directors (100 {10 (10
Net change for the six-month perice 9642) ¥35 19,607) (218)  19,825)
Balance at September 30, 2006 ¥50,084 ¥43995 ¥ 4,292 ¥(4,068) ¥35 ¥(10,282} ¥84,056 ¥4,600 ¥88,656

Thausands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)
Metunreaized  Deferred
gan (losson ganon
available- dermvaloes

Cammon Capital Retained for-sale under hedge  Treasury Minarity Tetal

S1ck Swlpts EAMINES _ securdis _ acoounung ik Tolal lerests eqiy
Balance at March 31, 2006 $428.068 $376,026 $39564 $475641 $(87,880) $803419 %41,179 £844598
Nat income 11,008 11,009 11,009
Cash dividends, $6.41 per share (13.804) {13,804} 113,804)
Bonuses to directors (89) (85) (85)
Net change for the six-month period (82410) $299 (82,111) (1863} (B3974)
Balance at September 30, 2006 $428,068 $376,026 $36,684 $(34,769) $299 $(87,880) $718,428 $39,316 $757,744

See notes to consolidated financial staterments.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows {Unaudited)

For the six-month periods ended September 30, 2005 and 2006

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U5 dallars
{Note 2)

September 30, 2005

September 30, 2006

September 30, 2006

Operating activities:
Income (loss) before income taxes and

minority interests ¥ {213) ¥ 1,302 $ 11,128
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortization 1.863 2,252 19,248
Gain on sales of investment securities {465) — —
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 204 87 744
Loss on devaluation of investment securities 39 2 17
Impairment loss 326 — —
Interest and dividends received {(400) (346) (2,957)
Interest expense 19 20 171
Equity in net losses of unconsolidated subsidiaries
and affiliated companies 5 371 3,171
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable (227) (403) (3,444)
Increase in inventories {2.530) (3,505) (29,957)
Decrease {increase) in advance (488) 831 7,103
Increase in payables 2,292 1,104 9,436
Increase {decrease) in accrued expenses (209) 486 4,154
Increase in subscription fees received 613 319 2,726
Increase in deferred revenue 1,343 783 6,692
Other—nat 356 380 3,247
Subtotal 2,533 3,683 31,479
Interest and dividends received 358 311 2,658
Interest paid (19) (20} (171)
Income taxes paid (165) (275) {2,351)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,707 3,699 31,615
Investing activities:
Payments for time deposits (1,500) — —
Refund of time deposits 5 10 85
Proceeds from sales and
redemption of shori-term investments 7,001 — —
Purchases of investment securities {11,298) (260) {2,222)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 2,566 2,000 17,094
Purchases of property and equipment (3,080) (3,418) (29,213)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 1,218 20 171
Purchases of software (503) (2,907) (24,846)
Other 334 (1) (9)
Net cash used in investing activities (5,257) (4,556) {38,940)
Financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 100 (10) {85)
Repayments of long-term debt (38) (33) (282)
Payment of long-term payables (259) (233) (1,991)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 92 — —
Dividends paid (1,618) {1,606) (13,727)
Purchase of treasury stock (1,012) — —
Other 451 (14) (120)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,284) (1,896) (16,205)
Fareign currency translation adjustments
on cash and cash equivalents — (1) (N
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,834) (2,754) (23,537
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the period 32,239 40,311 344,538
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period ¥ 27,405 ¥37,557 $321,001

10




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
For the six-month periods ended September 30, 2009 and 2006

L.

Basis of Presenting
Consolidated
Financial Statements

2.

U.S. Dollar
Presentation

3.

Investments in
Securities

The accompanying unaudited conselidated financial statements of SKY Perfect
Communications Inc. {the “Company”) and its subsidiaries {together, the “"Companies”)
have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan, which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Repeorting Standards.

On December 27, 2005, the Accounting Standard Board of Japan published a
new accounting standard for the statement of changes in eguity, which is effective
for fiscal years ending on or after May 1, 2006.

The statement of shareholders' equity, which was previously voluntarily prepared
in line with the international accounting practices, is now required under generally
accepted accounting principles in Japan and has been renamed “the consclidated
statement of change in eguity” from the current fiscal year.

In preparing thesa consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and
rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial statements issued
domestically in order to present them in a form that is more familiar to readers
outside Japan. In additicn, certain prior period amoeunts have been reclassified to
conform to the current presentation.

The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are inctuded
solely for the convenience of readers cutside Japan and have been made at the
rate of ¥117=US%$1, the approximate rate of exchange at September 30, 2006.

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of short-term investments and
investment securities at March 31, 2006 and September 30, 2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen
March 31, 2006 Cost Unrealized gain (loss) Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥10,124 ¥12,715 ¥22 839
Debt securities 14,000 (1,964) 12,036
Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities 10,689 {541) 10,148
Millions of yen
September 30, 2006 Cost Unrealized loss Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥10,383 ¥(1,935) ¥ 8,448
Debt securities 14,013 (1,966) 12,047
Held-ta-maturity:
Debt securities 8,691 (346} 8,345
Thousands of U.S. dollars
September 30, 2006 Cost Unrealized loss Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities $ 88,743 $(16,538) $ 72,205
Debt securities 119,769 (16,803) 102,966
Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities 74,282 (2,957) 71,325
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4,

Leases

12

Available-for-sale securities whose fair value s not readily determinable at March 31,
2006 and September 3C, 2006 were as follows:

Carrying amount

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2006 September 30, 2006 September 30, 2006
Equity securities ¥2 882 ¥1,290 $11,026
Debt securities 2,012 9,008 76,991

The Companies lease certain machinery and equipment, software and other assets.

Total rental expenses under finance leases for the six-month periods ended
September 30, 2005 and 2006 were ¥1,437 million and ¥1,631 million {$13,940
thousand]), respectively.

Pro forma information of leased assets such as acquisition cost, accumulated
depreciation, obligations under finance leases, depreciation expense and interest
expense of leased assets that do not transfer ownership of the leased assets to the
lessee on an “as if capitalized” basis for the year ended March 31, 2006 and the
six-manth periods ended Septermber 30, 2005 and 2006 was as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31,2006 Seplember 30, 2006 September 30, 2006

Machinery and equipment:

Acquisition cost ¥10,454 ¥10,892 $93,094

Accumulated depreciation 4,778 5,698 48,701

Net book value 5,676 5,194 44,393
Software:

Acquisition cost 1,728 1,707 14,590

Accumulated depreciation 1,148 1,273 10,881

Net book value 580 434 3,709
Other assets:

Acquisifion cost 4,708 4,572 39,077

Accumulated depreciation 1,686 1,585 13,547

Net book value 3,022 2,987 25,530

Total ¥ 9278 ¥ 8,615 $73,632

Otligations under finance leases were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen LS. dollars

tharch 31, 2006 September 30, 2006  September 30, 2006
Due within one year ¥2921 ¥2,971 $25,393
Due after one year 6,613 5,824 49,778
Total ¥9 534 ¥8,795 $75,171

Depreciation expense and interest axpense under finance leases were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U S daliars

September 30. 2005 Seplember 30, 2006 Sep 30, 2006
Depreciation expense ¥ 1279 ¥1,461 $12. 487
Interest expense 152 134 1,145
Total ¥1,431 ¥1,595 $13,632

Depreciation expense and interest expense, which are not reflected in the accom-
panying statements of operations, are computed by the straight-line methed and
the interest metheod, respectively.




Operating expenses for the six-month periods ended September 30, 2005 and 2006
5 B consisted of the following: |

Thausands of
Millions of yen U.5. dollars
Septernber 30, 2005  September 30, 2006  September 30, 2006

Operating Expenses

Cost of services:

Personnel expense ¥ 756 ¥ 834 $ 7,128
Outsourcing expense 6,895 6,030 51,538
Transmission-related expanse 4,816 5,353 45,752
Programming cest 7,826 7,500 64,103
Cost of IC cards 292 170 1,453
Renta) expense 1,470 1,760 15,043
Depreciation and amartization expense 1,719 2,141 18,299
Other 4,307 5,117 43,735

Total ¥28,081 ¥28,905 $247,051

Selling, general and
administrative expenses:

Personnel expense ¥ 1,423 ¥ 1623 $ 13,872
Sales incentive 3,858 2,323 19,855
Advertising cost 3,578 2,729 23,325
Sales promotion expense 2,219 2,406 20,564
Provision for doubtful receivables 110 188 1,607
Depreciation and amoprtization expense 149 111 949
Other 2,030 2,992 25,572

Total ¥13,367 ¥12,372 $105,744

Issuance of Stock Options
6 o On Avgust 30, 2006, the Company's Board of Directors has resolved to grant stock

options 1o its directors and executive officers. The allotment date of these stock
options is October 1, 2006, the exercise period is from October 1, 2008 to
September 30, 2012, and the total number of stock options is 1,180.

Subseguent Events

Business Combination with JSAT Corporation

Subject to various legal proceedings, a positive resolution by a special meeting of
shareholders and the confirmation of the regulatory authorities, on October 26,
2006, the Board of Directors of the Company and JSAT Corporation have resolved
to transfer their shares to a holding company (SKY Perfect JSAT Corporation) in
April 2007, where both companies will become wholly owned subsidiaries of the
holding company.

Forward-Looking Statements

Forward-locking statements, including plans, strategies or beliefs, contained in this report are not past results but are
forecasts based on the assumptions or beliefs of our management judging from information currently available. Final
decisiens related to investment are up to the judgment of users themselves, Such forward-looking statements are not
guaranteed of future performance and involve risks and uncertainfies, and actual resuits may differ from those in the
forward-locking staternents as a result of various faclors, including (1) the economic environment surrounding our areas of
husiness, in parbicular, consumer trencs; {2) changes in legislation such as broadcasting laws and communications laws,
particularly in the case of restriction of cur business or proposals to this effect or in case of, for example, new business entry
by rival companies; and (3} our ability to develop and continue to provide programs and services acceptable to customers in
a fiercely competitive market characterized by features such as remarkably rapid technical inngvation in the digital
technology field, in parlicular, and remarkatly subjective and changeable customer preferences in the broadcasting
business. Also note that factors that could influence our business results are not limited to the above.
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Corporate Data and Investor Information

As of September 30, 2006

Corporate name: SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Head office address: 2-15-1 Shibuya, Shibuya-ku,

Tokyo 150-8326, Japan
Tel: +81-3-5468-7800 Fax: +81-3-5468-7925
URL: skycom.skyperfectv.co.jp
Date established: November 10, 1994
Number of employees: 476 (Consolidated)
Cammen stock: authorized 9,000,000

issued 2,270,365

Number of shareholders: 36,649
Stock exchange listing:

Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section {Code No. 4795)
Transfer agent of common stock:

Mizuhe Trust & Banking Ca., Ltd.

Board of Directors and Auditors:

Executive Directors

Chairman and
Representative Director

President and
Representative Director

Hiroyuki Shincki

Masaa Nito
Executive Vice President
Managing Director
Executive Advisor

Non-Executive Directors

Hajime Tanabe
Ryoji Hirabayashi
Yasushi Hosoda
Tatsuro Saitoh
Kikujiro Shikano
Tatsuya Tamura
Kageo Nakano
Nozomu Yoshida
Toshichika Ishihara
Kenji Kamimura
Masakatsu Mori
Yoshiki Hirowatari
(Standing)
Ryosuke Tsuruma
(Standing)

Masao Sakai

Corporate Auditors
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Major Shareholders:

Sony Broadcast Media Co., Lid. 12.47%
Fuji Television Network, Inc. 12.47%
Itochu Corporation 12.47%
JSAT Corporation 691%
Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc. 5.68%
Nippon Television Network Corporation 5.24%
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. 5.18%

The Bank of New York Europe, Ltd, Luxembourg  4.16%

Sumitome Corporation 3.05%
Dentsu Inc. 1.79%
Notes:

1. The Company holds 117,441 shares in treasury stock,

2. As of September 30, 2006, the foreign ownership ratio of total stocks
with voling rights is 11.34% (when calculated with the methad defined
by the Ministry of Public Management, Home Affairs, Posts and
Telecommunications).

3. The above-menticned shares held by Itochu Corporation include
147,000 shares transferred as trust assets Io the ratirement pension
trust. (The names in the shareholders' register are Mizuho Trust &
Banking Co., Lid. retirement trust account for Itochu Corporation.
Under the retirement trust conlract, tochu Corporation is able to
advise beneficiaries on the exercise of their shareholder voting rights.)

4. The above-mentioned shares held by Sumitomo Corporation include
65,100 shares transferred as trust assets to the retirement pension
trust. {The names in the shareholders’ register are Japan Trustee
Services Bank, Ltd. retirement trust accounl for Sumitame Corporation.
Under the retirement trust contract, Surmitome Corporation is able to
advise beneficiaries on the exercise of their shareholder voting rights.)

5. According to the Repart of Changes to the Large Holdings Report
submitted by Merrilt Lynch Japan Securities Co.. Ltd.. on March 10,
2006, its joint holdings as of February 28, 2006 were as indicated
below. The content of the Report of Changes to the Large Heldings
Report is as follows:

Company Percentage Shareholding
Merrill Lynch Japan Secunties Ca., Lid. 0.14%
Merrill Lynch International 0.11%
Merrill Lynch Investment Managers LP 4.11%
Merrill Lynch Investment Managers Co., Ltd. 5.55%

Totai 991%

Ot the above, Mernll Lynch Japan Secunties and Merrill Lynch
International submitted a Report of Changes to the Large Holdings
Repart on Cctaber 6, 2006, indicating the following holdings as of
September 30, 2006.

Company Percentage Shareholding
Mernll Lynch Japan Securities Co., Lid. 0.07%
Werrill Lynch International 002%

Total 0.0%%

As the Company is unable o confirm 1he actual number of shares
held, however, these companies are omitted from the above list of

major sharehalders.




